Housing Plan Element

Prepared for:

Howell Township Monmouth County, New Jersey

Adopted: June 19, 2025

Prepared By:

LEONS. AVAKIAN INC.

788 Wayside Road Neptune, New Jersey 07753 (732) 922-9229

Jennifer C. Beahm, PP, AICP License No. 05625 MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 2 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

Mayor and Council

John Leggio, Mayor Fred Gasior, Deputy Mayor Evelyn O'Donnell Ian Nadel Susan Fischer

Borough Planning Board

John Leggio, Class I, Mayor Brian Greenfeild, Class II Ian Nadel, Class III, Councilman Michael Wrubel, Class IV Chris Mercer, Class IV Dan Karbownik, Class IV Nicholas Huszar, Class IV Brian Tannenhaus, Class IV Dylan Beato, Alternate #1 Matthew Withers, Alternate #2

Planning Board Professionals

Ronald Cucchiaro, Esq., Board Attorney Laura J. Newmann, PE, PP, Board Engineer Jennifer Beham, PP, AICP, Board Planner Shari M. Spero, LTE, Board Licensed Tree Expert

Project Team

Jennifer Beahm, PP, AICP Christine Bell, PP, AICP, CFM Ciara Wenger

Contents

INTRODUCTION	1
MUNICIPAL SUMMARY	3
DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS	4
POPULATION	4
POPULATION COMPOSITION BY AGE	4
HOUSEHOLDS	6
INCOME	7
HOUSEHOLD COSTS	8
EXISTING HOUSING CONDITIONS	9
HOUSING UNIT DATA	9
HOUSING TYPE AND SIZE	10
HOUSING VALUES AND CONTRACT RENTS	11
HOUSING CONDITIONS	12
PROJECTED HOUSING STOCK	13
EMPLOYMENT DATA	13
Lands Most Appropriate for Affordable Housing	18
Infrastructure	18
Anticipated Demand and Land Use Patterns	18
Environmental Constraints	19
Historic	19
Existing Land Use Designations	19
Consistency with the State Plan	21
FAIR SHARE PLAN	23
Fair Share Obligation Summary	23
Satisfaction of the Township's Rehabilitation/Present Need Obligation	23
Prior Round Obligation	23
Third Round Obligation	26
Fourth Round Obligation	31
Appendices	
Appendix A: Spending Plan	
Appendix B: Forman Ordinance	
Appendix C: Roberts Ordinance	
Appendix D: Existing Affordable Housing and Development Fee Ordinance	

Appendix E: Affirmative Marketing Plan Appendix F: Operating Plan

List of Tables

TABLE 1: POPULATION TRENDS, 1940-2023	4
TABLE 2: POPULATION BY AGE COHORT, HOWELL, 2010-2023	
TABLE 3: POPULATION BY AGE COHORT, MONMOUTH COUNTY, 2010-2023	
TABLE 4: MEDIAN AGE	6
TABLE 5: HOUSEHOLD CHARACTERISTICS	6
TABLE 6: HOUSEHOLDS BY TYPE (2023)	7
TABLE 7: PER CAPITA INCOME AND MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME	7
TABLE 8: HOUSEHOLD INCOME DISTRIBUTION	8
TABLE 9: MONTHLY OWNER COSTS AS A	9
TABLE 10: GROSS RENT AS A PERCENTAGE OF HOUSEHOLD INCOME, 2023	9
TABLE 11: HOUSING UNIT DATA, 2023	
TABLE 12: HOUSING UNITS BY TYPE, 2023	11
TABLE 13: VALUE OF OWNER-OCCUPIED HOUSING UNITS, 2023	11
TABLE 14: GROSS RENT PAID	
TABLE 15: HOUSING DEFICIENCY CHARACTERISTICS	12
TABLE 16: BUILDING PERMITS AND DEMOLITION PERMITS ISSUED,	13
TABLE 17: EMPLOYMENT STATUS	
TABLE 18: CLASSIFICATION OF WORKERS IN HOWELL, 2023	14
TABLE 19: WORKFORCE BY SECTOR	
TABLE 20: COMPARISON OF WORKFORCE BY SECTOR	
TABLE 21: OCCUPATIONS BY TYPE	16
TABLE 22: PROJECTED EMPLOYMENT, MONMOUTH COUNTY, 2032	17
TABLE 23: FAIR SHARE OBLIGATION SUMMARY	23
TABLE 24: PRIOR ROUND COMPLIANCE SUMMARY	24
TABLE 25: THIRD ROUND COMPLIANCE SUMMARY	27
TABLE 26: FOURTH ROUND COMPLIANCE SUMMARY	31

MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 6 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

INTRODUCTION

In the case of Southern Burlington County NAACP v. the Township of Mount Laurel, (commonly known as Mount Laurel I), the New Jersey Supreme Court established the doctrine that developing municipalities in New Jersey have a constitutional obligation to provide a realistic opportunity for the construction of low and moderate income housing in their communities. In its Mount Laurel decision, decided on January 20, 1983 (Mount Laurel II), the Supreme Court expanded the Mount Laurel doctrine by stating that this constitutional responsibility extended to all municipalities in New Jersey. The Court also established various remedies, including the "builder remedy" or court-imposed zoning, to ensure that municipalities affirmatively addressed this obligation.

In response to the Mount Laurel II decision, the New Jersey Legislature adopted the <u>Fair</u> <u>Housing Act</u> in 1985 (Chapter 222, Laws Of New Jersey, 1985). The Fair Housing Act established a Council on Affordable Housing (COAH) as an administrative alternative to the courts. COAH was also given the responsibility of establishing various housing regions in the state, determining regional and municipal fair share affordable housing obligations and adopting regulations establishing the guidelines and approaches that municipalities may use in addressing their affordable housing need.

Under COAH's regulations, low income households are defined as those with incomes no greater than 50 percent of the median household income, adjusted for household size, of the housing region in which the municipality is located, and moderate-income households are those with incomes no greater than 80 percent and no less than 50 percent of the median household income, adjusted for household size, of the housing region. For the Township of Howell, the housing region is defined by COAH as Region4 and is comprised of Mercer, Monmouth and Ocean counties. In 2024 the Region 4 median income for a four-person household is \$130,054; the moderate-income limit is \$104,043, the low-income limit is \$65,027 and the very-low-income limit is \$39,016.

Pursuant to both the Fair Housing Act and the Municipal Land Use Law (MLUL), municipalities in New Jersey are required to include a housing element in their master plans. The principal purpose of the housing element is to provide for methods of achieving the goal of access to affordable housing to meet the municipality's low- and moderateincome housing needs. The statutory required contents of the housing element are:

- An inventory of the municipality's housing stock by age, condition, purchase or rental value, occupancy characteristics, and type, including the number of units affordable to low- and moderate-income households and substandard housing capable of being rehabilitated;
- A projection of the municipality's housing stock, including the probable future construction of low- and moderate-income housing, for the ten years, taking into account, but not necessarily limited to, construction permits issued, approvals of

applications for development and probable residential development of lands;

- An analysis of the municipality's demographic characteristics, including but not necessarily limited to, household size, income level and age;
- An analysis of the existing and probable future employment characteristics of the municipality;
- A determination of the municipality's present and prospective fair share for lowand moderate-income housing and its capacity to accommodate its present and prospective housing needs, including its fair share for low- and moderate-income housing; and
- A consideration of the lands that are most appropriate for construction of lowand moderate-income housing and of the existing structures most appropriate for conversion to, or rehabilitation for low- and moderate-income housing, includinga consideration of lands of developers who have expressed a commitment to provide low- and moderate-income housing.

MUNICIPAL SUMMARY

Howell Township is a growing suburban community located in southern Monmouth County, New Jersey. The Township consists of a land area of 60.9 square miles, making it the largest municipality in the county by area. The Township was originally founded in the early 1800s for agricultural opportunities and abundant natural resources, as well as proximity to the Manasquan River, which provided access to transportation and trade. The popularity and population of Howell Township has increased over time, as major roadways like Route 9 and I-195 provide easy vehicular access.

Today, Howell Township is characterized by a mix of residential neighborhoods, commercial centers, industrial spaces, recreational facilities, and preserved open spaces. The Town balances development with environmental conservation. Howell is bordered by Brick Township to the southeast; Wall Township to the east; Colts Neck Township to the north; Freehold Township and Jackson Township to the west; and Lakewood Township to the south. The Township of Howell also completely surrounds the Borough of Farmingdale.

The current year-round population of Howell is estimated at 53,661 (ACS 2023 5-year data). The Township has a population density of 866 persons per square mile. Howell has also grown older by 2.6 years between 2000 and 2023, with a current median age of 40.7 years of age. Howell's 2023 median household income estimate of \$129,855 was higher than that of the county (\$122,727) and the State (\$101,050).

In the guidelines established by COAH, Howell Township is in affordable housing Region 4 which is comprised of Monmouth, Mercer, and Ocean Counties.

DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS

POPULATION

In 2023, the Howell Township had a total population of 53,661. This number represented an increase of 1,608 individuals or 3.1 percent since 2020, when the total population was 52,053 individuals. Howell Township has experienced a steady increase of the population since the 1940s. However population increases started to slow down significantly in 2010 through present day. The total population pattern for Howell, Monmouth County, and New Jersey are detailed below.

		Howell			Howell Monmouth County		nty	N	lew Jersey	
Year		Change			Change			Chai	nge	
	Population	Number	Percent	Population	Number	Percent	Population	Number	Percent	
1940	4,039	-	-	161,238	-	-	4,160,165	-	-	
1950	6,696	2,657	67.1%	225,327	64,089	39.7%	4,835,329	675,164	16.2%	
1960	11,153	4,457	84.0%	334,401	109,074	48.4%	6,066,782	1,231,453	25.5%	
1970	21,756	10,603	39.1%	461,849	127,448	38.1%	7,171,112	1,104,330	18.2%	
1980	25,065	3,309	17.9%	503,173	41,324	8.9%	7,365,011	193,899	2.7%	
1990	38,987	13,922	55.5%	553,124	49,951	9.9%	7,730,188	365,177	5.0%	
2000	48,903	9,916	25.4%	615,301	62,177	11.2%	8,414,350	684,162	8.9%	
2010	51,075	2,172	4.4%	628,112	12,811	2.0%	8,721,577	307,227	3.6%	
2020	52,053	978	1.9%	620,821	-7,291	1.2%	8,885,418	163,841	1.9%	
2023*	53,661	1,608	3.1%	643,615	22,794	3.67%	9,267,014	381,596	4.29%	
2050^	53,905	244	0.4%	669,624	48,559	4.0%	-	-	-	

TABLE 1: POPULATION TRENDS, 1940-2023

*American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates (table DP05)

**Population Projections from North Jersey Transportation Planning Authority (NJTPA)

POPULATION COMPOSITION BY AGE

The age composition of Howell has shifted noticeably since 2010. According to American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates, 2023, significant changes occurred in many age groups. The number of adults between the ages of 35 to 59 years old has decreased significantly over this time period. The greatest increase in population was experienced in the years 65 to 74 age cohort and the 60 to 64 years age cohort. The greatest decrease in population was experienced in the 55 to 59 age cohort, followed by the 45 to 49 age cohort.

Denulation	20	10	20	Change	
Population	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	2010-2023
Total population	50,776	100.0%	53,661	100.00%	5.6%
Under 5 years	2,906	5.7%	2,894	5.3%	-0.4%
5 to 9 years	4,101	8.1%	3,265	6.0%	-20.4%
10 to 14 years	4,407	8.7%	3,824	7.1%	-13.2%
15 to 19 years	4,115	8.1%	3,855	7.1%	-5.6%
20 to 24 years	2,713	5.3%	3,025	5.6%	11.5%
25 to 34 years	5,103	10.1%	5,809	10.8%	13.8%
35 to 44 years	8,076	15.9%	6,429	11.9%	-20.3%
45 to 54 years	9,285	18.3%	7,379	13.7%	-20.5%
55 to 59 years	3,145	6.2%	3,820	7.1%	-21.4%
60 to 64 years	2,098	4.1%	4,011	7.4%	91.1%
65 to 74 years	2,653	5.2%	5,976	11.1%	125.2%
75 to 84 years	1,433	2.8%	2,610	4.8%	82.1%
85 years and over	741	1.5%	764	1.4%	3.1%
U.S. Census Bureau AC	CS 2010, 2023	3 5- Year Est	imates (table	e DP-05)	

TABLE 2: POPULATION BY AGE COHORT, HOWELL, 2010-2023

Monmouth County also experienced shifts in the age make-up of its population. The County experienced a significant decrease in children under the age of 18. The 20 to 34-year-old and 55 and over age cohorts also experienced population increases between 2010 and 2023, with the largest increases in the older age cohorts, suggesting that the County, like the Township, has an aging population.

Denulation	20	2010		2023		
Population	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	2010-2023	
Total population	628,112	100.0%	643,615	100.0%	2.5%	
Under 5 years	36,105	5.7%	32,114	4.9%	-11.05%	
5 to 9 years	43,432	6.9%	37,013	5.7%	-14.8%	
10 to 14 years	45,172	7.2%	39,484	6.1%	-12.6%	
15 to 19 years	44,706	7.1%	42,163	6.5%	-5.7%	
20 to 24 years	33,055	5.3%	37,390	5.8%	13.1%	
25 to 34 years	63,105	10.0%	70,569	10.9%	11.8%	
35 to 44 years	93,461	14.9%	75,860	11.8%	-18.8%	
45 to 54 years	108,675	17.3%	88,083	13.3%	-18.9%	
55 to 59 years	42,594	6.8%	50,654	7.9%	18.9%	
60 to 64 years	34,235	5.5%	50,797	7.9%	48.4%	
65 to 74 years	41,719	6.6%	71,107	11.0%	70.4%	
75 to 84 years	29,301	4.7%	33,953	5.3%	15.9%	
85 years and over	12,552	2.0%	14,428	2.1%	14.9%	
U.S. Census Bureau Ame	rican Community	Survey 2010), 2023 5-Year	Estimates (tab	le DP-05)	

TABLE 3: POPULATION BY AGE COHORT, MONMOUTH COUNTY, 2010-2023

The median age of Howell Township residents has increased by 2.6 years between 2010 and 2023. The County's median age is slightly higher than that of the Township, but also increased by 2.6 years between 2010 and 2023. The State's median age is slightly lower than that of Howell Twp., and increased by less than Howell and the County.

Year	Howell	Monmouth County	New Jersey			
2010	38.1	40.6	38.5			
2023	40.7	43.2	40.1			
Change	2.6	2.6	1.6			
U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 Decennial Census (table DP-1) U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 2023 5-Year Estimates (table B01002)						

TABLE 4: MEDIAN AGE

HOUSEHOLDS

Average Household Size

A household is defined as one or more persons, either related or not, living together in a housing unit. 2023 ACS 5-Year Estimates note that there were approximately 19,095 households in the Township. Approximately 51.9% percent of all Township households were comprised of one or two persons, with 40.5% comprising of two-person households. While one- and two-person household also comprise the majority of County households at 59.1%, Howell has far fewer larger households than the County overall. The Township's average household size was 2.80, which is bigger than the County's average household size of 2.55.

Township County Number Percent Number Percent **Total Households** 19,095 100.0% 100.0% 250,195 4,092 14.3% 66,589 26.0% 1-person 81,289 32.9% 40.5% 2-persons 5,836 3-persons 3,454 13.2% 40,929 16.4% 24.5% 4 or more persons 5,713 31.8% 61,388 2.80 2.55

TABLE 5: HOUSEHOLD CHARACTERISTICS HOWELL AND MONMOUTH COUNTY, 2023

Family households are defined as two or more persons living in the same household, related by blood, marriage or adoption. Households in Howell are mainly family households (75.0%). Approximately 61.7 percent of all family households were family households with married couple householders. While 9.4 percent and 3.9 percent of family households respectively were family households consisting of single female and male householders. The average family size was 3.29 persons. The average non-family household size was 1.17 persons.

U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 2023 5-Year Estimates (tables S2501 & B25010)

Hausahalda	Total	Percent		
Households	19,095	100.0%		
Average Household Size	2.	.80		
Average Non-Family Household Size	1.	.17		
Family households	14,333	75.0%		
Married Couple Family	11,795	61.7%		
With own children under 18 years	4,956	25.9%		
No children under 18 years	6,839	35.8%		
Other Family				
Male householder, no spouse present	742	3.9%		
With own children under 18 years	249	1.3%		
No own children under 18 years	493	2.5%		
Female householder, no spouse present	1,796	9.4%		
With own children under 18 years	769	4.0%		
No own children under 18 years	1,027	5.3%		
Nonfamily Households	4,762	24.9%		
	•	•		
Average Family Size	3.	3.29		
U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 2023 5-Year	Estimates (table S11)	01)		

TABLE 6: HOUSEHOLDS BY TYPE (2023)

INCOME

Howell experienced a 311.6 percent increase in per capita income between 2010 and 2023, which was much higher than Monmouth County's 59.9 percent increase, and higher than the State's 52.3 percent increase over the same period. While the Township's percent increase in per capita income was higher than that of Monmouth County, Howell's per capita income of \$145,876 was also greater than the County's \$65,545 both of which are greater than the State's \$53,118.

	2010 Per Capita Income	2023 Per Capita Income	Percent Change	2010 Median Household Income	2023 Median Household Income	Percent Change
Howell	\$35,439	\$145,876	311.6%	\$89,287	\$129,855	45.4%
Monmouth	\$40,976	\$65,545	59.9%	\$82,265	\$122,727	49.1%
New Jersey	\$34,858	\$53,118	52.3%	\$69,811	\$101,050	44.7%
	au, 2000 Decennic au, American Com	•	,	ntes (tables \$1902 a	and \$1903)	

TABLE 7: PER CAPITA INCOME AND MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME

The income distribution for the Township reflects that of the County overall. The income brackets containing the highest percentage of households for both Howell and the County is the \$200,000 or more bracket, followed by the \$100,000 to \$149,999 range. However, the

median income in Howell was \$129,855, approximately \$7,128 more than the county median household income, and about \$28,805 more than the state median household income. Between 2010 and 2023, Howell's median household income increased 45.4 percent, lower than the 49.1 percent growth rate experienced in Monmouth County but higher than the 44.7 percent increase for the State overall.

	Hov	vell	Monmou	th County
	Number	Percent	Number	Percentage
Total Households	19,095	100.0%	250,195	100.0%
Less than \$10,000	854	4.4%	8,165	3.2%
\$10,000 to \$14,999	403	2.1%	5,319	2.1%
\$15,000 to \$24,999	525	2.7%	10,781	4.3%
\$25,000 to \$34,999	680	3.5%	10,705	4.3%
\$35,000 to \$49,999	1,409	7.4%	17,390	6.9%
\$50,000 to \$74,999	1,664	8.7%	25,153	10.05%
\$75,000 to \$99,999	1,687	8.8%	25,542	10.2%
\$100,000 to \$149,999	3,679	19.3%	43,917	17.5%
\$150,000 to \$199,999	3,516	18.4%	33,996	13.6%
\$200,000 or more	4,678	24.5%	69,227	27.7%
U.S. Census Bureau, Amer	ican Community Surve	y 2023 5-Year Estin	nates (table B1900)1)

TABLE 8: HOUSEHOLD INCOME DISTRIBUTIONHOWELL AND MONMOUTH COUNTY, 2023

HOUSEHOLD COSTS

The tables below show housing expenditures for owner- and renter-occupied units in Howell in 2023. The first table shows the housing costs of owner occupants with a mortgage as a percentage of total income. A total of 3,488 households (30.0%) were devoting more than 30 percent of their annual income to housing costs. The State affordability threshold for housing as a percent of income suggests that not more than 28 percent of gross income should be allocated for housing costs.

The second table shows rental costs as a percentage of household income. A total of 1,032 households renting in Howell, or 56.5 percent, were spending over 30 percent of their incomes on rent. The State affordability threshold for housing as a percent of income suggests that not more than 30 percent of gross income should be allocated for rent.

	Howell		Monmouth County	
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
Total Owner-Occupied Housing Units with a Mortgage	11,616	100.0%	121,452	100.0%
Less than 15%	2,231	19.2%	27,233	22.4%
15 to 19%	2,257	19.4%	23,882	19.66%
20 to 24%	2,097	18.0%	19,772	16.3%
25 to 29%	1,385	11.9%	13,459	11.08%
30 to 34%	845	7.2%	8,293	6.8%
35% or more	2,643	22.7%	28,203	23.2%
Not computed	158	1.3%	610	0.5%
U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey	2023 5-Year E	stimates (table B2	5091)	•

TABLE 9: MONTHLY OWNER COSTS AS APERCENTAGE OF HOUSEHOLD INCOME, 2023

TABLE 10: GROSS RENT AS A PERCENTAGE OF HOUSEHOLD INCOME, 2023

	н	owell	Monmouth County		
	Number	Percentage	Number	Percentage	
Total Renter-Occupied Housing Units	1,828	100.0%	61,617	100.0%	
Less than 15%	64	3.5%	7,106	11.5%	
15 to 19%	140	7.7%	6,970	11.3%	
20 to 24%	141	7.7%	6,927	11.2%	
25 to 29%	201	10.9%	6,419	10.4%	
30 to 34%	166	9.1%	4,751	7.7%	
35% or more	866	47.3%	26,025	42.2%	
Not computed	250	13.7%	3,419	5.5%	

U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 2023 5-Year Estimates (table B25070)

EXISTING HOUSING CONDITIONS

HOUSING UNIT DATA

Howell housing stock is predominantly owner occupied and relatively new. According to the 2023 ACS, the Township had a total of 19,628 occupied housing units. Most occupied units (90.4%) were owner-occupied, while 9.6 percent were renter-occupied. Housing construction in Howell Township first boomed between 1960-1969, peaked in the decade from 1980 – 1989, continuing with large amount of construction from 1990- 1999. Most of the housing structures (62.7%) were built after 1979.

Housing Units in Howell	Number	Percent		
Total Housing Units	19,628	100.0%		
Vacant Housing Units	533	2.8%		
Occupied Housing Units	19,095	97.2 %		
Owner Occupied	17,267	90.4%		
Renter Occupied	1,828	9.6%		
U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 2023 5-Year Estimates (table DP04)				

TABLE 11: HOUSING UNIT DATA, 2023

	Number	Percent		
Built 1939 or earlier	690	3.5%		
Built 1940 to 1949	358	1.8%		
Built 1950 to 1959	1,366	6.9%		
Built 1960 to 1969	2,978	15.1%		
Built 1970 to 1979	1,926	9.8%		
Built 1980 to 1989	5,696	29.0%		
Built 1990 to 1999	3,320	16.9%		
Built 2000 to 2009	1,904	9.7%		
Built 2010 or later	1,390	7.0%		
Total	19,628	100.0%		
Median Year Structure Built 1984				
U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 2023 5-Year Estin B25035)	nates (table Di	°04 and		

HOUSING TYPE AND SIZE

The housing stock in Howell is generally divided into three different unit types. Single-family detached homes comprise approximately 80.3% percent of the Township's housing stock, while a further 10.9 percent of all units were single-family attached homes. The median number of rooms per unit was 7.0.

Units in Structure	Total	Percent	
Total	19,628	100%	
1 Unit, detached	15,767	80.3%	
1 Unit, attached	2,148	10.9%	
2 Units	43	0.2%	
3 or 4 Units	87	0.4%	
5 to 9 Units	474	2.4%	
10 to 19 Units	83	0.4%	
20 Units or more	338	1.7%	
Mobile home	688	3.5%	
Boat, RV, van, etc.	0	0.00%	
Rooms	Total	Percent	
1 room	106	0.5%	
2 rooms	62	0.3%	
3 rooms	511	2.6%	
4 rooms	1,612	8.2%	
5 rooms	2,386	12.1%	
6 or more rooms	14,951	76.1%	
Median number of rooms		7.0	
U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 2023 5-Year Estimates (DP04)			

TABLE 12: HOUSING UNITS BY TYPE, 2023

HOUSING VALUES AND CONTRACT RENTS

According to ACS 2023 5-Year Estimates, most housing units in Howell (42.7%) were valued at \$500,000 and greater. Table 13 provides a breakdown of home values for owner-occupied units within the Township. Only 775 owner-occupied housing units in Howell were worth less than \$100,000. The median value of an owner-occupied housing unit was \$456,900 at the time of the survey.

	H	Howell		uth County
	Number	Percentage	Number	Percentage
Total	17,267	100.0%	188,578	100%
Less than \$50,000	365	2.1%	3,202	1.7%
\$50,000 to \$99,999	410	2.3%	2,703	1.4%
\$100,000 to \$149,999	133	0.7%	1,760	0.9%
\$150,000 to \$199,999	159	0.9%	2,797	1.4%
\$200,000 to \$299,999	1,903	11.0%	12,780	6.8%
\$300,000 to \$499,999	6,917	40.1%	55,119	29.2%
\$500,000 and greater	7,380	42.7%	110,217	58.4%
Median Value	\$456,900 \$566,500			
U.S. Census Bureau, American Co	mmunity Survey 2023	3 5-Year Estimates (tal	ble DP04)	

TABLE 13: VALUE OF OWNER-OCCUPIED HOUSING UNITS, 2023

With respect to renter-occupied units, there are a range of rents, with a majority of the rental units in the Township carrying rental costs within the \$1,500 to \$1,999 range and \$2,500 to \$2,999 per month. At the time of the ACS 5-Year Estimates, the median gross rent in Howell was \$2,454. 174 units in the Township carried rental costs less than \$1,000 per month, and 0.0 percent of units did not require cash rent payments.

	н	Howell		outh County	
	Number	Percentage	Number	Percentage	
Total Renter Occupied Units	1,599	100.0%	59,223	100%	
Less than \$500	134	8.3%	4,045	6.8%	
\$500 to \$999	40	2.5%	3,453	5.8%	
\$1,000 to \$1,499	89	5.6%	13,711	23.1%	
\$1,500 to \$1,999	355	22.2%	15,499	26.1%	
\$2,000 to \$2,499	200	12.5%	10,920	18.4%	
\$2,500 to \$2,999	456	28.5%	6,150	10.3%	
\$3,000 or more	325	20.3%	5,445	9.1%	
No cash rent	0	0.0%	0	0.0%	
Median Contract Rent	\$2,454 \$1,771				
U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 2023 5-Year Estimates (table DP04)					

TABLE 14: GROSS RENT PAID

HOUSING CONDITIONS

According to the 2023 ACS, there were a minimal number of units exhibiting overcrowding (more than one person per room), lacking complete plumbing facilities or lacking complete kitchen facilities. Table 15 details the condition of housing within Howell based on plumbing facilities, kitchen facilities, and overcrowding. These factors are utilized in determining housing deficiency and general housing problems and are used as the basis to calculate the municipal rehabilitation obligation. According to the data, 1.1 percent of occupied housing units experienced over-crowding, while 0.1 percent of occupied units lacked complete plumbing facilities and 0.4 percent of units lacked complete kitchen facilities.

	Count	Percent		
Housing Units with 1.01 or More Persons Per Room				
1.01 to 1.5 occupants per room	168	0.9%		
1.51 or more occupants per room	38	0.1%		
Plumbing Facilities				
Total Occupied Housing Units	19,095	100.0%		
Lacking complete plumbing facilities	27	0.1%		
Kitchen Equipment				
Total Occupied Housing Units	19,095	100.0%		
Lacking complete kitchen facilities	72	0.4%		
U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Surve	ey 2023 5-Year Estim	ates (table DP04)		

TABLE 15: HOUSING DEFICIENCY CHARACTERISTICS

PROJECTED HOUSING STOCK

According to New Jersey Department of Community Affairs, Howell has issued building permits for 3,121 residential dwelling units between 2000 and 2023. During that same time period, the Township issued 271 residential demolition permits, adding a total of 2,850 dwelling units over this time period. Building permit data by year is summarized in Table 16 below.

Year	Construction Permits		Demolition Permits	Total Added		
	1&2 Family	Multi Family	Mixed Use	Total	Total	
2000	-	-	-	200	1	199
2001	-	-	-	115	10	105
2002	-	-	-	97	1	96
2003	-	-	-	127	2	125
2004	196	0	1	197	12	185
2005	182	0	0	182	9	173
2006	86	0	0	86	13	73
2007	118	0	0	118	17	101
2008	123	0	0	123	16	107
2009	69	0	0	69	8	61
2010	71	0	0	71	7	64
2011	66	0	0	66	17	49
2012	88	170	0	258	10	248
2013	154	0	0	154	9	145
2014	147	0	0	147	19	128
2015	129	62	0	191	25	166
2016	93	0	0	93	7	86
2017	91	0	0	91	7	84
2018	81	0	0	81	5	76
2019	74	72	0	146	9	137
2020	55	0	0	55	15	40
2021	129	0	0	129	16	113
2022	126	100	0	226	14	212
2023	98	1	0	99	22	77
Total	2,176	405	Communit	3,121	271	2,850
Source: New Jersey Department of Community Affairs Construction Reporter						

TABLE 16: BUILDING PERMITS AND DEMOLITION PERMITS ISSUED,2000 - 2023

EMPLOYMENT DATA

The 2023 ACS reports on work activity of residents aged 16 years and older. While the Township's working age population was 42,684 residents, Howell had an approximate labor force of 28,442 residents. Approximately 33.3 percent of the Township's working age residents were not participating in the labor force at the time of the estimates. The vast majority of the Township's labor force was employed in civilian jobs, while only 11 residents

reported being members of the armed forces. Approximately 3.0 percent of the Township's residents reported being unemployed.

	Hov	Howell		h County
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
Population 16 years and over	42,684	100.0%	529,352	100.0%
In labor force	28,442	66.6%	349,815	66.08%
Civilian Labor Force	28,431	66.6%	349,355	65.9%
Employed	27,131	63.5%	331,018	62.5%
Unemployed	1,300	3.0%	18,337	3.1%
Armed Forces	11	0.02%	460	0.1%
Not in labor force	14,242	33.3%	176,537	33.3%
U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Su	rvey 2023 5-Year Es	timates (table D	P03)	

TABLE 17: EMPLOYMENT STATUS

More than three quarters of the Township's workers were employed in private wage and salary positions, while 5.2 percent of workers are self-employed. Government workers comprise about 17.3 percent of the Township's workforce. Table 18 provides a breakdown of worker classifications.

	Number	Percent		
Total	27,313	100.0%		
Private Wage and Salary Worker	20,973	76.8%		
Government Worker	4,725	17.3%		
Self-Employed Worker	1,433	5.2%		
Unpaid Family Worker 0 0.0%				
U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 2023 5-Year Estimates (table DP03)				

 TABLE 18: CLASSIFICATION OF WORKERS IN HOWELL, 2023

An analysis of employees (over the age of 16) by economic sector indicates that employed working age individuals in Howell were involved in a range of economic sectors. As depicted in Table 19 below, the highest concentration of workers (27%) are employed in the educational, health care, and social services sectors. The professional scientific, management, administrative and waste management services employe, and retail trade sector employ 12.3 and 11.4 percent of the Township's workforce and employ the next highest concentrations of Township workers respectively.

Sector	Number	Percent
Civilian employed population 16 years and over	27,131	100.0%
Agriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting, mining	98	0.4%
Construction	2,133	7.9%
Manufacturing	1,823	6.7%
Wholesale Trade	607	2.2%
Retail Trade	3,080	11.4%
Transportation and Warehousing, and Utilities	1,265	4.7%
Information	854	3.1%
Finance and insurance, and real estate and rental and leasing	1,747	6.4%
Professional, scientific, and management, and administrative and waste management services	3,339	12.3%
Educational services, and health care and social assistance	7,251	26.7%
Arts, entertainment, and recreation, and accommodation and food services	2,392	8.8%
Other Services, except public administration	1,055	3.9%
Public administration	1,487	5.5%
U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 2023 5-Year Estimates (table DP03)	- · · ·	

TABLE 19: WORKFORCE BY SECTOR

Table 20 provides a percentage comparison of the Township's workforce against that of the County. The Township's profile of employment by sector generally mirrors that of the County. The three (3) highest percentages of the Township's and County's workforce were employed in Educational services, and health care and social assistance; Professional, scientific, and management, and administrative and waste management services; and Retail trade.

Sector	Howell	Monmouth County
Civilian employed population 16 years and over	27,131	331,018
Agriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting, mining	0.4%	0.4%
Construction	7.9%	6.9%
Manufacturing	6.7%	6.2%
Wholesale Trade	2.2%	2.4%
Retail Trade	11.4%	10.4%
Transportation and Warehousing, and Utilities	4.7%	4.4%
Information	3.1%	3.2%
Finance and insurance, and real estate and rental and leasing	6.4%	10.3%
Professional, scientific, and management, and administrative and waste management services	12.3%	15.5%
Educational services, and health care and social assistance	26.7%	24.3%
Arts, entertainment, and recreation, and accommodation and food services	8.8%	7.7%
Other Services, except public administration	3.9%	3.7%
Public administration	5.5%	4.3%
U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 2023 5 Year Estimates (table DP03)		

TABLE 20: COMPARISON OF WORKFORCE BY SECTORHOWELL AND MONMOUTH COUNTY, 2023

Table 21 provides a breakdown of occupations by type for the Township's employed civilian labor force. Approximately 48.4 percent of the Township's employed civilian labor force was employed in management, business, science and arts occupations, while 20.9 percent of the Township's employed work force worked in sales and office occupations.

TABLE 21: OCCUPATIONS BY TYPE	TABLE 21:	OCCUPATIONS	BY TYPE
-------------------------------	-----------	--------------------	---------

Occupation	Number	Percent
Employed Civilian population 16 years and over	27,131	100.0%
Management, business, science and arts occupations	13,119	48.4%
Service occupations	3,912	14.4%
Sales and office occupations	5,659	20.9%
Natural resources, construction and maintenance occupations	1,933	7.1%
Production Transportation and material moving occupations	2,508	9.2%
U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 2023 5-Year Estimates (table DP03)		

As indicated in Table 22 below, it is projected that Monmouth County will add 24,100 jobs by 2032. The Ambulatory Health Care Services, Transportation and Warehousing, and Management of Companies and Enterprises sectors are poised to experience the greatest increase in number of jobs over the course of the projection period.

Industry Title	2022 Actual Employment	2032 Projected Employment	Numeric Change	Annual Growth Rate	Percent Change	Outlook
Mining	0	50	13.6	0.0	0.0%	Stable
Utilities	16,250	16,900	650	4.1	4.0%	Growing
Construction	1,300	1,400	100	6.9	7.8%	Growing
Manufacturing	9,700	10,250	550	5.9	5.6%	Growing
Wholesale Trade	8,900	9,200	300	3.5	3.3%	Growing
Retail Trade	36,450	36,700	250	0.7	1.5%	Growing
Transportation and Warehousing	6,100	7,100	1,000	16.6	16.3%	Growing
Postal Service	1,050	1,000	-50	-6.8	-4.7%	Declining
Information	6,050	6,950	900	14.8	14.8%	Growing
Finance and Insurance	10,950	11,050	100	0.9	0.9%	Growing
Real Estate and Rental and Leasing	4,150	4,300	150	4.0	3.6%	Growing
Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services	21,850	22,650	800	3.9	3.6%	Growing
Management of Companies and Enterprises	4,150	4,800	650	15.3	15.7%	Growing
Administrative and Support and Waste Management and Remediation Services	14,650	15,450	800	5.4	5.4%	Growing
Educational Services	25,800	27,350	1,550	6.0	6.0%	Growing
Health Care and Social Assistance	51,200	57,750	6,550	12.7	12.7%	Growing
Ambulatory Health Care Services	24,450	29,550	5,100	20.8	20.9%	Growing
Hospitals	11,250	11,600	350	3.2	3.1%	Growing
Nursing and Residential Care Facilities	8,150	8,400	250	3.0	3.1%	Growing
Social Assistance	7,350	8,200	850	11.4	11.5	Growing
Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation	8,150	9,700	1,550	19.4	13.9%	Growing
Accommodation and Food Services	28,750	30,650	1,900	6.7	6.6%	Growing
Other Services (except	20,750	50,050	1,700	0.7	0.070	
Government)	14,150	15,450	1,300	9.1	9.2%	Growing
Government	14,350	15,150	800	5.3	5.5%	Growing
Total Federal Government	1.050	1.000	50	2.2	2.50/	Declining
Employment	1,950	1,900	-50	-3.3	-2.5%	
State Government, Excluding Education and Hospitals	1,300	1,200	-100	-7.3	-7.6%	Declining
Local Government, Excluding Education and Hospitals	11,100	12,050	950	8.3	8.6%	Growing
Federal Government, Excluding Post Office	900	900	0	0.8	0	Stable
Total Self Employed and Unpaid Family Workers, All Jobs	18,700	19,950	1,250	6.5	6.6%	Growing
Total All Industries	302,150	323,550	21,400	7.1	7.0%	Growing

Source: 2022-2032 Industry Employment Projections, NJ Department of Labor and Workforce Development

Lands Most Appropriate for Affordable Housing

An analysis was conducted to determine which areas of the Township could accommodate developments that address affordable housing need. This analysis reviews the Township's existing zoning and planned zoning changes, and outlines the Township's capacity to accommodate residential and non-residential growth projections. The following are included:

- An analysis of the available existing and planned infrastructure;
- The projected demand for types of uses permitted by zoning based on present and anticipated future demographic characteristics of the Township and anticipated land use patterns; and
- Factors, such as environmental conditions, that present constraints on development.

Infrastructure

Water and Sewer

The portion of the Township abutting or in the vicinity of US Hwy 9 is the largest contiguous portion of the Township inside of a sewer service area. Most of Howell Township falls outside of existing sewer service areas (SSA). The largest contiguous area to fall outside the SSA is Naval Weapons Station Earl, a US Navy ordinance depo located in the northernmost portion of Howell. Most of the remaining areas outside of the SSA are either low density communities and farms that rely on well water and septic tanks, or are publicly owned parks and green spaces.

Sewer service is provided by the Howell Township Utilities Department. They convey their sewer wastewater to the Oak Glen Water Treatment Plant for the residence. New Jersey American Water supplies water for public use and consumption to the Township. The water is drawn from groundwater from one of six well located within the Township as well as the Manasquan Reservoir.

Anticipated Demand and Land Use Patterns

The Township of Howell contains residential neighborhoods, commercial development, and public facilities. According to NJTPA population estimates projected to 2050, it is anticipated that the Township's population will grow to approximately 53,905 people. With clusters of development along major roadways including Route 9, as well as sprawled residential developments. Not all of the Town is developed, however, which provides opportunities for development from new construction as well as redevelopment on predeveloped properties.

Residential

Currently, the Township is zoned for Single Family housing in a majority of the zones. Per Ordinance #18-1990 §3, the Residential Mount Laurel Zone District was added, which permits multi-family development; and some areas have been zoned Residential Mount Laurel. The Township has opportunities to allow and encourage mixed-use development in its downtown area near commercial uses, permitting multifamily uses in areas potentially designated as mixed-use districts.

Non-Residential

Howell Township provides a variety of commercial, business, and office uses primarily concentrated along major roadways like U.S Route 9 and New Jersey Route 33. These corridors feature mixed uses of retail and businesses, service providers, and restaurants. Additional commercial pockets are found throughout Township. Given the Township's high development, opportunities for new commercial projects are limited. Future commercial projects and growth will more likely focus on redeveloping and repurposing sites.

Environmental Constraints

Howell Township contains a variety of environmental features, including wooded areas, lakes, creeks, and wetlands. The largest feature being the Manasquan Reservoir, located approximately in the center of the town. These features not only offer habitat for local wildlife, but also recreational opportunities for residents and visitors. Howell Township does not fall within any state or federal special resource areas such as the Highlands, Pinelands, or Coastal Area Facility Review Act (CAFRA) zones. By prioritizing conservation and mindful development practices, Howell Township aims to ensure that its environmental amenities continue to enrich the community and maintain their vital ecological functions for generations to come

<u>Historic</u>

There are no properties listed on the State or National Register of Historic Places. Historic status is not generally a major source of development constraint in Howell.

Existing Land Use Designations

The Township's land use designations have been continually examined and updated through the Master Plan Reexamination process. The last Reexamination Report was adopted on November 18, 2019. Exact definitions can be found in Chapter 188 Article X of the Municipal Ordinance.

The following districts comprise the Township's residential zones:

Residential: R-2, R-3, R-4, R-5, R-50, RMLD and MHP

- These residential zones are intended to support general residential uses and structures within the Township.; primarily single family unites, garden apartments, and townhomes The R-5 Zone is intended specifically to support an age0restricted housing project for residents 55 and over.
- The Mobile Home Park Zone is intended to provide a reasonable opportunity for the construction, maintenance and operation of a mobile home park as defined in \$188-80.

Agricultural Rural Estate: ARE-1, ARE-3, ARE-4, ARE-6, ARE-C, and RRC

- The Agricultural Rural zones is to minimize the impacts of development outside of the center areas identified on the Master Plan and preserve the agricultural uses and rural character of Howell.
- The RRC Recreational-Residential Community Zone is intended to encourage single family detached dwellings and certain recreational structures, such as tennis courts, swimming pools, and other structures intended for use of residents of the RRC members and their guests.
- The ARE-C is intended to allow for similar uses to those found in other Agricultural Rural zones, as well as public recreation/sports facilities and multi-generational family accommodations.

Age-Restricted: RAC

• The RAC Residential Adult Community zone is intended to provide for the development of an adult community in accordance with applicable federal and state laws and regulations.

Affordable Housing: RMLD and RMLD-2

• The RMLD Reserved Mount Laurel District is intended to support Howell in meeting its affordable housing obligation. The district also allows for general commercial uses, such as retail services, offices, and restaurants. The RMLD-2 zone is intended to allow for a 100% affordable housing development with a maximum of 72 multifamily units and does not permit any conditional uses.

The following districts comprise the Township's **commercial** zones:

Highway Commercial: *HC,* HD-1, HD-1S, HD-2, HD-3, HD-4, NC

• The purpose of Highway Development zones 1, 1S, 2, 3, and 4 is to provide for highwayoriented development in the US Hwy 9 corridor on lots larger than permitted in the HC- Highway Commercial Zone, which otherwise allows for similar commercial and retail uses.

• The NC Neighborhood Commercial Zone is intended to provide for limited retail and services in areas where they presently exist.

Special Economic Development: SED, SED-1, SED-2

• The purpose of the SED Special Economic Development zones is to provide for a variety of economic opportunities in areas of the Township where rail and highway infrastructure are readily available. The uses in these zones are generally similar, however, SED-2 has prohibited all forms of warehousing and permit self storage facilities as principal primary uses.

The following comprise the Township's *Misc* zones:

LC/OC and MIL

- **The LC/OC Land Conservation/Open Space Zone** District is intended to promote the conservation of open space areas in the Township of Howell and provide for beneficial public use and enjoyment of such areas through the preservation of such areas for passive uses maintained in their natural state.
- **The MIL Military (MIL)** Zone is intended to place property which is used and occupied by the United States federal government in association with Naval Weapons Station Earle (NWSE) in a zoning classification that is consistent with the existing uses. The zone provides permitted and accessory uses consistent with military operations and eliminates conflicting and incompatible other uses.

Consistency with the State Plan

This housing element is consistent with the plans and policies of the New Jersey State Development and Redevelopment Plan (SDRP). The Township is located within the PA 2 - Suburban, PA 4B – Rural Environmental Sensitive, Park, PA 5 – Environmental Sensitive, and PA 3 – Fringe State Planning areas. The Township's Master Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and other planning documents take care to ensure that development is permitted in ways that are consistence with the State Plan and sensitive nature of certain areas located within the Township.

Howell's planning documents are consistent with the State's goals for Stormwater Management, including the Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan and a Municipal Stormwater Management Plan. Municipal goals to implement stormwater management within these plans include but are not limited to reducing flood damage, minimizing stormwater runoff, maintaining groundwater recharge, minimizing pollutants in stormwater runoff. The Stormwater Management Plan includes water quality assessment locations, groundwater recharge areas, wetland and water land uses locations, and FEMA Flood map. The Stormwater Management Plan outlines strategies to implement stormwater management including public outreach methods and education programs, new development and redevelopment programs, ordinances, street sweeping, MS4 infrastructure, Municipal Maintenance yards and other similar operations, training, MS4 Mapping, and a Watershed Improvement Plan.

Public transportation is provided throughout Howell Township via NJ Transit Bus Routes.

FAIR SHARE PLAN

Fair Share Obligation Summary

The Fourth Round (2025-2035) housing obligation is based upon the figures calculated in the NJ Department of Community Affairs Affordable Housing Obligations for the 2025-2035 (Fourth Round) Methodology. The Borough's housing obligation is outlined in Table 21, below

Obligation Component	Number of Credits Required
Present Need	63
Prior Round Obligation (1987-1999)	955
Third Round "Gap" and Prospective Need (1999-2025)	895
Fourth Round Prospective Need (2025-2035)	304

TABLE 23: FAIR SHARE OBLIGATION SUMMARY

The following sections outline the Township's plan for complying with its Fair Share Obligation.

Satisfaction of the Township's Rehabilitation/Present Need Obligation

The Township of Howell's rehabilitation obligation is 63 units. Howell Township will continue to participate in Monmouth County Housing Improvement Program, which is administered by the Monmouth County Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program through an intergovernmental agreement between the Township and the County. In addition, the Township has established its own rehabilitation program to address both rental and for-sale rehabilitations. Howell Township anticipates completing six (6) rehabilitations per year to satisfy its obligation.

Prior Round Obligation

The Township satisfied its Prior Round obligation through 33 prior cycle credits, 330 previously approved RCA credits, and by providing 210 family rental units in two existing projects, 143 age-restricted rental units, 23 special needs/supportive needs housing units, and 231 bonus credits for the family rental units and special needs homes, for a total of 970 credits, including 15 additional or surplus credits which may be applied to the Third Round obligation.

Prior Round Projects	Affordable	Bonus	Unit Type	Status	
	Units/Credits	Credits			
Family Rental					
Countryside	180	180	Family Rental	Existing	
Verdana Project	30	30	Family Rental	Existing	
Age Restricted Rental					
Strickland Road (Crossroads at Howell)	44		Age Restricted Rental	Existing	
Friendship Gardens	99		Age Restricted Rental	Existing	
Supportive/ Special Needs Hou	sing				
Easter Seals Group Home	6	4	Supportive/Special Needs Housing	Existing	
Easter Seals Group Home	6	6	Supportive/Special Needs Housing	Existing	
Miller Group Home	4	4	Supportive/Special Needs Housing	Existing	
Farmingdale Group Home	5	5	Supportive/Special Needs Housing	Existing	
Open Door NJ	2	2	Supportive/Special Needs Housing	Existing	
RCA					
Asbury Park	102		RCA	Approved	
Belmar	86		RCA	Approved	
Freehold	142		RCA	Approved	
Prior Round Credits					
Prior Round Credits – Credits Without Controls	33		Prior Round Credits	Existing	
Subtotal	739	231	-	-	
Total (Credits + Bonus)	970	-	-	-	
Surplus Credits					
Total Credits	970	-	-	-	
Prior Round Obligation	955	-	-	-	
Surplus (Total Credits – Obligation) (Strickland/Crossroads at Howell)	15	-	-	-	

TABLE 24: PRIOR ROUND COMPLIANCE SUMMARY

Descriptions of each prior round project and mechanism are included below.

Family Rental Projects:

Countryside

Countryside Apartments is located at Block 138, Lot 42. The project contains 180 affordable family rental units. The project is completed and occupied.

Verdana Project

The Verdana Project is located at Block 129, Lots 85, 87, 88.01, and 88.02, on Verdana Way just east of Route 9. The site consists of approximately 30 acres. The site contains 60 total affordable rental units. A total of 30 of the affordable rental units are credited towards the prior round, and the remaining 30 units are being credited towards the third round obligation. The project is completed and occupied.

Age Restricted Rental Projects:

Strickland Road (Crossroads at Howell)

The Crossroads at Howell is located at Block 139, Lot 11.02 on approximately 8 acres, along Route 9. The project contains 85 age-restricted rental units. The credits for the project have been split between the Prior Round and the Third Round. In total, 44 units were allocated to the Prior Round. The project is completed and occupied.

Friendship Gardens

Friendship Gardens is located at Block 78.10, Lot 25.03 on approximately six acres. The project is located on New Friendship Road just west of Route 9 and contains 99 age-restricted affordable rental units. The project is completed and occupied.

Supportive/Special Needs Housing:

The Prior Round credited units include 23 supportive needs bedrooms. The facilities are operated by Easter Seals Inc., Miller Group Home Inc., SERV Achievement Centers, Inc., and The Open Door of New Jersey.

Easter Seals Inc. owns and operates:

- 1086 Maxim Southard Road (Block 26, Lot 7.03) 6 bedrooms
- 60 Hilltop Road (Block 84.08, Lot 74.01) 6 bedrooms

Miller Group Home Inc. operates the following facility, which is owned by Nicholas & Patricia Lucarelli:

• 645 Hulses Corner Road (Block 106, Lot 19) – 4 bedrooms

Farmingdale Group Home is owned and operated by SERV Achievements Centers, Inc.

• 383 Squankum Yellowbrook Road (Block 50, Lot 40) – 5 bedrooms

Open Door NJ operates the following facility, which is owned by Tibor & Ruth Gyiraszi.

• 1097 Lakewood Farmingdale Road (Block 38, Lot 26.02) – A 3 bedroom facility with 2 bedrooms credited to the Prior Round, and the remaining bedroom being credited towards the Third Round.

Regional Contribution Agreement (RCA):

As part of the regional contribution agreement, affordable housing credits were transferred to following the municipalities.

- Asbury Park 102 credits
- Belmar 86 credits
- Freehold 142 credits

Prior Cycle Credits:

The Township has 33 prior cycle credits for units that were constructed between April 1, 1980 and December 15, 1986. These credits are applicable to the Prior Round Obligation.

Third Round Obligation

Howell Township had a Third Round Obligation of 895 units, which was satisfied through the following compliance mechanisms:

Third Round Projects Affordable Bonus Unit Type							
	Units/Credits	Credits	onicippo				
Surplus Credits from Prior Round							
Strickland Road (Crossroads at	15		Age-Restricted Rental				
Howell)							
Age Restricted for Sale							
Strickland Road (Crossroads at	44		Age Restricted				
Howell)							
Family Rental							
Elon Associates	10		Family Rental				
Akabe Village	32		Family Rental				
Verdana (Sunny Side at Howell)	30		Family Rental				
Howell Family Apartments	72	72	Family Rental				
Haystock Woods (183-185	2		Family Rental				
Locust							
Avenue)							
Onoshko Estates (Brooktree Estates)	2		Family Rental				
Alpine Estates	2		Family Rental				
Shepherd Estates	1		Family Rental				
Kim & Rosseter	1		Family Rental				
Family for Sale							
Schuch Tract (Monmouth Chase)	6		Family for Sale				
FP Howell, LLC	92		Family for Sale				
Group Home							
Existing Group Homes	54		Group Home				
Offsite Group Home by Township	5		Group Home				
Age Restricted Rental							
Strickland Road (Crossroads at	41		Age-Restricted Rental				
Howell)							
Family Rental Proposed							
Zaback (21 Block 137 Lots 22-26)	108	102	Family Rental				
Quarry & Tyrpak (22 Block 143, Lots 6							
and 6.01 Block 144, Lot 14, 15, 20, 35,	138	50	Family Rental				
111, 112, 142, 145-150, 160-165,							
165.01, 167, 177, 178, 178.01 &							
178.02)							
Subtotal	683	224	-				
Total	907	-	-				
Third Round Obligation	895	-	-				
Surplus (Total Credits – Obligation)	12	-	-				

TABLE 25: THIRD ROUND COMPLIANCE SUMMARY

Descriptions of each third-round project and mechanism are included below.

Age Restricted Rental Projects

Strickland Road (Crossroads at Howell)

The Crossroads at Howell is located at Block 139, Lot 11.02 on approximately 8 acres along Route 9. The project contains 85 age-restricted rental units. The credits for the project have been split between the Prior Round and the Third Round. A total of 15 units were allocated to the Third Round.

Age-Restricted for Sale Project

Equestra at Colts Neck Crossing

Equestra at Colts Neck Crossing consists of Block 182, Lots 35, 36, 37, 38, 39, 40, 59, 66, 67.01, 70.02, 71.02, 71.03, 72, 73, 74, 75, 76, 77, 78, 79, and 80. The project is located on Route 33 and contains 72 age-restricted affordable units.

Family Rental Projects

Elon Associates

The Elon Associates site consists of Block 184, Lots 7, 8, 9, 10, and 14. The development has been approved to include 69 single-family residential lots and a 5,400 square foot multi-family residential building containing 10 affordable housing units. The property, comprised of 48 acres, is located at the northeasterly corner of the intersection of Yellowbrook Road and Adelphia Farmingdale Road.

Akabe Village

Akabe Village is located at Block 143, Lots 51, 52, and 53. The site is located on approximately 7 acres on Wyckoff Mills Road, just off Adelphia Farmingdale Road. The project contains 32 affordable family rental units.

Verdana Project

The Verdana Project is located at Block 129, Lots 85, 87, 88.01, and 88.02. The project is located on Verdana Way just east of Route 9 and consists of approximately 30 acres. The site contains 60 total affordable rental units. 30 of the units are being credited towards the Township's prior round obligation, and the remaining 30 units are being credited towards the third round obligation.

Howell Family Apartments

The Howell Family Apartment site is located at Block 135, Lot 26.01. The Howell Family Apartments includes 72 affordable housing units.

Haystock Woods

The Haystock Wood development consists of 14 market-rate residential units and includes 2 affordable housing units. It is situated on Locust Avenue.

Onoshko Estates (Aldrich Road)

The Onoshko Estates development (Brooktree Estates) consists of 16 market-rate residential units and 2 affordable housing units. The 9 acre site fronts on Aldrich Road at Block 54.01, Lot 11.01.

Alpine Estates (Ramtown-Greenville Road)

The property is known as Block 2, Lot 10 and contains 2 affordable housing units.

Shepherd Estates The property is known as Block 2, Lot 5 and contains one (1) affordable housing unit.

Kim & Rosseter The property is known as Block 144, Lot 143 and contains one (1) affordable housing unit.

Family for Sale Projects

Schuch Tract Development/Monmouth Chase (Fairfield Road)

The Schuch Tract development consists of 52 non-age restricted market-rate units and 6 affordable housing units. The development is located along Fairfield Road and contains approximately 134 acres.

FP Howell, LLC

The property is known as Block 110, Lot 166 and Block 135, Lot 2, and contains a total of 308 residential units, including 92 affordable units.

Group Homes

The Third Round credits include 54 group home bedrooms. The facilities are operated by AMIB Inc.; Benchmark Human Services; Community Options Inc.; Devereux New Jersey; Dungarvin New Jersey, LLC; EIHAB Human Services, Inc.; Everas Community Services, Inc.; Oaks Integrated Care; The Open Door NJ; and Res-Care NJ Inc.

AMIB Inc. owns and operates:

- 15 Maple Lane (Block 101, Lot 11) 4 bedrooms
- 39 Brookside Drive (Block 96, Lot 14) 3 bedrooms

Benchmark Human Services operates the following facilities, which are owned by the AWS Foundation:

- 34 West Farms Road (Block 157, Lot 25.04) 3 bedrooms
- 40 West Farms Road (Block 157, Lot 25.03) 4 bedrooms

Community Options Inc. owns and operates:

• 74 Scenic Drive (Block 141.01, Lot 48) - 3 bedrooms

Devereux New Jersey owns and operates:

- 1 Havens Bridge Road (Block 152 Lot 20) 3 bedrooms
- 15 Putnam Drive (Block 35.93, Lot 3) 6 bedrooms

Dungarvin New Jersey, LLC operates the following facility, which is owned by Eclipse Investments LLC.:

• 109 Milton Street (Block 54, Lot 1) – 3 bedrooms

EIHAB Human Services, Inc. owns and operates:

• 121 Starlight Road (Block 35.78, Lot 1) – 4 bedrooms

Everas Community Services, Inc. owns and operates:

• 387 Conover Street (Block 129, Lot 89.04) – 4 bedrooms

Everas Community Services, Inc. operates the following facility, which is owned by the New Jersey Association of the Deaf:

• 20 Winsted Drive (Block 35.57, Lot 10) – 4 bedrooms

Oaks Integrated Care, Inc. owns and operates:

- 2 Bock Boulevard (Block 93.03, Lot 1) 4 bedrooms
- 43 Tioga Drive (Block 78.06, Lot 76) 4 bedrooms

The Open Door NJ operates the following facility, which is owned by Tibor & Ruth Gyiraszi:

• 1097 Lakewood Farmingdale Road (Block 38, Lot 26.02) – 1 bedroom credited to the Third Round, from the 3 bedroom facility. The other 2 bedrooms have been credited to the Prior Round.

Res-Care NJ Inc. operates the following facility, which is owned by Outlook American, New Jersey, Inc.:

• 3 Boston Court (Block 84.14, Lot 30) – 4 bedrooms

The United Way of Bergen County

• 15 East 2nd Street (Block 122, Lot 7) – 5 bedrooms

Age Restricted Rental

Strickland Road (Crossroads at Howell)

The Crossroads at Howell is located at Block 139, Lot 11.02 on approximately 8 acres, which is located along Route 9. The project contains 85 age-restricted rental units. The credits for the project have been split between the Prior Round and the Third Round. 44 units were allocated to the Prior Round, and the remaining 41 units are being credited towards the Third Round.

Family Rental Proposed Projects

Zaback

The property is known as Block 137, Lots 22, 23, 24, 25, and 26 contains a total of 360 residential units, including 108 affordable units.

Quarry & Tyrpak

The property is known as Block 143, Lots 6 and 6.01, Block 144, Lots 14, 15, 20, 35, 111, 112, 142, 145-150, 160-165, 165.01, 167, 177, 178, 178.01, and 178.02. The site contains a total of 458 residential units, including 138 affordable units.

Fourth Round Obligation

The Township's Fourth Round Obligation is 304 units. Howell proposes to address this obligation through the following compliance mechanisms:

Affordable Housing Mechanism	Affordable Units	Bonus Credits	Total Credits			
Existing Units						
Affordability Control Extensions (FG)	91	91 4				
Surplus from Round 3	8		8			
Group Homes	38	23	46			
Woodmont Assisted Living	13	6.5	13			
New Inclusionary Development						
Forman	56	28	84			
Roberts	29	14.5	29			
Total	235	76	311			

TABLE 26: FOURTH ROUND COMPLIANCE SUMMARY

The Township anticipates a surplus of seven (7) credits to be able to be used for future obligations.

Existing Units

Extension of Controls – Friendship Gardens

Friendship Gardens is located at Block 78.10, Lot 25.03 on approximately six acres. The project is located on New Friendship Road just west of Route 9 and contains 99 agerestricted affordable rental units. The Township paid \$10,000 per unit for 91 units to extend these controls.

Surplus from Round 3

The Township of Howell will apply its 8 surplus credits from the Third Round to its Fourth Round obligation.

Group Homes

Howell seeks to take credit for 38 group homes in the Fourth Round.

Woodmont Assisted Living

Woodmont Assisted Living is an existing facility located within Howell Township. The Township is seeking credit for 135 beds.

New Construction

Two (2) new construction sites will provide additional affordable housing credits for the Township of Howell:

Forman

This project is located at Howell and Okerson Roads, and contains Block 164, Lot 5.01. This multi-family inclusionary development received approval from the Howell Township Planning Board on May 15, 2025 to construct a total of 286 units of which 58 units will be affordable. The site is available and developable. As part of the approvals for this project, the applicant agreed to extend sewer and water to the site. This project is located within 0.5 miles of mass transportation, permitting a 50% bonus, allowing for 29 bonus credits. This provides a total of 87 affordable housing credits.

Roberts

This project is located at the intersection of Route 9 & Estelle Lane and contains Block 71, Lots 20 and 21. A total of 147 units are proposed, including 29 affordable units. The site is available and developable. The site is located within the sewer service area and has access to public water. This project is located within 0.5 miles of mass transportation, permitting a 50% bonus, allowing for 14.5 bonus credits and providing a total of 43.5 affordable housing credits.

Bonus Credits

In the Fourth Round, 50% bonus credits are available for being within 0.5 miles of mass transportation. All three (3) new projects proposed within the Fourth Round are within 0.5 miles of NJ Transit Bus Stops and are eligible for bonus credits.

Bonus credits can be used for a maximum of 25% of the total obligation, allowing Howell Township to take credit for 76 bonus credits.

MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 39 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 40 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

APPENDICES

Appendix A: Spending Plan

HOWELL TOWNSHIP AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST FUND SPENDING PLAN June 2025

The Township of Howell has a history of compliance with its Mount Laurel affordable housing obligation and has previously implemented all necessary ordinances for establishing an affordable housing trust fund financed through the collection of mandatory development fees to assist in accomplishing the provision of affordable housing.

The Township has prepared a Fourth Round Housing Element and Fair Share Plan that advances a comprehensive strategy for meeting its regional share of affordable housing need in accordance with the intent of the Municipal Land Use Law (N.J.S.A. 40:55D-1 et seq.) and the Fair Housing Act (N.J.S.A. 52:27D-301), and in accordance with the procedural and substantive requirements of N.J.A.C. 5:93-1 et seq. and N.J.A.C. 5:91-1 et seq. The Township has actively participated in the Fourth Round compliance process.

The Township's existing development fee ordinance, codified as Chapter 188, Article XXI of the Township's General Legislation, most recently revised in 2019, will be updated and continue to require and regulate the collection of residential and non-residential development fees as revenue for the Township's affordable housing trust fund. The sections below outline the Township's plan for the administration and use of collected development fee revenues as per the requirements of N.J.A.C. 5:93-5.1(c).

I. Projected Revenues 2025 through 2035

A projection of anticipated revenues to be collected during the tenure of the Fourth Round has been calculated based on historical annualized trends in the amount of development fees collected to date.

As of December 31, 2024, the Township had collected \$3,111,294.75 in development fees for the year 2024. The Township of Howell projects a total of \$6,916,446.47 in revenue and interest to be collected from January 1, 2025, to December 31, 2035. This projected amount, when added to the trust fund balance from December 31, 2024, results in an anticipated total revenue of \$16,931,864.44 available to fund and administer the Township's affordable housing plan and programs. All interest earned on the account shall accrue to the account and be used only for the purposes of affordable housing. See the Projected Revenues Table, appended to the end of this Spending Plan.

II. Administrative Mechanisms for Collecting and Distributing Revenues

The Township's Development Fee Ordinance is recorded in Chapter 188, Subsections 179 through 180 of Howell's General Ordinance. Procedures for collection, administration, and distribution of development fees as affordable housing trust fund revenues are fully established in this section. The Township's ordinance complies with P.L. 2008, c.46 section

8 (C. 52:27D-329.2) and the Statewide Non-Residential Development Fee Act (C. 40:55D-8.1 through 8.7).

The Development Fee Ordinance covers the following general topics:

- 1. Determination of residential development fees;
- 2. Determination of non-residential development fees;
- 3. Fee collection procedures;
- 4. Operation of the affordable housing trust fund;
- 5. Permitted uses of funds;
- 6. Monitoring; and
- 7. Ongoing collection of fees as related to affordable housing compliance.

All development fees are deposited in a separate affordable housing trust fund held in an account at Wells Fargo. Per stipulations in the Development Fee Ordinance the account and the record of distribution of funds is maintained by the Township's Chief Financial Officer.

III. Anticipated Use of Development Fees

As per the Township's ordinance, development fees shall be used for the sole purpose of providing low- and moderate-income housing. Funding mechanisms can be set up as a grant or revolving loan program to cover costs associated activities including, but not limited to, the following:

- 1. Preservation or purchase of housing for maintaining or implementing affordability controls;
- 2. Rehabilitation grants;
- 3. New construction of affordable housing units and related costs;
- 4. Implementing accessory apartment, market to affordable, or regional housing partnership programs;
- 5. Conversion of existing non-residential buildings to create new affordable units;
- 6. Green building strategies designed to be cost saving and in accordance with accepted national or State standards;
- 7. Purchase of land or improvement of land to be used for affordable housing;
- 8. Extensions or improvements of roads and infrastructure to affordable housing sites;
- 9. Financial assistance designed to increase affordability; and
- 10. Administration necessary for implementation of the Housing Element and Fair Share Plan.

(A) Anticipated Rehabilitation and New Projects

Rehabilitation

The Township anticipates dedicating \$3,780,000 to its rehabilitation program. As discussed in the Housing Element and Fair Share Plan, Howell has a rehabilitation present need obligation of 63 units. To address this need, the Township plans to

provide eligible households with the equivalent grant funding to meet this obligation at an estimated cost of \$60,000 per grant. The Township anticipates rehabilitating an average of 6 units per year to satisfy its rehabilitation obligation. See the Projected Expenditures table appended to the end of this spending plan for a yearly breakdown of rehabilitation program expenditures.

Infrastructure Improvements

The Township of Howell has agreed to provide \$800,000 to aid in water and sewer upgrades necessary to complete the Forman project, an inclusionary development included as a credited project in the Fourth Round plan.

(B) Affordability Assistance Requirement

The Township anticipates dedicating \$5,206,000 to its affordability assistance program.

As per the requirements of N.J.A.C. 5:93-8.16, at least thirty (30%) percent of all development fees and interest earned shall be used to provide low- and moderateincome households in affordable units with affordability assistance. One-third of the required affordability assistance shall specifically be used to provide affordability assistance to very low-income households (i.e. those households earning thirty percent or less of regional median income).

The projected minimum affordability assistance requirement through 2035 is calculated as follows:

Trust fund balance as of 12/31/24	\$10,015,417.97
Projected development fees plus interest, 2025 - 2035	\$6,916,446.47
PROJECTED TOTAL	\$16,931,864.44
Projected minimum affordability assistance requirement (30%)	\$ 5,079,559.33
Projected minimum required for very low-income households (1/3 of total affordability assistance)	\$ 1,693,186.44

Table 1. Minimum Affordability Assistance

Affordability assistance programs may include down payment assistance; security deposit assistance; low interest loans; rental assistance; assistance with homeowner's association or condominium fees and special assessments; and assistance with emergency repairs.

Affordability assistance to households earning thirty (30%) percent or less of median

income may further include buying down the cost of low- or moderate-income units in the municipal Fair Share Plan to make them affordable to households earning thirty (30%) percent or less of median income.

(C) Administrative Expenses

Howell Township may contract with a private or public entity to administer any part of its Housing Element and Fair Share Plan. Also in accordance with N.J.A.C. 5:93-8.16, the Township can use up to twenty (20%) percent of all revenues collected from development fees on administration, including, but not limited to, salaries and benefits for municipal employees or consultant fees necessary to develop or implement a new construction program, rehabilitation program, a Housing Element and Fair Share Plan, an affirmative marketing program, income qualification of households, monitoring the turnover of sale and rental units, and/or compliance with monitoring requirements.

The projected maximum administrative expenditures through 2035 is calculated as follows:

Trust fund balance as of 12/31/24	\$10,015,417.97
Projected development fees plus interest, 2025 - 2035	\$6,916,446.47
PROJECTED TOTAL	\$16,931,864.44
Projected maximum administrative expenditures (20%)	\$ 3,386,372.89

Table 2. Maximum Administrative Expenditures

IV. Schedule for New or Rehabilitated Housing Units

The schedule for new or rehabilitated housing units is documented by year in the Projected Expenditures table attached to this Spending Plan.

V. Expenditure Schedule

The schedule for expenditures by year can be found in Table 3 attached to this Spending Plan.

VI. Excess of Funds

In the event that more funds than anticipated are collected, these excess funds will be used to fund additional rehabilitation and/or affordability assistance programs.

VII. Barrier Free Escrow

Collection and distribution of barrier free funds shall be consistent with the Township's

Affordable Housing Ordinance in accordance with N.J.A.C. 5:97-8.5. A process describing the collection and distribution procedures for barrier free escrow funds pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:97-8.5 is detailed within the Affordable Housing Ordinance.

VIII. In Sum

Howell has prepared this Spending Plan in support of the implementation of its Fourth Round Housing Element and Fair Share plan, and in accordance with the administrative requirements of N.J.A.C. 5:93-1 et seq. The Township has a balance of \$10,015,417.97 as of December 31, 2024 and anticipates an additional \$6,916,446.47 in revenues, including interest, by December 31, 2035 for a total of \$16,931,864.44. The Spending Plan represents the Township's intended use of development fee revenues that are collected in its Housing Trust Fund, illustrating how the Township will use these funds to provide for its fair share of regional affordable housing need. This will leave a balance of \$3,759,739.44, which the Township will reserve in the event that an additional affordable housing project becomes necessary. The Spending Plan represents the Township's intended use of development fee revenues that are collected in its Housing Trust Fund, illustrating how the Township will use these funds to provide for its fair share of regional affordable housing project becomes necessary. The Spending Plan represents the Township's intended use of development fee revenues that are collected in its Housing Trust Fund, illustrating how the Township will use these funds to provide for its fair share of regional affordable housing need.

Projected Balance available for Future Projects and Programs	Total \$ 1,954,000.00 \$ 1,154,000.00 \$ 1,154,500.00 \$ 1,154,500.00 \$ 1,154,125.00 \$ 1,149,000.00 \$ 1,149,000.00	Administrative Costs \$ 320,000.00 \$ 320,000.00 \$ 320,500.00 \$ 320,500.00 \$ 320,125.00 \$ 315,000.00 \$ 315,000.00 \$ 315,000.00	Affordability Assistance \$ 474,000.00 \$ 474,000.00 \$ 474,000.00 \$ 474,000.00 \$ 474,000.00 \$ 474,000.00 \$ 474,000.00 \$ 474,000.00 \$	Infrastructure Improvements \$ 800,000.00	Rehabilitation Program \$ 360,000.00 \$ 360,000.00 \$ 360,000.00 \$ 360,000.00 \$ 360,000.00 \$ 360,000.00 \$ 360,000.00 \$ 360,000.00 \$	Type 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032	Projected Expenditures for 2025-2035	Total \$ 13,301,007.04 \$ 3,327,939.87 \$ 3,360,226.99 \$ 3,392,514.10 \$ 3,424,807.40 \$ 3,457,185.26 \$ 3,489,563.13 \$ 3,521,940.99	Interest on total account balance (1.65%) \$ 174,294.32 \$ 216,645.12 \$ 248,932.24 \$ 281,219.35 \$ 313,512.65 \$ 345,890.51 \$ 378,268.38 \$ 410,646.24	Other funds S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S	Pmts in lieu of construction \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Projected Development Fees \$ 3,111,29475 \$ 3,111,29475 \$ 3,111,29475 \$ 3,111,29475 \$ 3,111,29475 \$ 3,111,29475 \$ 3,111,29475 \$ 3,111,29475 \$ 3,111,29475 \$ 3,111,29475 \$	AHTF Balance as of 12/31/2024 \$ 10,015,417.97 \$	Funding Source 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032	Projected Revenues for 2025-2035	Township of Howell, New Jersey
rograms	-	÷	÷		\$		15-2035	\$	\$	-					-2035	ersey
	\$ 1,149,000.00	\$ 315,000.00 \$	\$ 474,000.00 \$		\$ 360,000.00 \$			\$ 3,521,940.99	\$ 410,646.24 \$	\$	\$ - \$	\$ 3,111,294.75				
	\$ 1,054,000.00 \$ 1,054,000.00	280,000.00 \$ 280,000.00	474,000.00 \$ 474,000.00		300,000.00 \$ 300,000.00	2033 2034		\$ 3,555,886.35 \$ 3,589,831.72	444,591.60 \$ 478,536.97	- \$ -	- \$ -	\$ 3,111,294.75 \$ 3,111,294.75		2033 2034		
	\$ 1,046,000.00	\$ 280,000.00	\$ 466,000.00		\$ 300,000.00	2035		\$ 3,623,909.08	\$ 512,614.33	\$	\$	\$ 3,111,294.75		2035		
\$ 3,759,739.44	\$ 13,172,125.00	\$ \$ 3,386,125.00	\$ 5,206,000.00	\$ 800,000.00	\$ 3,780,000.00	Total		\$ 16,931,864.44	\$ 3,805,151.72	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 3,111,294.75	\$ 10,015,417.97	Total		

Appendix B: Forman Ordinance

ORDINANCE 25-07

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE X OF THE TOWNSHIP CODE ENTITLED "ZONES" CREATING A SECTION 188-84.5 ENTITLED "MODERATE- AND LOW-INCOME HOUSING OVERLAY ZONE 15" KNOWN AS ML-15 ZONE

WHEREAS, the Township of Howell, County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, (hereinafter, "Township" or "Howell") has a demonstrated history of voluntary compliance with its constitutional affordable housing obligations and in fact obtained a Final Round Three Judgment of Compliance and Repose on from the Court in the matter captioned <u>In the Matter of the Application of the Township of Howell, County of Monmouth</u>, Superior Court of New Jersey, Law Division, Docket No. MON-L-2525-15 thereby immunizing the Township from builder's remedy litigation until July 1, 2025 (the "Third Round Litigation"); and

WHEREAS, all Third Round Litigation projects are currently under various stages of development from pre-construction to completion and occupancy;

WHEREAS, on March 20, 2024, the Governor signed into law P.L. 2024, c.2, an Amendment to the 1985 Fair Housing Act (hereinafter "Amended FHA" or the "Act"); and

WHEREAS, the Amended FHA required the Department of Community Affairs ("DCA") to provide an estimate of the Present Need, also referred to as the rehabilitation obligation, and the Round 4 Prospective Need (new construction) affordable housing obligation of all municipalities by October 20, 2024 for the Fourth Round period, July 1, 2025 through July 1, 2035.

WHEREAS, the DCA issued a report on October 18, 2024 ("DCA Report") estimating the Present Need and the Round 4 Prospective Need obligation for all municipalities based upon its interpretation of the standards in the Act, including Howell Township and the DCA Report calculated Howell's Round 4 (2025-2035) Present Need (Rehabilitation) Obligation as 63 units and its Round 4 Prospective Need Obligation as 338 affordable housing units; and

WHEREAS, the Amended FHA provides that, irrespective of the DCA's calculations, municipalities have the ability to either accept, or provide alternate calculations for, the DCA's "present and prospective fair share obligation(s)...by binding resolution no later than January 31, 2025", a deadline which was later extended to February 3, 2025 by the Administrative Office of the Courts ("AOC") via a directive issued on December 19, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the Township Council adopted Resolution 25-69 on January 21, 2025 rejecting the DCA's calculation of its prospective need obligation calculation of 338 affordable housing units premised upon the Township Planner's analysis that the areas the DCA identified as developable are overinclusive thereby reducing the Land Capacity Allocation Factor from 2.45 % to 1.99 % resulting in the reduction of the prospective need (New Construction) obligation from 338 to 276 affordable housing units; and

WHEREAS, the Acting Administrative Director issued Directive #14-24, dated December 13, 2024, requiring a municipality seeking a certification of compliance with the Act to file an action in the form of a declaratory judgment complaint within 48 hours after adoption of the municipal resolution of fair share obligations, or by February 3, 2025, whichever is sooner; and

WHEREAS, the Township filed a Declaratory Judgment Complaint on January 23, 2025 seeking Program and Court approval of its prospective need obligation at 276 affordable housing units and the Township is required by the Act to adopt a Housing Element and Fair Share Plan setting forth its strategy to meet its affordable housing obligation by June 30, 2025;

WHEREAS, the Township received a proposal from AAFFHW Property, LLC, 5144 West Hurley Pond Road, Wall, New Jersey (the "Developer") to construct an inclusionary project comprised of 290 residential units with a twenty percent set aside of 58 affordable housing units (the "Project") on the property identified as Block 164, Lot 5.01 on the tax map of the Township of Howell located on Okerson and Howell Roads in the Township (the "Property") for which the Township will be eligible for up to 87 affordable housing credits due to the Property's proximity to mass transit; and

WHEREAS, the Township is requiring the Developer to enter into a Developer's Agreement with the Township to ensure the Developer will construct the Project in conformance with the concept plan and this ordinance and this ordinance shall not become effective unless and until the Township enter into a Developer's Agreement with the Township so that the Township may rely upon the Project to meet a portion of its Fourth Round affordable housing obligation; and

WHEREAS, the Township Council believes it is in the best interest of the Township's residents to continue to meet its constitutional obligation to provide for its fair share of affordable housing in the least impactful way as possible to its current residents and in order to remain immune from builder's remedy litigation through the adoption of an ordinance rezoning the Property to allow for the Project to be developed in accordance with the Concept Plan and the zoning standards set forth in this Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Township Council of the Township of Howell, County of Monmouth, and State of New Jersey that Chapter 188 "Land Use", Article X of the Township Code entitled "Zones" is hereby amended to create a Section 188-84.5 entitled "Moderate and Low- Income Housing Zone 15 (ML-15) " as follows:

188-84.5. Moderate- and Low- Income Housing Overlay Zone 15 (ML-15)

A. Purpose:

- (1) In accordance with its continuing constitutional obligation to meet its Fourth Round affordable housing obligation, the Township is obligated to create a realistic opportunity to provide for its fair share of affordable housing in accordance with applicable affordable housing statutes and regulations.
 - (2) <u>The Moderate—and Low Income Housing Zone 15 (ML-15) District is</u> <u>intended to assist the Township in complying with its Fourth Round</u> <u>affordable housing obligation. The following property is included in the</u> <u>ML-15 Zoning District: Block 164, Lot 5.01.</u>

- (3) <u>The zoning standards authorized by this Ordinance shall constitute an</u> <u>overlay zone and the underlying zoning for the Property shall remain in</u> <u>effect.</u>
- **B.** Definitions:
 - (1) <u>Stacked Townhouse dwelling: a structure containing two or more connected</u> <u>dwelling units stacked one dwelling unit above the other, which can include</u> <u>shared floors divided by walls and shared common party walls, with private</u> <u>entrances to each unit. A building may contain both stacked townhouse</u> <u>dwellings and townhouse dwellings.</u>
- C. ML-15 Zoning Standards
 - The Property is a twenty-nine acre (29.80 AC) tract designated as Block 164, Lot 5.01, as per the Howell Township Tax Map sheet 8.38. The Zoning Map of the Township of Howell, as amended, is hereby further amended to provide that Site 1 (Block 164, Lot 5.01 of the Howell Township Tax Map) is supplementally designated as the Moderate- and Low- Income Housing Overlay Zone 15 (ML-15).
 - (2) <u>The requirements of the ML-15 Overlay Zone including bulk requirements</u>, <u>are hereby specifically set forth as follows. The following overlay zone shall</u> <u>provide an alternative development opportunity to allow for flexibility from</u> <u>the underlying zoning requirements. The modifications are as follows:</u>
 - (a) <u>Permitted uses Multiple principally permitted uses and permitted</u> buildings shall be permitted on the same lot.
 - [1] <u>Permitted principal uses A single building may contain one</u> or more of the following:
 - [a] Stacked Townhouse dwellings
 - [b] <u>Townhouse dwellings- as defined in Howell Township</u> Ordinance Section 188-4
 - (b) Permitted accessory uses
 - [1] <u>Off-street parking, subject to the Residential Site Improvement</u> <u>Standards (RSIS) New Jersey Administrative Codes, Title 5,</u> <u>Chapter 21.</u>
 - [2] <u>Active and passive recreational, and other such facilities for</u> <u>the exclusive use or service of the development and their guests,</u> <u>including but not limited to: fitness centers, playgrounds,</u> <u>landscaped trails, parks, clubhouses, maintenance buildings,</u> <u>picnic grounds, dog parks.</u>
 - [3] <u>Utilities and utility structures including but not limited to;</u> <u>pump stations, pump house, water tank, treatment facilities,</u> <u>stormwater basins, transformers, meters, etc. necessary for the</u> <u>proper distribution and monitoring of these services.</u>
 - [4] All other utilities appurtenant to subject development.

- [5] Any other uses that are customarily incidental and subordinate to a principal use and/or principal building.
- Permitted accessory structures (c)
 - [1] Garage
 - Sheds. [2]
 - [3] Gazebo
 - [4] <u>Trellis</u>
 - [5] Decks
 - [6] Patios
 - [7] Fences and walls
 - [8] Signs
 - [9] Dog-parks
 - [10] Swimming Pools
 - [11] Pool Cabana
 - [12] Structures relating to utilities
 - [13] Temporary sales trailer and construction trailers
 - [14] Mail kiosk/cluster box unit
 - [15] Separate mail structure/building
 - [16] Trash enclosure associated with proposed amenity area
 - [17] Meter cabinets or meter sheds
 - [18] Other customary structures which are incidental and ancillary to a principal use and/or principal building
- Residential dwelling requirements (d)
 - Maximum number of Total Units: 290 housing units inclusive [1] of affordable units
 - Affordable housing units set aside shall be 20% of the total [2] number of approved units, with all units for low- and moderateincome housing in accordance with the Uniform Housing Affordability Controls (UHAC)
 - Maximum number of units per building: 10 [3]
- Maximum Building Length: 240 feet (e)
- Area, Yard, Bulk and Site Design Requirements **(f)**
 - Minimum building setback from external right-of-way: 50 feet [1]
 - Minimum building setback from off-street parking areas: 10 [2] feet
 - [3] Minimum building setback from all internal streets (measured from face of curb): 20 feet
 - Zero (0) setback lot line for units in the same building [4]
 - Minimum distance between buildings: [5]
 - Front to front: 60 feet [a]
 - Side to side: 20 feet (excluding porches and common [b] utility rooms, common meter banks, which may encroach up to 5 feet, and eaves, chimneys/fireplaces, bay windows and other ornamental architectural

features which may encroach up to 3 feet into the required separation)

- [c] Side to front / rear: 20 feet
- [d] <u>Rear to rear: 20 feet</u>
- [e] <u>At grade patios, decks and balconies shall be allowed in</u> rear setbacks
- [f] Driveways can be allowed within side yard setback, however no closer than three (3) for end units and zero (0) setback for interior units
- [g] <u>The following structures shall be permitted in the front</u> vard area:
 - 1. Hot boxes for domestic water service
 - 2. Sewer Pumping Station
 - 3. Trash Receptacles with enclosure
 - 4. Mailbox clusters/kiosks
 - 5. Separate mail structure building
- [6] Minimum Lot Width 20 feet
- [7] Minimum Lot Depth 65 feet
- [8] Maximum building coverage (overall tract): 35%
- [9] Maximum impervious coverage (overall tract): 60%
- [10] <u>Maximum building height: 45 feet measured from the finished</u> grade to the eave of the roof of each housing unit.
- (g) Miscellaneous Standards
 - [1] <u>Porous pavement shall be permitted pursuant to standards in</u> NJAC 7:8
 - [2] Driveways shall be a minimum of eleven (11) feet in width
- (h) Parking requirements shall be governed by the New Jersey Residential
- Site Improvement Standards at N.J.A.C. 5:21. [1] Parking is permitted within circulation drives
- (i) Additional requirements and exceptions from other requirements
 - [1] Buffers and screening shall exempt from regulations 188-63
 - [2] <u>A fifty (50) foot perimeter four (4) season buffer shall be</u> provided around all sides of the proposed development.
 - [3] <u>All fences and walls proposed shall be exempt from the</u> <u>standards found within §188-12A, regarding 50% open space</u> for light and air requirement for fences and retailing walls within the front yard setback
 - [4] <u>Stormwater management discharge features (such as spillways</u> <u>and pipes) and disturbance as necessary associated with</u> <u>stormwater discharge as well as utility structures (such as a hot</u> <u>box) shall be exempt from the standards found within §188-63D regarding buffers and screening.</u>
 - [5] Waiver of cost generation measures

- [a] <u>Preparation and submission of a Woodland</u> <u>Management Plan Section 188-187 through 202</u>
- [b] <u>Waiver of cost generative measures pursuant to NJAC</u> 5:93-10.1 et seq. in order to permit the intended, agreed upon development of the property the Township agrees to abide by the COAH regulations against cost measures.
- [c] <u>Any inclusionary development within the ML-15 Zone</u> <u>shall be subject to the provisions NJAC 5:93-10.2,</u> <u>which set forth limitations on applications</u> <u>requirements and provide a standards of review for the</u> <u>Planning Board for necessary variances or deviations</u> <u>necessary to accomplish the intent of the district.</u>
- [6] <u>Exemption from Street Tree Ordinance Section 188-122. Street</u> <u>trees will be provided where appropriate but shall be exempt</u> <u>from the requirement of a tree every twenty (20) feet along the</u> <u>roadway.</u>
- [7] <u>Exemption from Section 188-221C(7)</u>, basins shall be no closer than 20 feet of building.
- Retaining walls shall be exempt from the provisions set forth [8] in 134-7B(2), (9) and 134-7C(3). As such the project will be graded to allow infiltration and to both capture some of the stormwater and to allow some of the stormwater runoff to drain over the wall to existing grades. The maximum height for a retaining wall in the ML 15 Zone shall be six feet. In the event of stepped retaining walls, there shall be a minimum of four feet between each such retaining wall. A retaining wall shall not be subject to the requirements of the Township Code 188-12 but shall be subject to the provisions of the section of the Township Code 134-7 and the applicable provisions of the New Jersey State Uniform Construction Code, NJAC 5:23-1.1 et seq., including NJAC 5:23-2.14(g) except that the Township Code 134-7C(1) shall not be applicable, and retaining walls shall be permitted at or up to the property line of a lot
- [9] <u>Steep slopes shall be defined as slopes greater than 20% over a</u> minimum run of ten (10) feet
- [10] <u>The provisions of Section 188-212 et seq. (Stormwater Control)</u> <u>shall be applicable within the ML-15 Zone. However, in the</u> <u>event that the provisions of Section 188-212 conflict with or</u> <u>impose requirements other than those set forth within the</u> <u>provisions of the Residential Site Improvement Standards,</u> <u>NJAC 5:21 (RSIS), the RSIS shall control.</u>
- [11] Exempt from Section 188-16 with respect to setbacks. The Pump Station shall be adequately buffered and fenced, but no berm shall be required.

 [12] With respect to Section 188-23 topsoil shall be stockpiled and repurposed throughout the site to the maximum extent possible.
 [13] Exempt from Section 188-22 Lighting

SECTION 2. REPEALER

The remainder of all other sections and subsections of the aforementioned ordinances not specifically amended by this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 3. INCONSISTENT ORDINANCES

All other Ordinances or parts thereof inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed as to such inconsistency, but only to the extent of such inconsistency.

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY

If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, such adjudication shall apply only to the section, paragraph, subdivision, clause or provision so adjudged and the remainder of this Ordinance shall be deemed valid and effective.

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication according to law, subject to, and contingent upon, the approval and execution of a Developer's Agreement between the Township and the Developer, its successor and/or assigns.

NOTICE

The Ordinance published herewith was introduced and passed on first reading by the Township Council of the Township of Howell on February 18, 2025 and will be further considered for final passage and adoption at the Township Municipal Building on 4567 Route 9 North, Howell, New Jersey on March 4, 2025 at 7:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as the matter can be reached on the Agenda, at which time and place all persons interested therein shall be given an opportunity to be heard and during the week prior thereto, and up to, and including, the date of such meeting, copies of said Ordinance will be available at the Clerk's Office in the Township of Howell Municipal Building to the members of the general public who shall request same.

Introduction:

COUNCIL	MOTION	2ND	AYES	NAYS	ABSTAIN	ABSENT
COUNCIL	WOTION					X
Councilwoman Fischer						~
Councilman Nadel	X		X			
Councilwoman O'Donnell			X			
Deputy Mayor Gasior		Х	X			
Mayor Leggio			X			

I, Diane Festino, Municipal Clerk of the Township of Howell, in the County of Monmouth, State of New. Jersey, hereby certify this to be a true copy of the action of the Mayor and Township Council, at its Meeting held February 18, 2025. WITNESS my hand this 19th day of February 2025.

all

DIANE FESTINO, RMC Municipal Clerk Township of Howell

This is to certify that the foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the Township Council at a regular meeting of the Township of Howell held on March 4, 2025.

Adoption:

COUNCIL	MOTION	2ND	AYES	NAYS	ABSTAIN	ABSENT
Councilwoman Fischer			Х			
Councilman Nadel	X		Х			
Councilwoman O'Donnell		Х	X			v
Deputy Mayor Gasior						×
Mayor Leggio			X			

I, Diane Festino, Municipal Clerk of the Township of Howell, in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, hereby certify this to be a true copy of the action of the Mayor and Township Council, at its Meeting held March 4, 2025. WITNESS my hand this 5th day of March 2025.

and

DIANE FESTINO, RMC Municipal Clerk Township of Howell

MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 57 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

Explanatory Statement: This ordinance creates the Moderate- and Low-Income Housing Overlay Zone 15 (ML-15) and development standards to include a townhome and stacked townhome development totaling 290 units on Block 164, Lot 5.01. The proposed development also includes 58 affordable units to meet the Township's obligation towards its State mandated affordable housing units.

Appendix C: Roberts Ordinance

HOWELL TOWNSHIP, MONMOUTH COUNTY

ORDINANCE 2025-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE X OF THE TOWNSHIP CODE ENTITLED "ZONES" CREATING A SECTION 188-84.6 ENTITLED "MODERATE- AND LOW-INCOME HOUSING MIXED USE OVERLAY ZONE 16" KNOWN AS ML-16 ZONE

WHEREAS, the Township of Howell, County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, (hereinafter, "Township" or "Howell") has a demonstrated history of voluntary compliance with its constitutional affordable housing obligations and in fact obtained a Final Round Three Judgment of Compliance and Repose on from the Court in the matter captioned <u>In the Matter of the Application of the Township of Howell, County of Monmouth</u>, Superior Court of New Jersey, Law Division, Docket No. MON-L-2525-16 thereby immunizing the Township from builder's remedy litigation until July 1, 2025 (the "Third Round Litigation") ; and

WHEREAS, all Third Round Litigation projects are currently under various stages of development from pre-construction to completion and occupancy;

WHEREAS, on March 20, 2024, the Governor signed into law P.L. 2024, c.2, an Amendment to the 1985 Fair Housing Act (hereinafter "Amended FHA" or the "Act"); and

WHEREAS, the Amended FHA required the Department of Community Affairs ("DCA") to provide an estimate of the Present Need, also referred to as the rehabilitation obligation, and the Round 4 Prospective Need (new construction) affordable housing obligation of all municipalities by October 20, 2024 for the Fourth Round period, July 1, 2025 through July 1, 2035.

WHEREAS, the DCA issued a report on October 18, 2024 ("DCA Report") estimating the Present Need and the Round 4 Prospective Need obligation for all municipalities based upon its interpretation of the standards in the Act, including Howell Township and the DCA Report calculated Howell's Round 4 (2025-2035) Present Need (Rehabilitation) Obligation as 63 units and its Round 4 Prospective Need Obligation as 338 affordable housing units; and

WHEREAS, the Amended FHA provides that, irrespective of the DCA's calculations, municipalities have the ability to either accept, or provide alternate calculations for, the DCA's "present and prospective fair share obligation(s)...by binding resolution no later than January 31, 2025", a deadline which was later extended to February 3, 2025 by the Administrative Office of the Courts ("AOC") via a directive issued on December 19, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the Township Council adopted Resolution 25-69 on January 21, 2025 rejecting the DCA's calculation of its prospective need obligation calculation of 338 affordable housing units premised upon the Township Planner's analysis that the areas the DCA identified as developable are overinclusive thereby reducing the Land Capacity Allocation Factor from 2.45 % to 1.99 % resulting in the reduction of the prospective need (New Construction) obligation from

338 to 276 affordable housing units; and

WHEREAS, the Acting Administrative Director issued Directive #14-24, dated December 13, 2024, requiring a municipality seeking a certification of compliance with the Act to file an action in the form of a declaratory judgment complaint within 48 hours after adoption of the municipal resolution of fair share obligations, or by February 3, 2025, whichever is sooner; and

WHEREAS, the Township filed a Declaratory Judgment Complaint on January 23, 2025 seeking Program and Court approval of its prospective need obligation at 276 affordable housing units and the Township is required by the Act to adopt a Housing Element and Fair Share Plan setting forth its strategy to meet its affordable housing obligation by June 30, 2025;

WHEREAS, the Township received a proposal from Route 9 Howell LLC, 120 Arbutus Drive, Lakewood, NJ 08701 (the "Developer") to construct a mixed use inclusionary project comprised of 36 apartments, 116 townhomes, 7,000 square foot office and 15,000 square foot retail with a twenty percent set aside of 30 affordable housing units (the "Project") on the property identified as Block 71, Lots 20 and 21 on the tax map of the Township of Howell located on US Highway 9 in the Township (the "Property"); and

WHEREAS, the Township is requiring the Developer to enter into a Developer's Agreement with the Township to ensure the Developer will construct the Project in conformance with the concept plan and this ordinance and this ordinance shall not become effective unless and until the Township enter into a Developer's Agreement with the Township so that the Township may rely upon the Project to meet a portion of its Fourth-Round affordable housing obligation; and

WHEREAS, the Township Council believes it is in the best interest of the Township's residents to continue to meet its constitutional obligation to provide for its fair share of affordable housing in the least impactful way as possible to its current residents and in order to remain immune from builder's remedy litigation through the adoption of an ordinance rezoning the Property to allow for the Project to be developed in accordance with the Concept Plan and the zoning standards set forth in this Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Township Council of the Township of Howell, County of Monmouth, and State of New Jersey that Chapter 188 "Land Use", Article X of the Township Code entitled "Zones" is hereby amended to create a Section 188-84.6 entitled "Moderate and Low- Income Housing Mixed Use Overlay Zone 16 (ML-16) " as follows:

188-84.6. Moderate- and Low- Income Housing Mixed Use Overlay Zone 16 (ML-16)

A. <u>Purpose:</u>

- (1) <u>In accordance with its continuing constitutional obligation to meet its</u> <u>Fourth-Round affordable housing obligation, the Township is obligated to</u> <u>create a realistic opportunity to provide for its fair share of affordable</u> <u>housing in accordance with applicable affordable housing statute and</u> <u>regulations.</u>
- (2) <u>The Moderate—and Low-Income Housing Mixed Use Overlay Zone 16</u> (ML-16) District is intended to assist the Township in complying with its

<u>Fourth-Round affordable housing obligation. The following property is</u> <u>included in the ML-16 Zoning District: Block 71, Lots 20 and 21.</u>

- (3) <u>The zoning standards authorized by this Ordinance shall constitute an</u> overlay zone and the underlying zoning for the Property shall remain in <u>effect.</u>
- B. Definitions:
 - (1) <u>Stacked Townhouse dwelling: a structure containing two or more connected</u> dwelling units stacked one dwelling unit above the other, which can include shared floors divided by walls and shared common party walls, with private entrances to each unit. A building may contain both stacked townhouse dwellings and townhouse dwellings.
- C. <u>ML-16 Zoning Standards</u>
 - (1) <u>The Property is a twenty-acre (20.23 AC) tract designated as Block 71, Lots</u> 20 and 21, as per the Howell Township Tax Map. The Zoning Map of the Township of Howell, as amended, is hereby further amended to provide that Site 1 (Block 71, Lots 20 and 21 of the Howell Township Tax Map) is supplementally designated as the Moderate- and Low- Income Housing <u>Mixed Use Overlay Zone 16 (ML-16).</u>
 - (2) <u>The requirements of the ML-16 Mixed Use Overlay Zone including bulk</u> requirements, are hereby specifically set forth as follows. The following overlay zone shall provide an alternative development opportunity to allow for flexibility from the underlying zoning requirements. The modifications are as follows:
 - (a) <u>Permitted uses Multiple principally permitted uses and permitted</u> <u>buildings shall be permitted on the same lot.</u>
 - [1] <u>Permitted principal uses A single building may contain one</u> <u>or more of the following:</u>
 - [a] <u>Stacked Townhouse dwellings</u>
 - [b] <u>Townhouse dwellings- as defined in Howell Township</u> <u>Ordinance Section 188-4</u>
 - [c] <u>Apartments</u>
 - [d] <u>Office</u>
 - [e] <u>Retail</u>
 - [f] <u>Community Center</u>
 - [g] House of Worship and/or a Mikvah within the Community Center Building
 - fg][h] EIRUV
 - (b) <u>Permitted accessory uses</u>
 - [1] <u>Off-street parking, subject to the Residential Site Improvement</u> Standards (RSIS) New Jersey Administrative Codes, Title 5,

<u>Chapter 21 for the residential units and 4 parking spaces per</u> 1,000 square feet for the office and retail.

- [2] <u>Active and passive recreational, and other such facilities for</u> the exclusive use or service of the development and their guests, including but not limited to: fitness centers, playgrounds, landscaped trails, parks, clubhouses, maintenance buildings, picnic grounds, dog parks.
- [3] <u>Utilities and utility structures including but not limited to;</u> pump stations, pump house, water tank, treatment facilities, stormwater basins, transformers, meters, etc. necessary for the proper distribution and monitoring of these services.
- [4] <u>All other utilities appurtenant to subject development.</u>
- [5] <u>Any other uses that are customarily incidental and subordinate</u> to a principal use and/or principal building.
- (c) <u>Permitted accessory structures</u>
 - [1] <u>Garage</u>
 - [2] <u>Sheds</u>
 - [3] <u>Gazebo</u>
 - [4] <u>Trellis</u>
 - [5] <u>Decks</u>
 - [6] <u>Patios</u>
 - [7] <u>Fences and walls</u>
 - [8] <u>Signs</u>
 - [9] <u>Dog-parks</u>
- (d) <u>Residential dwelling requirements</u>
 - [1] <u>Maximum number of Total Units: 175 housing units, with or</u> without basements, inclusive of affordable units
 - [2] <u>Affordable housing units set aside shall be 20% of the total</u> <u>number of approved units, with all units for low- and moderate-</u> <u>income housing in accordance with the Uniform Housing</u> <u>Affordability Controls (UHAC)</u>
 - [3] Maximum number of units per building: 20
- (e) <u>Maximum Building Length: 240 feet</u>
- (f) Area, Yard, Bulk and Site Design Requirements
 - [1] Minimum building setback from external right-of-way: 50 feet
 - [2] <u>Minimum building setback from off-street parking areas: 10</u> <u>feet</u>
 - [3] <u>Minimum building setback from all internal streets (measured</u> <u>from face of curb): 20 feet</u>
 - [4] Zero (0) setback lot line for units in the same building
 - [5] <u>Minimum distance between buildings:</u>
 - [a] Front to front: 60 feet
 - [b] <u>Side to side: 20 feet (excluding porches and common</u> <u>utility rooms, common meter banks, which may</u> <u>encroach up to 5 feet, and eaves, chimneys/fireplaces,</u>

<u>bay windows and other ornamental architectural</u> <u>features which may encroach up to 3 feet into the</u> <u>required separation</u>

- [c] <u>Side to front / rear: 20 feet</u>
- [d] <u>Rear to rear: 20 feet</u>
- [e] <u>At grade patios, decks and balconies shall be allowed in</u> <u>rear setbacks</u>
- [f] <u>Driveways can be allowed within side yard setback,</u> <u>however no closer than three (3) for end units and zero</u> (0) setback for interior units
- [g] <u>The following structures shall be permitted in the front</u> yard area:
 - 1. Hot boxes for domestic water service
 - 2. <u>Sewer Pumping Station</u>
 - 3. <u>Trash Receptacles with enclosure</u>
 - 4. <u>Mailbox clusters/kiosks</u>
 - 5. <u>Separate mail structure building</u>
- [6] <u>Minimum Lot Width 20 feet</u>
- [7] <u>Minimum Lot Depth 65 feet</u>
- [8] <u>Maximum building coverage (overall tract): 35%</u>
- [9] <u>Maximum impervious coverage (overall tract): 60%</u>
- [10] <u>Maximum building height: 45 feet measured from the finished</u> grade to the eave of the roof of each housing unit.
- (g) <u>Miscellaneous Standards</u>
 - [1] <u>Porous pavement shall be permitted pursuant to standards in</u> <u>NJAC 7:8</u>
 - [2] Driveways shall be a minimum of eleven (11) feet in width
- (h) <u>Parking requirements shall be governed by the New Jersey Residential</u> <u>Site Improvement Standards at N.J.A.C. 5:21.</u>
 - [1] <u>Parking is permitted within circulation drives</u>
- *(i)* <u>Additional requirements and exceptions from other requirements</u>
 - [1] Buffers and screening shall exempt from regulations 188-63
 - [2] <u>A fifty (50) foot perimeter four (4) season buffer shall be</u> provided to the adjacent farm and thirty (30) foot perimeter four (4) season buffer shall be provided to the adjacent commercial property with no buffer to Route 9 and Estelle Lane.
 - [3] <u>All fences and walls proposed shall be exempt from the</u> <u>standards found within §188-12A, regarding 50% open space</u> <u>for light and air requirement for fences and retailing walls</u> <u>within the front yard setback</u>
 - [4] <u>All stormwater management structures, utility structures, as</u> well as parking of vehicles shall be exempt from the standards found within §188-63D regarding buffers and screening.

- [5] <u>Waiver of cost generation measures</u>
 - [a] <u>Preparation and submission of a Woodland</u> <u>Management Plan Section 188-187 through 202</u>
 - [b] <u>Waiver of cost generative measures pursuant to NJAC</u> 5:93-10.1 et seq. in order to permit the intended, agreed upon development of the property the Township agrees to abide by the COAH regulations against cost measures.
 - [c] <u>Any inclusionary development within the ML-16 Zone</u> <u>shall be subject to the provisions NJAC 5:93-10.2,</u> <u>which set forth limitations on applications</u> <u>requirements and provide a standards of review for the</u> <u>Planning Board for necessary variances or deviations</u> <u>necessary to accomplish the intent of the district.</u>
- [6] <u>All multifamily dwellings shall be exempt from the standards</u> found within 188-138, regarding look-alike standards for residential construction. Exemption from Street Tree Ordinance Section 188-122. Street trees will be provided where appropriate but shall be exempt from the requirement of a tree every twenty (20) feet along the roadway.
- [7] <u>Exemption from Section 188-221C(7)</u>, basins shall be no closer than 20 feet of building.
- Retaining walls shall be exempt from the provisions set forth [8] in 134-7B(2), (9) and 134-7C(3). As such the project will be graded to allow infiltration and to both capture some of the stormwater and to allow some of the stormwater runoff to drain over the wall to existing grades. The maximum height for a retaining wall in the ML 16 Zone shall be six feet. In the event of stepped retaining walls, there shall be a minimum of four feet between each such retaining wall. A retaining wall shall not be subject to the requirements of the Township Code 188-12 but shall be subject to the provisions of the section of the Township Code 134-7 and the applicable provisions of the New Jersey State Uniform Construction Code, NJAC 5:23-1.1 et seq., including NJAC 5:23-2.14(g) except that the Township Code 134-7C(1) shall not be applicable, and retaining walls shall be permitted at or up to the property line of a lot
- [9] <u>Steep slopes shall be defined as slopes greater than 20% over a</u> <u>minimum run of ten (10) feet</u>
- [10] <u>The provisions of Section 188-212 et seq. (Stormwater Control)</u> <u>shall be applicable within the ML-16 Zone. However, in the</u> <u>event that the provisions of Section 188-212 conflict with or</u> <u>impose requirements other than those set forth within the</u> <u>provisions of the Residential Site Improvement Standards,</u> <u>NJAC 5:21 (RSIS), the RSIS shall control.</u>

- [11] <u>Exempt from Section 188-16 with respect to setbacks. The</u> <u>Pump Station shall be adequately buffered and fenced, but no</u> <u>berm shall be required.</u>
- [12] <u>With respect to Section 188-23 topsoil shall be stockpiled and</u> <u>repurposed throughout the site to the maximum extent</u> <u>possible.</u>
- [13] Exempt from Section 188-22 Lighting

SECTION 2. REPEALER

The remainder of all other sections and subsections of the aforementioned ordinances not specifically amended by this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 3. INCONSISTENT ORDINANCES

All other Ordinances or parts thereof inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed as to such inconsistency, but only to the extent of such inconsistency.

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY

If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, such adjudication shall apply only to the section, paragraph, subdivision, clause or provision so adjudged and the remainder of this Ordinance shall be deemed valid and effective.

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication according to law, subject to, and contingent upon, the approval and execution of a Developer's Agreement between the Township and the Developer, its successor and/or assigns.

NOTICE

The Ordinance published herewith was introduced and passed on first reading by the Township Council of the Township of Howell on _______ and will be further considered for final passage and adoption at the Township Municipal Building on 4567 Route 9 North, Howell, New Jersey on _______ at 7:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as the matter can be reached on the Agenda, at which time and place all persons interested therein shall be given an opportunity to be heard and during the week prior thereto, and up to, and including, the date of such meeting, copies of said Ordinance will be available at the Clerk's Office in the Township of Howell Municipal Building to the members of the general public who shall request same.

DIANE FESTINO, TOWNSHIP CLERK

This is to certify that the foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the Township Council at a regular meeting of the Township of Howell held on ______, 2025.

DIANE FESTINO, TOWNSHIP CLERK

Explanatory Statement: This ordinance creates the Moderate- and Low-Income Housing Mixed Use Overlay Zone 16 (ML-16) to include a townhome and stacked townhome development totaling 290 units on Block 71, Lots 20 and 21. The proposed development also includes 58 number of affordable units to meet the Township's obligation towards its State mandated affordable housing units.

Appendix D: Existing Affordable Housing and Development Fee Ordinance

Township of Howell, NJ

§ 188-176

§ 188-177

ARTICLE XX Affordable Housing

§ 188-176. Purpose.

- A. The Township of Howell has been in the process of having its Final Housing Element and Fair Share Plan approved by the New Jersey Council on Affordable Housing (COAH) in accordance with the requirements of Southern Burlington County NAACP vs. Twp. of Mount Laurel, 92 NJ 158 (1983) and the Fair Housing Act of New Jersey.
- B. Certain affected property owners and/or developers have intervened in these proceedings as party objectors or otherwise participating parties; and the Township of Howell and these various party objectors and otherwise participating parties have reached agreement concerning the Final Housing Element and Fair Share Plan and development of the lands in question, and have entered into formal binding stipulations of settlement and agreements implementing their agreement, which stipulations and agreements are on file in the office of the Township Clerk and are incorporated herein by reference, and supersede any provision of this article to the contrary.
- C. In implementing the various stipulations and agreements aforesaid, it is necessary to amend and supplement the provisions of this Chapter 188 to provide, among other things, for new, modified or supplemental zoning requirements, to provide for certain affordability controls and resale/rerental controls and similar matters required under regulations of the New Jersey Council on Affordable Housing to assure the development and continuation of low- and moderate-income housing at the sites designated for such purposes, to provide for regulations concerned with accessory apartments and to provide a mechanism for the receipt and use of case contributions by developers to further the development of low- and moderate-income housing in the Township of Howell.
- D. Therefore, the Township Council of the Township of Howell does establish the foregoing as the purpose and basis for the adoption of this article.

§ 188-177. Site and zoning designation; modifications; exceptions. [Amended 10-20-2003 by Ord. No. O-03-37]

The following site and zoning designations are hereby made, subject to the zoning requirements, as modified herein, for the purposes of this article:

- A. $(Reserved)^1$
- B. $(Reserved)^2$
- C. (Reserved)³
- D. Site 5.

^{1.} Editor's Note: Former Subsection A, Site 1, was repealed 11-15-2004 by Ord. No. O-04-63; see now § 188-72C.

^{2.} Editor's Note: Former Subsection B, Site 3, was repealed 11-15-2004 by Ord. No. O-04-63; see now § 188-70C and D.

^{3.} Editor's Note: Former Subsection C, Site 4, was repealed 11-15-2004 by Ord. No. O-04-63; see now § 188-80F.

Township of Howell, NJ

§ 188-177

- (1) Site 5 is a fourteen-acre tract designated as Block 138, Lot 42, on the Howell Township Tax Map. The Zoning Map of the Township of Howell, as amended, is hereby further amended to provide that Site 5 (Block 138, Lot 42 of the Howell Township Tax Map) is designated as a portion of the R-4 Garden Apartments Zone.
- (2) The requirements of the R-4 Garden Apartments Zone, including bulk requirements, are hereby specifically modified as follows. The following modifications shall supersede any inconsistent provision in ordinance concerning the R-4 Garden Apartments Zone, and shall nullify, to the degree necessary, any existing provision of said zoning requirements that would prevent the implementation of any of the following specific modifications. The following modifications are further subject to all terms and conditions of any stipulation resolving objections and developer's agreement on file in the office of the Township Clerk. The modifications are as follows:
 - (a) Maximum density: 180 housing units with all units for low- and moderate-income housing under the regulations of the New Jersey Council on Affordable Housing. A maximum of 16 units per structure shall be permitted.
 - (b) Maximum building height: 30 feet measured from the ground to the eave of the roof of each housing unit.
 - (c) Parking requirements: Maximum 1 1/2 parking spaces per housing unit.
- (3) Special Mount Laurel requirements: as set forth in § 188-178 hereof, and subject to the terms and conditions of stipulations and developer's agreements on file in the office of the Township Clerk, regulations of the New Jersey Council on Affordable Housing, as amended, and any modification and/or approval received by the Township of Howell from the New Jersey Council on Affordable Housing.
- E. $(Reserved)^4$
- F. (Reserved)⁵
- G. (Reserved)⁶
- H. $(Reserved)^7$
- I. (Reserved)⁸
- J. (Reserved)⁹
- K. Site 11.
 - (1) Site 11 is a tract of 7.7 acres located at the southwest corner of the intersection of New

^{4.} Editor's Note: Former Subsection E, Site 6, was repealed 11-15-2004 by Ord. No. O-04-63; and Site 7 was previously rezoned to R-5 and R-6 by Ord. No. O-03-37.

^{5.} Editor's Note: Former Subsection F, Site 8, was repealed 11-15-2004 by Ord. No. O-04-63; see now § 188-84D.

^{6.} Editor's Note: Former Subsection G, Site 8A, was repealed 11-15-2004 by Ord. No. O-04-63; see now § 188-84E.

^{7.} Editor's Note: Former Subsection H, Site 9, was repealed 11-15-2004 by Ord. No. O-04-63; see now § 188-70D.

^{8.} Editor's Note: Former Subsection I, Site 10A, was repealed 11-15-2004 by Ord. No. O-04-63; see now § 88-84F.

^{9.} Editor's Note: Former Subsection J, Site 10B, was repealed 11-15-2004 by Ord. No. O-04-63; see now § 188-70D.

Township of Howell, NJ § 188-177

Jersey Highway No. 9 and Strickland Road and is designated as Block 139, Lot 11.02, on the Howell Township Tax Map.

- (2) The Zoning Map, Howell Township, as amended, is further amended to provide that Site 11 (Block 139, Lot 11.02) is designated as a portion of the Moderate- and Low-Income Housing Zone (ML7).
- (3) Special Mount Laurel requirements: as set forth in § Section 14-47 hereof, and subject to regulations of the New Jersey Council on Affordable Housing, as amended, and any modifications and/or approval received by the Township of Howell from the New Jersey Council on Affordable Housing.
- (4) The requirements of the ML7 Zone, including bulk requirements, are specifically modified below. The following modifications shall supersede any inconsistent provision in this chapter concerning the ML7 Zone and shall nullify, to the degree necessary, any existing provisions of said zoning requirements that would prevent the implementation of any of the specific modifications. The following modifications are further subject to the Council on Affordable Housing granting the petition of the Township to amend its Housing Element and Fair Share Plan. The modifications are as follows:
 - (a) Permitted uses.
 - [1] Multifamily dwellings restricted to occupancy by low- or moderate-income senior citizens.
 - [2] Essential services.
 - (b) Permitted accessory uses.
 - [1] Recreational, cultural and other such facilities for the exclusive use or service of the development and their guests, including but not limited to:
 - [a] Clubhouses.
 - [b] Picnic grounds.
 - [c] Health clinics.
 - [d] Recreation facilities.
 - [e] Maintenance buildings.
 - [f] Day-care facilities.
 - [g] Administrative/rental facilities.
 - [2] Fences.
 - [3] Signs.
 - [4] Other customary uses which are clearly incidental to the principal use of the building.

MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 72 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

Township of Howell, NJ

§ 188-177

§ 188-178

- (c) Required accessory uses: Off-street parking at a rate 6/10 of a parking space per dwelling unit.
- (d) Area, yard and building requirements.
 - [1] Minimum lot area: 80,000 square feet.
 - [2] Minimum lot frontage: 200 feet.
 - [3] Minimum side yard setback: 25 feet.
 - [4] Minimum front yard setback: 100 feet.
 - [5] Minimum rear yard setback: 100 feet.
 - [6] Maximum building height: 50 feet.
 - [7] Maximum density: 12 dwelling units per acre.
- L. Friendship Gardens (Block 78.10, Lot 25.03). [Added 11-15-2004 by Ord. No. O-04-63]
 - (1) This senior rental development was part of the Township's 1989 first round certified Housing Element and Fair Share Plan and is eligible to receive from COAH 99 agerestricted credits plus 12 age-restricted rental bonuses.
 - (2) The Zoning Map of the Township of Howell, as amended, is hereby further amended to provide that Friendship Gardens (Block 78.10, Lot 25.03) is designated as a portion of the HD-1 Zone District.

§ 188-178. Special Mount Laurel requirements. [Amended 3-7-2016 by Ord. No. O-16-04]

The following requirements shall govern the construction of any low- and moderate-income housing under regulations of the New Jersey Council on Affordable Housing, including, but not limited to, N.J.A.C. 5:92-12, 5:92-14 and 5:92-15 and any further requirements provided by way of court order as a result of litigation bearing docket number MON-2525-15, at any site or portion of site set forth in § 188-177 hereof, subject to the terms and conditions of any stipulation and developer's agreement on file in the office of the Township Clerk. To the degree not inconsistent with regulations of the New Jersey Council on Affordable Housing, as amended, and any stipulation and developer's agreement on file in the office of the Township Clerk, the requirements for off-street parking, floor area, open space, recreation areas, road widths and rights-of-way requirements provided in this chapter shall govern the development of sites set forth in § 177-176 hereof.

- A. Resale and rental of lower-income housing.
 - (1) All lower-income dwelling units shall be required to have covenants and deed restrictions running with the land to control the resale price or sublease of for sale of low- and moderate-income units or to employ other legal mechanisms which shall be approved by the Township Attorney and will, in his opinion, ensure that such housing will remain affordable to persons of lower income for at least 20 years.
 - (2) The owner of all rental units shall provide legal documentation, to be approved by the

§ 188-178

Township Attorney, to assure that rental units will remain affordable to persons of lower income for at least 20 years.

- (3) Administrative mechanism. The Township shall contract with the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency so that the latter shall be responsible for assuring that low- and moderate-income housing units remain affordable to low- and moderate-income households.
- (4) Initial pricing. Maximum housing cost (for sale or rent) shall be calculated as a percentage of the uncapped HUD Section 8 income limit for Monmouth County, and as set forth in rules and regulations of New Jersey Council on Affordable Housing [N.J.A.C. 5:92-12.4(a)] hereinafter.
- (5) The price of an owner-occupied housing unit and the rents of affordable housing units may increase annually based on the percentage increase in median income for Monmouth County as determined from the uncapped Section 8 income limits, published by HUD, or other recognized standard adopted by the New Jersey Council on Affordable Housing that applies to the rental housing unit.
- (6) The developer shall submit a resale-rerental plan for the affordable units to the Township Council and the Township Attorney, and such plan shall be approved by the Township Council and Township Attorney prior to the issuance of any building permits.
- B. Phasing of affordable units. Within inclusionary developments, low- and moderate-income housing units shall be built in accordance with the following schedule:

Minimum Percentage of Low- and Moderate-Income Units Completed	Percentage of Market Housing Units Completed
0	25
10	25+1 unit
50	50
75	75
100	90

- C. Bedroom mix.
 - (1) Requirements.
 - (a) The following bedroom mix, unless waived or modified by the New Jersey Council on Affordable Housing, shall apply to the total number of affordable units in each project:
 - [1] Not less than 15% shall be three-bedroom units.
 - [2] Not less than 35% shall be two-bedroom units.
 - [3] Not more than 20% shall be efficiency units.

Township of Howell, NJ

§ 188-178

- (b) In the event the rules of the Council on Affordable Housing shall provide for a bedroom mix different than the foregoing, the requirements of the Council shall control, and the foregoing shall be deemed modified to comply therewith.
- (2) There shall be two spaces per unit except where common parking is provided in which case there shall be spaces according to the following schedule:
 - (a) Three-bedroom or larger units: 2.0 spaces.
 - (b) Two-bedroom unit: 1.75 spaces if unit is adult citizen restricted; otherwise 2.0 spaces.
 - (c) One-bedroom unit: 1.5 spaces.
 - (d) Elderly unit (age restricted): 1.25 spaces.
- D. Open space and recreational area requirement. Not less than the 30% of the project area shall be devoted to open space as defined in this chapter and not less than 10% shall be designated for active recreation space such as swimming pool; clubhouse; court sports; softball, baseball or field sports areas; tot-lots; picnic areas; and exercise areas. Parking areas for recreational areas shall be provided based upon the size of the facilities provided.
- E. Governmental subsidies. Howell Township shall take such steps as are necessary to assist the developer in obtaining state and/or federal subsidies for low- and moderate-income housing when such subsidies are sought by the applicant as a means to provide such housing.
- F. Required storage area or garage. Each housing unit shall provide individual and secured storage facilities containing not less than 200 cubic feet. A private garage containing less than 180 square feet may be substituted for the storage area requirement and would count as 1/2 parking space.
- G. Marketing and administration. [Amended 11-15-2004 by Ord. No. O-04-63]
 - (1) Affirmative marketing plan.
 - (a) Howell Township, Monmouth County, has 12 cumulative fair-share obligations (1987-1999) of 1,109 units, of which 955 provide new affordable housing opportunities. This chapter will apply to all developments that contain low- and moderate-income units that are listed below and any future developments that may occur:

Description

RSL Investments/Countryside Place Strickland Road age-restricted rental units Friendship Gardens age-restricted rental units

(b) The affirmative marketing plan is a regional marketing strategy designed to attract buyers and/or renters of all majority and minority groups, regardless of sex, age or number of children, to housing units which are being marketed by a developer/

§ 188-178

sponsor, municipality and/or designated administrative agency of affordable housing. The plan will address the requirements of N.J.A.C. 5:93-11. In addition, the plan prohibits discrimination in the sale, rental, financing or other services related to housing on the basis of race, color, sex, religion, handicap, age, familial status/size or national origin. Howell Township is in the housing region consisting of Monmouth, Ocean and Mercer Counties. The affirmative marketing program is a continuing program and will meet the following requirements:

- [1] All newspaper articles, announcements and requests for applications for lowand moderate-income units will appear in the Asbury Park Press and The Star Ledger.
- [2] The primary marketing will take the form of at least one press release sent to the above newspaper and a paid display advertisement in said newspaper. Additional advertising and publicity will be on an "as needed" basis.
- [3] The advertisement will include: the street address; direction to housing units; number of bedrooms per unit; range of selling prices/rents; size of units; household income limits and location of applications, including business hours and where/how applications may be obtained.
- [4] All newspaper articles, announcements and requests for applications for lowand moderate-income housing will appear in the following neighborhoodoriented weekly newspapers within the region.

Tri-Town News The Howell Times The News Transcript

[5] The following regional radio will be used:

Radio Station WOBM - AM and FM Radio Station WJLK - FM Radio Station WADB - AM

[6] The following is the location of applications, brochure(s), and/or poster(s) used as part of the affirmative marketing program, including specific employment centers within the region:

Howell Township Municipal Building Preventorium Road Howell Township Municipal Building Old Tavern Road Developer's sales/rental office on site Howell Township Senior Center Preventorium Road

Howell Township Division of Youth and Family Services Howell Human Services building on Adelphia Road

- [7] The following is a list of community contact person(s) and/or organization(s) in Monmouth, Ocean and Mercer Counties that will aid in the affirmative marketing program with particular emphasis on contacts that will reach out to groups that are least likely to apply for housing within the region: County Board of Social Services.
- [8] Applications will be mailed to prospective applicants upon request.
- [9] Additionally, applications will be sent to the chief administrative employees of each of the following agencies in the counties of Monmouth, Ocean and Mercer:
 - [a] Monmouth, Ocean and Mercer Counties' Offices on Aging.
 - [b] Monmouth, Ocean and Mercer Counties' housing agencies or authorities.
 - [c] Monmouth, Ocean and Mercer Counties' libraries.
 - [d] Monmouth, Ocean and Mercer Counties' area community action agencies.
- (2) Administration of affordable housing program.
 - (a) For purposes of this subsection the term "Housing Officer" is defined as the employee, consultant, authority or government or other agency charged with the responsibility of administering the affordable housing program of the Township of Howell.
 - (b) Howell Township is ultimately responsible for administering the affordable housing program. Howell Township has delegated this responsibility to the Housing Officer. The Housing Officer will income qualify low- and moderateincome households; place income-eligible households in low- and moderateincome units upon initial occupancy; provide for the initial occupancy of low- and moderate-income units with income-qualified households; continue to qualify households for reoccupancy of units as they become vacant during the period of affordability controls; assist with advertising and outreach to low- and moderateincome households if in contract; and enforce the terms of the deed restriction and mortgage loan as per N.J.A.C. 5:93-9.
 - (c) The Housing Officer will provide counseling services to low- and moderateincome applicants on subjects such as budgeting, credit issues, mortgage qualification, responsibilities of home ownership, rental lease requirements and landlord/tenant law.
 - (d) The types of activities to be undertaken by the Housing Officer after the completion of initial occupancy of sales and rental units in order to fill vacancies resulting from normal turnover shall include:

- [1] Insuring a sufficient supply of income-eligible applicants by continuing to implement the marketing plan throughout the housing region, as outlined herein. At a minimum, the Township shall maintain a current pool of at least five income-eligible applicants for each low- and moderate-income unit.
- [2] Contacting each income-eligible applicant annually to request updated information regarding income and family size.
- (e) As units become available, the Housing Officer shall select eligible applicants for the units, as described in N.J.A.C. 5:93-11.4(b) through (d), until the units are occupied by low- and moderate-income households.
- (f) Howell Township, by and through its Housing Officer, will comply with monitoring and reporting requirements as per N.J.A.C. 5:93-11.6 and 12.1.
- (g) Households who live or work in the COAH-established housing region may be given preference for sales and rental units constructed within that housing region. Applicants living outside the housing region will have an equal opportunity for units after regional applicants have been initially serviced. Howell Township intends to comply with N.J.A.C. 5:93-11.7.
- (h) Developers of low- and moderate-income housing units may assist in the marketing of the affordable units in their respective developments if so designated by Howell Township.
- (i) The marketing program will commence at least 120 days before the issuance of either temporary or permanent certificates of occupancy. The marketing program will continue until all low- and moderate-income housing units are initially occupied and for as long as affordable units are deed restricted and occupancy or reoccupancy of units continued to be necessary.
- H. Accessory apartment requirements.
 - (1) Purpose. This section provides conditions and controls for the development of accessory apartments in single-family homes, and specifically by the terms of this section, such use is to be permitted in all single-family dwelling units served by water and sewer facilities within any residential zoning district in the Township of Howell, wherein the Township Planning Board is hereby authorized to issue a special use permit. The purpose of this section is:
 - (a) To provide for the legal and orderly development of accessory apartments;
 - (b) To provide homeowners with the means of obtaining needed rental income, companionship, security and services, thereby enabling them to remain more comfortable in their homes and neighborhoods;
 - (c) To meet the housing needs to persons with low- and moderate-income; and
 - (d) To protect the stability, property values and single-family character of neighborhoods and to continue to protect the health, welfare and safety of the general public.

Township of Howell, NJ

§ 188-178

§ 188-178

(2) Definitions. As used in this section, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

ACCESSORY APARTMENT — A self-contained residential dwelling unit, containing its own kitchen, sanitary facilities and private entrance, which is created within an existing single-family home, or through the conversion of an existing accessory building on the same site, or by addition to an existing single-family home or accessory building.

- (3) Conditions and requirements. The following conditions and requirements shall govern the establishment of accessory apartments under this section:
 - (a) Adequate off-street parking must be provided for both the principal and accessory uses on the subject property as determined under § 188-106 hereof. Adequate turnaround areas shall be provided to prevent vehicles from having to back into any roadway.
 - (b) Where there is combined primary and accessory apartment use, the primary unit shall be occupied by the owner of the lot on which the dwelling or dwellings, as primary or accessory use, are located.
 - (c) Exterior appearance. The principal dwelling and accessory apartment must, to the degree reasonably feasible, retain the appearance of a single-family residence. No additional entrances shall be permitted on the front of the principal dwelling. Dual access on a hallway to the outside is permitted. No unit shall be located above the second floor.
 - (d) Size requirements. The net floor area of the accessory apartment shall be at least 400 square feet. The sizes of bedrooms in the apartment shall comply with the standards of the New Jersey State Housing Code.
 - [1] The net floor area of the accessory apartment shall not exceed the following percentage of the area of the single-family house or the following fixed amount, as the case may be:

If the area of the house is:	The net floor area of the apartment shall not exceed:
Less than 3,000 square feet	40% or 1,000 square feet, whichever is less
3,000 or more but less than 5,000 square feet	30% or 1,200 square feet, whichever is less
5,000 square feet or more	20% or 1,500 square feet, whichever is less

[2] For the purposes of this subsection, the area of the single-family house shall be the total area of all of the stories of the house, measured from the outside faces of the exterior walls, including the areas of enclosures and additions to the house that are proposed to be made for the purpose of an accessory apartment. It shall also include the area of basements. The area of the singlefamily house shall not include roofed but unenclosed areas, such as porches

and carports. Also for the purposes of this subsection, the net floor area of the accessory apartment shall not include any hall providing the unit with access to the outdoors. The accessory apartment is limited to a maximum of two bedrooms.

- [3] The accessory apartment must be available to low- or moderate-income tenants for a period of at least 10 years.
- [4] The accessory apartment must conform with all applicable standards of health, building, zoning and other codes and regulations.
- [5] Accessory apartments shall not be permitted on lots of less than 20,000 square feet in size. The use shall be considered for zoning purposes an existing family use.
- [6] Bedroom number. The Township Planning Board shall only approve permits if the bedroom mix of all units granted does not exceed the following:
 - [a] Efficiency apartment: 35% of the maximum number.
 - [b] One-bedroom apartment: 35% of the maximum number.
 - [c] Two-bedroom apartment: 30% of the maximum number.
- [7] The following are hereby established as the regulations governing the controls on affordability and occupancy:
 - [a] As a condition of any resolution granting a conditional use permit for an accessory apartment, the Planning Board shall require the recording of a deed in the County Clerk's office, to appear in the chain of title, which shall set forth deed restrictions restricting occupancy to low- or moderate-income households and in conformity with the regulations below. The deed restriction shall be effective for a minimum of 10 years.
 - [b] Rents, excluding utilities, may not exceed 30% of the gross monthly income of the appropriate household size. Median income household size shall be established by the most recently published income limits promulgated by the New Jersey Council on Affordable Housing. The following criteria shall apply in determining rental amounts:
 - [i] Efficiency units shall be affordable to one-person households.
 - [ii] One-bedroom units shall be affordable to two-person households.
 - [iii] Two-bedroom units shall be affordable to three-person households.
 - [c] The owner of an accessory apartment may submit the name of a proposed tenant to the agency administering § 188-178 hereof. In the event that the proposed tenant is certified eligible, the owner may enter into a leasing agreement for rental which is consistent with the restrictions set forth above. In the event that the owner does not have a proposed tenant, or

the proposed tenant is not certified eligible, the agency shall advise the owner of the names and addresses of eligible tenants, appropriate in size for the unit, from the agencies waiting list. No owner shall rent an accessory apartment to anyone who has not been certified eligible by the agency.

- [d] Commencing one year after the initial renting of the unit, the unit owner shall certify to the agency administering § 188-178 hereof, name(s) and address(es) of each tenant who has occupied the unit during the past 12 months, the beginning and ending dates of their tenancy and that the tenant(s) were certified eligible by the agency at the time of their initial occupancy of the unit.
- [e] The agency administering § 188-178 hereof shall administer the accessory apartments so that not more than 50% of the number set forth above shall be rented to moderate-income households, and not less than 50% of the number set forth above shall be rented to low-income households. This requirement shall be administered on a first-come-first-served basis.
- [f] Affirmative marketing requirements for accessory apartments shall be supplemented by the requirements of § 188-178 hereof.
- [8] The construction and modification of any accessory apartment shall be in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Construction Code of New Jersey, including the requirement to obtain a building permit and certificate of occupancy.
- I. Range of affordability for purchased housing.
 - (1) Developers shall offer average pricing for affordable units which will, as best as practicable, result in units being affordable to households at 57.5% of median income. To achieve this goal, the following distribution of prices shall be adhered to, to the extent practicable, for each 20 affordable units:

	Proposed Pricing Stratification
Low	1 at 40% through 42.5% of median income
	3 at 42.6% through 47.5% of median income
	6 at 47.6% through 50% of median income
Moderate	1 at 50.1% through 57.5% of median income
	1 at 57.6% through 64.5% of median income
	1 at 64.6% through 68.5% of median income
	1 at 68.6% through 72.5% of median income
	2 at 72.6% through 77.5% of median income

Township of Howell, NJ

§ 188-178

Proposed Pricing Stratification
4 at 77.6% through 80% of median income

- (2) For initial occupancy, priority shall be given to households which fall within the median income categories set forth above.
- J. Special provisions relating to group homes on Block 26, Lot 7.03; and Block 84.08, Lot 74.01, the Strickland Road Senior Project (Block 139, Lot 11.02 Site 11), and Friendship Gardens (Block 78.10, Lot 25.03). Subchapter 9, entitled "Controls on Affordability," of Chapter 93, entitled "Substantive Rules of the New Jersey Council on Affordable Housing for the Period Beginning June 6, 1994,"¹⁰ are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof as though fully set forth herein at length with respect to the two group homes located on Block 26, Lot 7.03 and Block 84.08, Lot 74.01, respectively, and the Strickland Road Senior Project located on Block 139, Lot 11.02 (Site 11). This subsection shall supersede § 188-178 of this chapter with respect to those projects identified herein. [Added 11-15-2004 by Ord. No. O-04-63]
- Occupancy Preference. In accordance with N.J.S.A. 52:27D-311(j), the Township and K. developer or residential development owner may enter into an agreement to provide a preference for affordable housing to low- to moderate-income veterans who served in time of war or other emergency, as defined in Section 1 of P.L.1963, c. 171 (N.J.S.A. 54:4-8.10), of up to 50% of the affordable units in that particular project. This preference shall be established in the applicant selection process for available affordable units so that applicants who are veterans who served in time of war or other emergency, as referenced in this subsection, and who apply within 90 days of the initial marketing period shall receive preference for the rental of the agreed-upon percentage of affordable units. After the first 90 days of the initial one-hundred-twenty-day marketing period, if any of those units subject to the preference remain available, then applicants from the general public shall be considered for occupancy. Following the initial one-hundred-twenty-day marketing period, previously qualified applicants and future qualified applicants who are veterans who served in time of war or other emergency, as referenced in this subsection, shall be placed on a special waiting list as well as the general waiting list. The veterans on the special waiting list shall be given preference for affordable units as the units become available, and whenever the percentage of preference-occupied units falls below the agreed upon percentage. Any agreement to provide affordable housing preferences for veterans pursuant to this subsection shall not affect a municipality's ability to receive credit for the unit from the council, or its successor. [Added 3-7-2016 by Ord. No. O-16-04]

^{10.} Editor's Note: See N.J.A.C. 5:93 et seq.

§ 188-179

§ 188-179

ARTICLE XXI Development Fees [Amended 2-15-2005 by Ord. No. O-05-6; 2-17-2009 by Ord. No. O-09-05; 11-12-2019 by Ord. No. O-19-51]

§ 188-179. Development fee provisions.

A. Purpose.

- (1) In Holmdel Builder's Association v. Holmdel Township, 121 N.J. 550 (1990), the New Jersey Supreme Court determined that mandatory development fees are authorized by the Fair Housing Act of 1985, N.J.S.A. 52:27d-301 et seq., and the State Constitution, subject to the adoption of Rules by the Council on Affordable Housing (COAH).
- (2) Pursuant to P.L. 2008, c. 46, Section 8 (N.J.S.A. 52:27D-329.2) and the Statewide Non-Residential Development Fee Act (N.J.S.A. 40:55D-8.1 through 40:55D-8.7), COAH was authorized to adopt and promulgate regulations necessary for the establishment, implementation, review, monitoring and enforcement of municipal affordable housing trust funds and corresponding spending plans. Municipalities that were under the jurisdiction of COAH and that are now before a court of competent jurisdiction and have a Court-approved spending plan may retain fees collected from nonresidential development.
- (3) This section establishes standards for the collection, maintenance, and expenditure of development fees that are consistent with COAH's regulations developed in response to P.L. 2008, c. 46, Sections 8 and 32-38 (N.J.S.A. 52:27D-329.2) and the Statewide Non-Residential Development Fee Act (N.J.S.A. 40:55D-8.1 through 40:55D-8.7). Fees collected pursuant to this section shall be used for the sole purpose of providing low-and moderate-income housing in accordance with a Court-approved spending plan.
- B. Basic requirements.
 - (1) This section shall not be effective until approved by the Court.
 - (2) The Township of Howell shall not spend development fees until the Court has approved a plan for spending such fees (spending plan).
- C. Definitions. The following terms, as used in this section, shall have the following meanings:

AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT — A development included in the Housing Element and Fair Share Plan, and includes, but is not limited to, an inclusionary development, a municipal construction project or a 100% affordable housing development.

COAH or THE COUNCIL — The New Jersey Council on Affordable Housing established under the Fair Housing Act.

CONSTRUCTION OFFICIAL — The construction officer or his/her designee.

DEVELOPER — The legal or beneficial owner or owners of a lot or of any land proposed to be included in a proposed development, including the holder of an option or contract to purchase, or other person having an enforceable proprietary interest in such land.

MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 83 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

Township of Howell, NJ

§ 188-179

DEVELOPMENT FEE — Money paid by a developer for the improvement of property as permitted at N.J.A.C. 5:97-8.3.

EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUE — The assessed value of a property divided by the current average ratio of assessed to true value for the municipality in which the property is situated, as determined in accordance with Sections 1, 5, and 6 of P.L. 1973, c. 123 (N.J.S.A. 54:1-35a through 54:1-35c).

GREEN BUILDING STRATEGIES — Those strategies that minimize the impact of development on the environment, and enhance the health, safety and well-being of residents by producing durable, low-maintenance, resource-efficient housing while making optimum use of existing infrastructure and community services.

TOWNSHIP — The Township of Howell.

- D. Residential development fees.
 - (1) Imposition of fees.
 - (a) Within the Township of Howell, all residential developers, except for developers of the types of developments specifically exempted below and developers of developments that include affordable housing, shall pay a fee of 1.5% of the equalized assessed value for all new residential development, provided no increased density is permitted. Development fees shall also be imposed and collected when an additional dwelling unit is added to an existing residential structure; in such cases, the fee shall be calculated based on the increase in the equalized assessed value of the property due to the additional dwelling unit.
 - (b) When an increase in residential density is permitted pursuant to a "d" variance granted under N.J.S.A. 40:55D-70d(5), developers shall be required to pay a "bonus" development fee of 6% of the equalized assessed value for each additional unit that may be realized, except that this provision shall not be applicable to a development that will include affordable housing. If the zoning on a site has changed during the two-year period preceding the filing of such a variance application, the base density for the purposes of calculating the bonus development fee shall be the highest density permitted by right during the two-year period preceding the filing of the variance application.
 - (c) Development fees shall be imposed and collected when an existing structure undergoes a change to a more intense use, is demolished and replaced, or is expanded, if the expansion is not otherwise exempt from the development fee requirement. The development fee shall be calculated on the increase in the equalized assessed value of the improved structure.
 - (2) Eligible exactions, ineligible exactions and exemptions for residential developments.
 - (a) Affordable housing developments, developments where the developer is providing for the construction of affordable units elsewhere in the municipality, and developments where the developer has made a payment in lieu of on-site construction of affordable units shall be exempt from development fees.

- (b) Developments that have received preliminary or final site plan approval prior to the adoption of a municipal development fee ordinance shall be exempt from development fees, unless the developer seeks a substantial change in the approval. Where a site plan approval does not apply, a zoning and/or building permit shall be synonymous with preliminary or final site plan approval for this purpose. The fee percentage shall be vested on the date that the building permit is issued.
- (c) Developers of educational facilities shall be exempt from paying a development fee.
- (d) Developers of houses of worship and other uses that are entitled to exemption from New Jersey real property tax shall be exempt from the payment of a development fee, provided that such development does not result in the construction of any additional housing or residential units, including assisted living and continuing care retirement communities.
- (e) A development shall be exempt from an increase in the percentage of the development fee, provided the building permit was issued prior to the effective date of this article, or prior to any subsequent ordinance increasing the fee percentage. The developer shall have the right to pay the fee based on the percentage in effect on the date the building permit was issued.
- (f) Any development or improvement to structures of owner-occupied property in which there is located an affordable accessory residence. This exemption shall only apply to development or improvements to the property during the period of affordability controls.
- (g) The construction of a new accessory building or other structure on the same lot as the principal building shall be exempt from the imposition of development fees if the assessed value of the structure is determined to be less than \$100,000.
- E. Nonresidential development fees.
 - (1) Imposition of fees.
 - (a) Within all zoning districts, nonresidential developers, except for developers of the types of developments specifically exempted below, shall pay a fee equal to 2.5% of the equalized assessed value of the land and improvements for all new nonresidential construction on an unimproved lot or lots.
 - (b) Within all zoning districts, nonresidential developers, except for developers of the types of developments specifically exempted below, shall also pay a fee equal to 2.5% of the increase in equalized assessed value resulting from any additions to existing structures to be used for nonresidential purposes.
 - (c) Development fees shall be imposed and collected when an existing structure is demolished and replaced. The development fee of 2.5% shall be calculated on the difference between the equalized assessed value of the preexisting land and improvements and the equalized assessed value of the newly improved structure, i.e., land and improvements, and such calculation shall be made at the time a final

certificate of occupancy is issued. If the calculation required under this section results in a negative number, the nonresidential development fee shall be zero.

- (d) The nonresidential portion of a mixed-use inclusionary or market-rate development shall be subject to the development fee of 2.5% unless otherwise exempted below.
- (2) Eligible exactions, ineligible exactions and exemptions for nonresidential development.
 - (a) The development fee of 2.5% shall not apply to an increase in equalized assessed value resulting from alterations, change in use within the existing footprint, reconstruction, renovations and repairs.
 - (b) Nonresidential developments shall be exempt from the payment of nonresidential development fees in accordance with the exemptions required pursuant to the Statewide Non-Residential Development Fee Act (N.J.S.A. 40:55D-8.1 through 40:55D-8.7), as specified in Form N-RDF, State of New Jersey Non-Residential Development Certification/Exemption. Any exemption claimed by a developer shall be substantiated by that developer.
 - (c) A developer of a nonresidential development exempted from the nonresidential development fee pursuant to the Statewide Non-Residential Development Fee Act shall be subject to the fee at such time as the basis for the exemption no longer applies, and shall make the payment of the nonresidential development fee, in that event, within three years after that event or after the issuance of the final certificate of occupancy for the nonresidential development, whichever is later.
 - (d) If a property which was exempted from the collection of a nonresidential development fee thereafter ceases to be exempt from property taxation, the owner of the property shall remit the fees required pursuant to this section within 45 days of the termination of the property tax exemption. Unpaid nonresidential development fees under these circumstances may be enforceable by the Township of Howell as a lien against the real property of the owner.
 - (e) Pursuant to P.L. 2009, c. 90¹¹ and P.L. 2011, c. 122,¹² the nonresidential statewide development fee of 2.5% for nonresidential development is suspended for all nonresidential projects that received preliminary or final site plan approval subsequent to July 17, 2008, until July 1, 2013, provided that a permit for the construction of the building has been issued prior to January 1, 2015.
- F. Collection procedures.
 - (1) Upon the granting of a preliminary, final or other applicable approval for a development, the approving authority or entity shall notify or direct its staff to notify the Construction Official responsible for the issuance of a construction permit.
 - (2) For nonresidential developments only, the developer shall also be provided with a copy of Form N-RDF, State of New Jersey Non-Residential Development Certification/

^{11.} Editor's Note: See N.J.S.A. 52:27D-489a.

^{12.} Editor's Note: See N.J.S.A. 40:55D-8.6.

§ 188-179

Exemption, to be completed as per the instructions provided. The developer of a nonresidential development shall complete Form N-RDF as per the instructions provided. The Construction Official shall verify the information submitted by the nonresidential developer as per the instructions provided in Form N-RDF. The Tax Assessor shall verify exemptions and prepare estimated and final assessments as per the instructions provided in Form N-RDF.

- (3) The Construction Official responsible for the issuance of a construction permit shall notify the Township Tax Assessor of the issuance of the first construction permit for a development which is subject to a development fee.
- (4) Within 90 days of receipt of such notification, the Township Tax Assessor shall prepare an estimate of the equalized assessed value of the development based on the plans filed.
- (5) The Construction Official responsible for the issuance of a final certificate of occupancy shall notify the Township Tax Assessor of any and all requests for the scheduling of a final inspection on a property which is subject to a development fee.
- (6) Within 10 business days of a request for the scheduling of a final inspection, the Township Tax Assessor shall confirm or modify the previously estimated equalized assessed value of the improvements associated with the development; calculate the development fee; and thereafter notify the developer of the amount of the fee.
- (7) Should the Township of Howell fail to determine or notify the developer of the amount of the development fee within 10 business days of the request for final inspection, the developer may estimate the amount due and pay that estimated amount consistent with the dispute process set forth in Subsection b of Section 37 of P.L. 2008, c. 46 (N.J.S.A. 40:55D-8.6).
- (8) Except as provided in hereinabove, 50% of the initially calculated development fee shall be collected at the time of issuance of the construction permit. The remaining portion shall be collected at the time of issuance of the certificate of occupancy. The developer shall be responsible for paying the difference between the fee calculated at the time of issuance of the certificate of issuance of the certificate of the certif
- (9) Appeal of development fees.
 - (a) A developer may challenge residential development fees imposed by filing a challenge with the County Board of Taxation. Pending a review and determination by the Board, collected fees shall be placed in an interest-bearing escrow account by the Township of Howell. Appeals from a determination of the Board may be made to the Tax Court in accordance with the provisions of the State Tax Uniform Procedure Law, N.J.S.A. 54:48-1 et seq., within 90 days after the date of such determination. Interest earned on amounts escrowed shall be credited to the prevailing party.
 - (b) A developer may challenge nonresidential development fees imposed by filing a challenge with the Director of the Division of Taxation. Pending a review and determination by the Director, which shall be made within 45 days of receipt of the

challenge, collected fees shall be placed in an interest-bearing escrow account by the Township of Howell. Appeals from a determination of the Director may be made to the Tax Court in accordance with the provisions of the State Tax Uniform Procedure Law, N.J.S.A. 54:48-1 et seq., within 90 days after the date of such determination. Interest earned on amounts escrowed shall be credited to the prevailing party.

- G. Affordable Housing Trust Fund.
 - (1) There is hereby created a separate, interest-bearing Affordable Housing Trust Fund to be maintained by the Chief Financial Officer of the Township of Howell for the purpose of depositing development fees collected from residential and nonresidential developers and proceeds from the sale of units with extinguished controls.
 - (2) The following additional funds shall be deposited in the Affordable Housing Trust Fund and shall at all times be identifiable by source and amount:
 - (a) Payments in lieu of on-site construction of a fraction of an affordable unit, where permitted by ordinance or by agreement with the Township of Howell;
 - (b) Funds contributed by developers to make 10% of the adaptable entrances in a townhouse or other multistory attached dwelling unit development accessible;
 - (c) Rental income from municipally operated units;
 - (d) Repayments from affordable housing program loans;
 - (e) Recapture funds;
 - (f) Proceeds from the sale of affordable units; and
 - (g) Any other funds collected in connection with Howell Township's affordable housing program.
 - (3) In the event of a failure by the Township of Howell to comply with trust fund monitoring and reporting requirements or to submit accurate monitoring reports; or a failure to comply with the conditions of the judgment of compliance or a revocation of the judgment of compliance; or a failure to implement the approved spending plan and to expend funds within the applicable required time period as set forth in In re Tp. of Monroe, 442 N.J. Super. 565 (Law Div. 2015) (aff'd 442 N.J. Super. 563); or the expenditure of funds on activities not approved by the Court; or for other good cause demonstrating the unapproved use(s) of funds, the Court may authorize the State of New Jersey, Department of Community Affairs, Division of Local Government Services (LGS), to direct the manner in which the funds in the Affordable Housing Trust Fund shall be expended, provided that all such funds shall, to the extent practicable, be utilized for affordable housing programs within the Township of Howell, or, if not practicable, then within the County or the Housing Region.
 - (4) Any party may bring a motion before the Superior Court presenting evidence of such condition(s), and the Court may, after considering the evidence and providing the municipality a reasonable opportunity to respond and/or to remedy the noncompliant

§ 188-179

condition(s), and upon a finding of continuing and deliberate noncompliance, determine to authorize LGS to direct the expenditure of funds in the Trust Fund. The Court may also impose such other remedies as may be reasonable and appropriate to the circumstances.

- (5) Interest accrued in the Affordable Housing Trust Fund shall only be used to fund eligible affordable housing activities approved by the Court.
- H. Use of funds.
 - (1) The expenditure of all funds shall conform to a spending plan approved by the Court. Funds deposited in the Affordable Housing Trust Fund may be used for any activity approved by the Court to address the Township of Howell's fair share obligation and may be set up as a grant or revolving loan program. Such activities include, but are not limited to: preservation or purchase of housing for the purpose of maintaining or implementing affordability controls; housing rehabilitation; new construction of affordable housing units and related costs; accessory apartments; a market to affordable program; Regional Housing Partnership programs; conversion of existing nonresidential buildings to create new affordable units; green building strategies designed to be cost saving and in accordance with accepted national or state standards; purchase of land for affordable housing; improvement of land to be used for affordable housing sites; financial assistance designed to increase affordability; administration necessary for implementation of the Housing Element and Fair Share Plan; and/or any other activity permitted by the Court and specified in the approved spending plan.
 - (2) Funds shall not be expended to reimburse the Township of Howell for past housing activities.
 - (3) At least 30% of all development fees collected and interest earned on such fees shall be used to provide affordability assistance to low- and moderate-income households in affordable units included in the municipal Fair Share Plan. One-third of the affordability assistance portion of development fees collected shall be used to provide affordability assistance to those households earning 30% or less of the median income for Housing Region 4, in which Howell Township is located.
 - (a) Affordability assistance programs may include down payment assistance, security deposit assistance, low-interest loans, rental assistance, assistance with homeowners' association or condominium fees and special assessments, and assistance with emergency repairs. The specific programs to be used for affordability assistance shall be identified and described within the spending plan.
 - (b) Affordability assistance to households earning 30% or less of median income may include buying down the cost of low- or moderate-income units in the municipal Fair Share Plan to make them affordable to households earning 30% or less of median income. The specific programs to be used for very-low-income affordability assistance shall be identified and described within the spending plan.
 - (c) Payments in lieu of constructing affordable housing units on site, if permitted by

ordinance or by agreement with the Township of Howell, and funds from the sale of units with extinguished controls shall be exempt from the affordability assistance requirement.

- (4) The Township of Howell may contract with a private or public entity to administer any part of its Housing Element and Fair Share Plan, including its programs for affordability assistance.
- (5) No more than 20% of all revenues collected from development fees may be expended on administration, including, but not limited to, salaries and benefits for municipal employees or consultants' fees necessary to develop or implement a new construction program, prepare a Housing Element and Fair Share Plan, and/or administer an affirmative marketing program or a rehabilitation program.
 - (a) In the case of a rehabilitation program, the administrative costs of the rehabilitation program shall be included as part of the 20% of collected development fees that may be expended on administration.
 - (b) Administrative funds may be used for income qualification of households, monitoring the turnover of sale and rental units, and compliance with COAH's monitoring requirements. Legal or other fees related to litigation opposing affordable housing sites or related to securing or appealing a judgment from the Court are not eligible uses of the Affordable Housing Trust Fund.
- I. Monitoring. The Township of Howell shall provide annual reporting of Affordable Housing Trust Fund activity to the State of New Jersey, Department of Community Affairs, Council on Affordable Housing or Local Government Services or other entity designated by the State of New Jersey, with a copy provided to Fair Share Housing Center and posted on the municipal website, using forms developed for this purpose by the New Jersey Department of Community Affairs, Council on Affordable Housing or Local Government Services. The reporting shall include an accounting of all Affordable Housing Trust Fund activity, including the sources and amounts of funds collected and the amounts and purposes for which any funds have been expended. Such reporting shall include an accounting of development fees collected from residential and nonresidential developers, payments in lieu of constructing affordable units on site (if permitted by ordinance or by agreement with the Township), funds from the sale of units with extinguished controls, barrier-free escrow funds, rental income from Township-owned affordable housing units, repayments from affordable housing program loans, and any other funds collected in connection with Howell Township's affordable housing programs, as well as an accounting of the expenditures of revenues and implementation of the spending plan approved by the Court.
- J. Ongoing collection of fees.
 - (1) The ability for the Township of Howell to impose, collect and expend development fees shall expire with the expiration of the repose period covered by its judgment of compliance unless the Township of Howell has first filed an adopted Housing Element and Fair Share Plan with the Court or with a designated state administrative agency, has petitioned for a judgment of compliance from the Court or for substantive certification or its equivalent from a state administrative agency authorized to approve and

administer municipal affordable housing compliance and has received approval of its Development Fee Ordinance from the entity that will be reviewing and approving the Housing Element and Fair Share Plan.

- (2) If the Township of Howell fails to renew its ability to impose and collect development fees prior to the expiration of its judgment of compliance, it may be subject to forfeiture of any or all funds remaining within its Affordable Housing Trust Fund. Any funds so forfeited shall be deposited into the New Jersey Affordable Housing Trust Fund established pursuant to Section 20 of P.L. 1985, c. 222 (N.J.S.A. 52:27D-320).
- (3) The Township of Howell shall not impose a residential development fee on a development that receives preliminary or final site plan approval after the expiration of its judgment of compliance, nor shall the Township of Howell retroactively impose a development fee on such a development. The Township of Howell also shall not expend any of its collected development fees after the expiration of its judgment of compliance.

§ 188-180. through § 188-186.1. (Reserved)

Appendix E: Affirmative Marketing Plan

Mr. Bonevich offered the following Resolution for adoption seconded by Ms. Richmond.

Resolution No: R-19-316

RESOLUTION APPROVING AFFORDABLE HOUSING AFFIRMATIVE MARKETING PLAN

WHEREAS, the Township of Howell ("Township") filed a Mt. Laurel declaratory judgment action in the Superior Court of New Jersey, Law-Division bearing the caption In the Matter of the Township of Application of the Township of Howell, Docket No. MON-L-2525-15 (the "Litigation") following the New Jersey Supreme Court's decision in Mt. Laurel IV; and

WHEREAS, the Township entered into a Settlement Agreement with Fair Share Housing Center on or about October 9, 2018 and an Amended Settlement Agreement on November 20, 2018 (collectively referred to as the "Settlement Agreements") establishing the Township's Third Round affordable housing obligation for the period 1999-2025 and the compliance mechanisms by which the Township will meet its constitutional obligation to provide for its fair share of affordable housing; and

WHEREAS, the Court conducted a Fairness Hearing on February 27, 2019 and entered an order on April 5, 2019 approving the Settlement Agreements by and between the Township and Fair Share Housing Center finding on a preliminary basis that the Settlement Agreement is fair to low and moderate-income households; and

WHEREAS, the Court Order approving the Settlement Agreements requires the Township to approve an Affirmative Marketing Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Township's Planning Consultant prepared an Affirmative Marketing Plan and the Planning Board approved the Affirmative Marketing Plan as an appendix to the Housing Element and Fair Share Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Township Council of the Township of Howell believes it is in the best interest of the Township to approve an Affirmative Marketing Plan to comply with the Court's Order of Fairness and Preliminary Compliance dated April 5, 2019 and to obtain a Final Judgment of Compliance and Repose protecting the Township from builder's remedy litigation until July 1, 2025;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township of Howell hereby approves the Affordable Housing Affirmative Marketing Plan.

MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 93 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

<u>VOTE:</u>	AYES	NAYS	ABSTAIN	ABSENT	DISQUALIFY
Mr. Bonevich	Х				
Ms. Richmond	Х				
Mr. Russo	Х				4
Mrs. O'Donnell	X				
Mayor Berger				Х	

This is to certify that the foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Township Council of the Township of Howell during a regular meeting held on September 10, 2019.

Kenned Wollman

Penny Wollman, Township Clerk

Appendix A

AFFIRMATIVE FAIR HOUSING MARKETING PLAN For Affordable Housing in (**REGION 4**)

HOWELL TOWNSHIP

I. APPLICANT AND PROJECT INFORMATION

(Complete Section I individually for all developments or programs within the municipality.)

1a. Administrative Agent Name, Address, Phone Number		1b. Development or Program Name, Address	
CGP&H 101 Interchange Plaza, Suite 301 Cranbury, NJ 08512 609-664-2769 ext 19			
1c.	1d. Price or Renta	l Range	1e. State and Federal Funding
Number of Affordable Units:			Sources (if any)
	From \$ To Be De	termined	
Number of Rental Units:			N/A
Number of For-Sale Units:	To \$ To Be De	etermined	
1f.	1g. Approximate S	Starting Dates	
Age Restricted			
5-	Advertising:		Occupancy:
Non-Age Restricted			
1h. County		1i. Census Tract(s)	:
Mercer, Monmouth,	Ocean		
1j. Managing/Sales Agent's Name, Address, Phone Number			
1k. Application Fees (if any): Application	on fee applies to con	duct credit and crim	nal background checks.

(Sections II through IV should be consistent for all affordable housing developments and programs within the municipality. Sections that differ must be described in the approved contract between the municipality and the administrative agent and in the approved Operating Manual.)

II. RANDOM SELECTION

2. Describe the random selection process that will be used once applications are received. The Administrative Agent will assign random numbers to each applicant through a computerized random number generator.

After the list of applications submitted during the initial lottery period is exhausted, the priority of preliminary applications is established by the date the household submitted their preliminary application (Interest Date).

In addition to the random number assigned to the household and/or the interest date, there are other factors impacting waiting priority which are described below.

- **Regional Preference:** Applicants that indicated that they lived or work in the Affordable Housing Region will be contacted first. Once those applicants are exhausted, applicants outside the region will be contacted.
- Veterans Preference: If there is an executed agreement between the developer or landlord and the Township, duly quailed veterans will also be given preference according to the terms of the agreement.
- Household Size: Whenever possible, there will be at least one person for each bedroom. If the waiting list is exhausted and there are no in or out region households with a person for each bedroom size, units will be offered to smaller sized households that do not have a person for each bedroom. The Administrative Agent cannot require an applicant household to take an affordable unit with a greater number of bedrooms, as long as overcrowding is not a factor. A household can be eligible for more than one unit category.

MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 95 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

	waiting list because of the very li person with physically disabilitie	hold with a person with physical disab mited number of accessible units. If th s on the waiting list, in region househo as must provide a letter from their doctor result of their disability.	ere is more than one household with a lds with a person for each bedroom		
III. MA	RKETING				
3a. Direction without speci	of Marketing Activity: (indicate ial outreach efforts because of its	which group(s) in the housing region location and other factors)	are least likely to apply for the housing		
U White (no	on-Hispanic X Black (non-	Hispanic) X Hispanic 🗆 .	American Indian or Alaskan Native		
	Asian or Pacific Island	er 🗌 Other gr	oup:		
X HOUS	SING RESOURCE CENTER (at initial occupancy and as needed: www.njhousing.gov) A free, online lis	sting of affordable housing		
	ll Township Website (<u>https://ww</u> able Homes New Jersey (CGP&l	/ <u>w.twp.nowell.nj.us/</u> H) website (<u>https://www.affordablehor</u>	ncsnewiersev.com/)		
			(<u>(), (), (), (), (), (), (), (), (), (), </u>		
3c. Commerc	ial Media (required) (Check all t	hat applies)			
	DURATION & FREQUENCY OF OUTREACH	NAMES OF REGIONAL NEWSPAPER(S)	CIRCULATION AREA		
TARGETS I Daily News	PARTIAL HOUSING REGION				
		Trenton Times	Mercer		
Х		Trentonian	Mercer		
Х		Asbury Park Press	Monmouth, Ocean		
		Ocean County Observer	Ocean		
Weekly Nev	vspaper				
		Howell Times	Monmouth		
		Tri-Town News	Monmouth		
		Ewing Observer	Mercer		
		Hopewell Valley News	Mercer		
	Lawrence Ledger Mercer				
	Pennington Post Mercer				
		Princeton Town Topics	Mercer		
	8	Tempo Mercer	Mercer		
		Trenton Downtowner	Mercer		
		Windsor Heights Herald	Mercer		
		West Windsor-Plainsboro News	Mercer, Middlesex		
		Princeton Packet	Mercer, Middlesex, Somerset		

MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 96 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

		Messenger-Press	Mercer, Monmouth, Ocean
		Woodbridge Sentinel	Middlesex
		Atlanticville	Monmouth
		Coaster	Monmouth
		Courier	Monmouth
		Examiner	Monmouth
		Hub, The	Monmouth
	c	Independent, The	Monmouth
		News Transcript	Monmouth
		Two River Times	Monmouth
		Coast Star, The	Monmouth, Ocean
		Beach Haven Times	Ocean
		Beacon, The	Ocean
		Berkeley Times	Ocean
	2	Brick Bulletin	Ocean
		Brick Times	Ocean
		Jackson Times	Ocean
		Lacey Beacon	Ocean
		Manchester Times	Ocean
		New Egypt Press	Ocean
		Ocean County Journal	Ocean
		Ocean Star, The	Ocean
		Tri-Town News	Ocean
		Tuckerton Beacon	Ocean
		Atlantic Highlands Herald	Monmouth
	DURATION & FREQUENCY OF OUTREACH	NAMES OF REGIONAL TV STATION(S)	CIRCULATION AREA AND/OR RACIAL/ETHNIC IDENTIFICATION OF READERS/AUDIENCE
TARGETS E	NTIRE HOUSING REGION		
	A	2 WCBS-TV CBS Broadcasting Inc.	
		4 WNBC NBC Telemundo License Co. (General Electric)	
		5 WNYW Fox Television Stations, Inc. (News Corp.)	

7 WABC-TV American Broadcasting Companies, Inc (Walt Disny) 9 WWOR, TV Fox Television Stations, Inc. (News Corp.) 10 WCAU 11 WCAU 12 Contract Stations, Inc. (News Corp.) 13 WCR, TV 14 WPIX, Inc. (Tribune) 15 WNET 16 WAL 17 WPIX, Inc. (Tribune) 18 WNET 19 WNET 20 Statistics 21 WNET 22 W25 AW Well Instruct Statistics 22 W25 AW WZEN TV, Inc. Wereer 21 Using Value Public 22 W25 AW WZEN TV, Inc. Wereer 23 W25 AW 24 WZEN TV, Inc. Mercer 25 W25 AW 26 WBPHLTV 26 WBPHLTV 27 Using Public 28 W25 AW 29 WIX VE.TV 20 ON WBPLTV 20 ON WBPLTV 21 ON WET 22 W25 AW 29 WIX VE.TV 20 ON WBPLTV 20 ON WBPLTV 20 ON WBPLTV	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
Comparise, Inc (Wait Disney) 9 WWOR.TV Pox Television Stations, Inc. (News Corp.) 10 WCAU NBE Telemando License Co. (General Electric) 11 WPIX, Inc. (Tribune) 12 WINET 13 WNET Educational Broadcasting Corporation 20 SWNB New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority X Cablevision 77 FIOS 39 and 40 Mercer 39 WLVT-TV 16 WPIX-TW 17 Broadcasting Corporation 18 WWE 19 WLVT-TV 10 WPIX-TW 10 WPIX-TW 10 WPIX-TW 10 WPIX-TW 11 WWE 12 Cabley Null, Inc. 13 WLVT-TV 14 WXTV 15 WWIZ-TW 16 WPIX-TV	1.4-av		7 WABC-TV	
9 9 WWOR.TV Pox Television Stations, Inc. (News Corp.) 10 WCAU NBC Telemundo License Co. (General Electric) 11 WPIX 12 WINB 13 WNET 13 WNET 14 WPIX 15 WNB New Jersey Public Broadcasting Curporation SWNB New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority TARGETS PARTIAL HOUSING REGION X Cablevision 77 FIOS 39 and 40 Monmouth 25 W25 AW WZEN TV, Inc. Mercer 12 SWYUPT.TV 14 Leigh Valley Public 15 Sonshire Family Television Corp. 14 Kercer 15 Sonshire Family Television Corp. 16 60 WBZ-TV 17 Monnau Broadcasting 18 Sonshire Family Television Corp. 19 Mercer 10 60 WBZ-TV 110 Monnau Broadcasting 110 Company. Inc. <tr< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></tr<>				
Image: Provide of the set of the se			Companies, Inc (Walt Disney)	
Image: Comparison of the comparison			9 WWOR-TV	
Image: Comparison of the comparison			Fox Television Stations, Inc.	
Image: state of the state				
Image: space of the space	-			
Image: Comparison of the comparison of thecomparison of the comparison of the comparison of the comparison				
Image: space of the second state of the second st				
Image: space of the second				
Image: Second Strategy Public Broadcasting Corporation Second Strategy Public Broadcasting Authority TARGETS PARTIAL HOUSING REGION 4 X Cablevision 77 FIOS 39 and 40 Mommouth 2 SW VIT Cablevision 77 FIOS 39 and 40 Mommouth 2 SW VIT Cablevision 77 FIOS 39 and 40 Mommouth Cablevision Corp. Mercer 60 WBPH-TV Combine Family Television Corp. Mercer 63 WMBC-TV Marranatha Broadcasting Corp. Company, Inc. Mercer, Monmouth Mercer, Monmouth Marranatha Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean Mercer, Ocean </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>				
Image: Comparison of Compar	<u> </u>			
Corporation Corporation S WNJB New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority TARGETS PARTIAL HOUSING REGION 4 X Cablevision 77 FIOS 39 and 40 Monmouth 25 W25AW WZBN TV, Inc, Mercer 39 WLVT TV Lehigh Valley Public Telecommunications Corp. Mercer 39 WLVT TV Cosmshine Family Television Corp Mercer Somshine Family Television Corp Mercer G WMBC-TV Montain Broadcasting Corp. Maraatha Broadcasting Company, Inc. Mercer Maraatha Broadcasting Company, Inc. Mercer, Monmouth St YWTV St SWTV, Vicense Partnership, G.P. (Univision Communications Inc.) Mercer, Monmouth St YWTV St SWTV, Vicense Partnership, G.P. (Univision Communications Inc.) Mercer, Ocean St YWTV St YWTV Mercer, Ocean 20 W1X-TV Mercer, Ocean 21 WHY, Y, Inc. Mercer, Ocean WHYV, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 23 WNS Mercer, Ocean WHYY, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 23 WNS Mercer, Ocean WHYY, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 23 WNS Mercer, Ocean WHYY, Inc.				
S8 WNB S8 WNB New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Authority TARGETS PARTIAL HOUSING REGION 4 Monmouth X Cablevision 77 FIOS 39 and 40 Monmouth Q 25 W25 AW Mercer WZBN TV, Inc. Mercer Mercer 1 Lehigh Valley Public Telecommunications Corp. Mercer 1 Go WBPH-TV Sonshine Family Television Corp Mercer 1 Go WBPH-TV Sonshine Family Television Corp. Mercer 1 Go WBPH-TV Sonshine Family Television Corp. Mercer 1 Go WWENTV Mercer 2 Maranaha Broadcasting Company, Inc. Mercer, Monmouth 1 Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean 2 WXTV License Partnership, G.P. (Univision Communications Inc.) Mercer, Ocean 2 S KYW-TV Mercer, Ocean 2 Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean 2 WHY, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 3 KYW-TV Mercer, Ocean 2 YWNS Mercer, Ocean 2 YWNS Mercer, Ocean 2 YWNS Mercer, Ocean 3 YWY Mercer, Ocean 3 YWNS Mercer, Ocean 3 YWNS				
Image: constraint of the second se				
Authority TARGETS PARTIAL HOUSING REGION 4 X Cablevision 77 FIOS 39 and 40 Monmouth 25 W25AW Mercer 0 25 W25AW Mercer 1 25 W25AW Mercer 2 39 WLVT-TV Mercer 1 Lchigh Valley Public Mercer 1 Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Mercer 1 60 WBPH-TV Sonshine Family Television Corp Mercer 60 WBPH-TV Mountain Broadcasting Company, Inc. Mercer 41 WXTV WYTV Uicense Partnership, G.P. (Univision Communications Inc.) Mercer, Ocean 41 WXTV WYTV TV 1 American Broadcasting Companis, Inc (Walt Disney) Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY-TV Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY-TV Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 13 WYNE Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY, TRC. Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS Mercer, Ocean 10 WHYY, TRC. Mercer, Ocean <td></td> <td></td> <td>58 WNJB</td> <td></td>			58 WNJB	
Authority TARGETS PARTIAL HOUSING REGION 4 X Cablevision 77 FIOS 39 and 40 Monmouth 25 W25AW Mercer 0 25 W25AW Mercer 1 25 W25AW Mercer 2 39 WLVT-TV Mercer 1 Lchigh Valley Public Mercer 1 Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Mercer 1 60 WBPH-TV Sonshine Family Television Corp Mercer 60 WBPH-TV Mountain Broadcasting Company, Inc. Mercer 41 WXTV WYTV Uicense Partnership, G.P. (Univision Communications Inc.) Mercer, Ocean 41 WXTV WYTV TV 1 American Broadcasting Companis, Inc (Walt Disney) Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY-TV Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY-TV Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 13 WYNE Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY, TRC. Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS Mercer, Ocean 10 WHYY, TRC. Mercer, Ocean <td></td> <td></td> <td>New Jersey Public Broadcasting</td> <td></td>			New Jersey Public Broadcasting	
TARGETS PARTIAL HOUSING REGION 4 X Cablevision 77 FIOS 39 and 40 Monmouth 2 25 W25AW Mercer 39 WLVT.TV Lehigh Valley Public Mercer 1 26 W25AW Mercer 2 60 WBPH-TV Mercer 61 60 WBPH-TV Mercer 63 WMBC-TV Mercer Mercer 63 WMBC-TV Mercer Mercer 69 WFMZ-TV Mercer Mercer 9 WFMZ-TV Maranatha Broadcasting Corp. Mercer 1 41 WXTV Mercer, Ocean 2 XXTV License Partnership, G.P. (Univision Communications Inc.) Mercer, Ocean 1 XYTV Mercer, Ocean Mercer, Ocean 2 XWXYV, Nr. Mercer, Ocean Mercer, Ocean 1 12 WHYV, TV Mercer, Ocean Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS Nev Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS Nev Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS Nev Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean Mercer, Ocea				
X Cablevision 77 FIOS 39 and 40 Monmouth 25 W25AW Mercer 39 WLVT-TV Mercer 1 Lehigh Valley Public Telecommunications Corp. Mercer 0 Sonshine Family Television Corp 0 Sonshine Family Television Corp. 0 Mountain Broadcasting Corp. 0 Mountain Broadcasting Corp. 0 Mountain Broadcasting Corp. 0 Mountain Broadcasting Corp. 0 Maranatha Broadcasting Corp. 0 Maranatha Broadcasting Corp. 0 Maranatha Broadcasting Corp. 0 Mercer 1 WXTV License Partnership, G.P. (Univision Communications Inc.) Mercer, Monmouth 1 XWY-TV 1 Company, Inc. 1 Atterer, Noneanouth 2 WYV-TV 1 WHY, Inc. 1 Atterer, Ocean 1 YW-TV 1 Tribus Company 1 YW-TV 1 WHY, Inc. 17 WHY, Inc.				
X Cablevision 77 FIOS 39 and 40 Monmouth 25 W25AW Mercer 39 WLVT-TV Mercer 1 Lehigh Valley Public Telecommunications Corp. Mercer 0 Sonshine Family Television Corp 0 Sonshine Family Television Corp. 0 Mountain Broadcasting Corp. 0 Mountain Broadcasting Corp. 0 Mountain Broadcasting Corp. 0 Mountain Broadcasting Corp. 0 Maranatha Broadcasting Corp. 0 Maranatha Broadcasting Corp. 0 Maranatha Broadcasting Corp. 0 Mercer 1 WXTV License Partnership, G.P. (Univision Communications Inc.) Mercer, Monmouth 1 XWY-TV 1 Company, Inc. 1 Atterer, Noneanouth 2 WYV-TV 1 WHY, Inc. 1 Atterer, Ocean 1 YW-TV 1 Tribus Company 1 YW-TV 1 WHY, Inc. 17 WHY, Inc.	THE OFFICE			
A Monmouth 25 W25 AW Mercer 39 WLV-T-TV Mercer 1 Lehigh Valley Public 1 Lehigh Valley Public 1 60 WBPH-TV 20 Sonshine Family Television Corp. 1 60 WBPH-TV 20 Mountain Broadcasting Corp. 1 Mountain Broadcasting Corp. 21 Mountain Broadcasting Corp. 22 Mountain Broadcasting Corp. 23 Maranaha Broadcasting Corp. 24 WXTV License Partnership, G.P. 23 KYW-TV 24 WXTV License Partnership, G.P. 24 WXTV License Partnership, G.P. 25 WZYL License Partnership, G.P. 26 WPV1-TV 26 WPV1-TV 35 Mercer, Ocean 26 WPV1-TV 27 Mercer, Ocean 28 Strade and the strade a	TARGETS P	ARTIAL HOUSING REGION	N 4	
A Monmouth 25 W25 AW Mercer 39 WLV-T-TV Mercer 1 Lehigh Valley Public 1 Lehigh Valley Public 1 60 WBPH-TV 20 Sonshine Family Television Corp. 1 60 WBPH-TV 20 Mountain Broadcasting Corp. 1 Mountain Broadcasting Corp. 21 Mountain Broadcasting Corp. 22 Mountain Broadcasting Corp. 23 Maranaha Broadcasting Corp. 24 WXTV License Partnership, G.P. 23 KYW-TV 24 WXTV License Partnership, G.P. 24 WXTV License Partnership, G.P. 25 WZYL License Partnership, G.P. 26 WPV1-TV 26 WPV1-TV 35 Mercer, Ocean 26 WPV1-TV 27 Mercer, Ocean 28 Strade and the strade a				1
25 W25AW Moninoutin WZBN TV, Inc, Mercer 39 WLVT-TV Lehigh Valley Public Telecommunications Corp. Mercer 60 WBPH-TV Mercer 63 WMBC-TV Mercer 69 WFMZ-TV Mountain Broadcasting Corp. Mercer 69 WFMZ-TV Maranatha Broadcasting Company, Inc. Mercer 1 41 WXTV WXTV License Partnership, G.P. (Univision Communications Inc.) Mercer, Monmouth 3 KYW-TV CBS Broadcasting Company, Inc. 6 WPV1-TV Mercer, Ocean 7 WYT CBS Broadcasting Inc. 6 WPV1-TV Mercer, Ocean 1 WYTY Mercer, Ocean 1 WHYY, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 2 WNIX Stations, Inc. (News Corp.) 1 WHYY, TrV Mercer, Ocean 2 WWXF-TV Stations, Inc. (News Corp.) 1 SWPBE Independence Public Media Of Philadelphia, Inc. 1 Mercer, Ocean 35 WYBE 1 Mercer, Ocean 52	I X	-	Cablevision 77 FIOS 39 and 40	
Image: Comparison of the second se				Monmouth
Image: Second	-			
Image: Construction of the co				Mercer
Telecommunications Corp. Mercer 60 WBPH-TV Sonshine Family Television Corp. Mercer 63 WMBC-TV Mountain Broadcasting Corp. Mercer 69 WFMZ-TV Maranatha Broadcasting Mercer 1 69 WFMZ-TV Mercer 2 Maranatha Broadcasting Mercer 2 Go WFMZ-TV Mercer 3 KYW-TV Mercer 1 WXTV License Partnership, G.P. Mercer, Monmouth 2 SKYW-TV Mercer, Ocean 3 KYW-TV Mercer, Ocean 6 6 WPUI-TV Mercer, Ocean 1 Companies, Inc (Walt Disney) Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY-TV Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY-TV Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS 117 WPHL-TV Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS 12 WHY-TV Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV 11 PWH-TV Mercer, Ocean 12 StyrBE Independence Public Media Of 11 Independ			39 WLVT-TV	
Telecommunications Corp. Mercer 60 WBPH-TV Sonshine Family Television Corp. Mercer 63 WMBC-TV Mountain Broadcasting Corp. Mercer 69 WFMZ-TV Maranatha Broadcasting Mercer 1 69 WFMZ-TV Mercer 2 Maranatha Broadcasting Mercer 2 Go WFMZ-TV Mercer 3 KYW-TV Mercer 1 WXTV License Partnership, G.P. Mercer, Monmouth 2 SKYW-TV Mercer, Ocean 3 KYW-TV Mercer, Ocean 6 6 WPUI-TV Mercer, Ocean 1 Companies, Inc (Walt Disney) Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY-TV Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY-TV Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS 117 WPHL-TV Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS 12 WHY-TV Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV 11 PWH-TV Mercer, Ocean 12 StyrBE Independence Public Media Of 11 Independ			Lehigh Valley Public	
Image: Construct Southing State Southing State Southing State Southing State Southing State Southing Southing State Southing			Telecommunications Corp.	Mercer
Image: Sonshine Family Television Corp Mercer 63 WMBC-TV Mountain Broadcasting Corp. Mercer 69 WFMZ-TV Maranatha Broadcasting Mercer 1 69 WFMZ-TV Mercer 2 41 WXTV Mercer 1 41 WXTV Mercer 2 41 WXTV Mercer 3 KYW-TV Mercer, Monmouth Mercer, Ocean 3 KYW-TV CBS Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean 6 WPVI-TV American Broadcasting Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY-TV Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY-TV 12 WHYY, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 23 WNS 13 WYB 17 WPHL-TV Mercer, Ocean 23 WNS New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV Fox Television Stations, Inc. (News Corp.) Mercer, Ocean 35 WYBE Independence Public Media Of Philadelphia, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 35 WYBE Stations Network Mercer, Ocean 48 WGTW-TV Trinity Broadcasting Network Mercer, Ocean 52 WNJT Mercer, Ocean 52 WNJT 1 Stations Inc. (Nercer, Ocean 60 WPPX 20 CBS Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean				
Image: Constant of the second seco		e		Marcar
Image: market set of the se	<u></u>			Mercer
69 WFMZ-TV Maranatha Broadcasting Company, Inc. 41 WXTV WXTV License Partnership, G.P. (Univision Communications Inc.) Mercer, Monmouth 3 KYW-TV CBS Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean 6 WPV1-TV American Broadcasting Companies, Inc (Walt Disney) Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY-TV 12 WHYY-TV 13 WNJS 14 WHY J. Inc. 17 WPHL-TV 17 WPHL-TV 18 Word WHY J. Inc. 19 WTXF-TV 10 YPHL-TV 10 WHY J. Inc. 117 WPHL-TV Tribune Company Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV Fox Television Stations, Inc. (News Corp.) Mercer, Ocean 35 WYBE Independence Public Media Of Philadelphia, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 35 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 52 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 52 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 57 WPSG CBS B				
Image: market in the image: market				Mercer
Company, Inc. Mercer 41 WXTV 41 WXTV WXTV License Partnership, G.P. (Univision Communications Inc.) Mercer, Monmouth 3 KYW-TV 3 KYW-TV CBS Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean 6 WPV1-TV American Broadcasting Companies, Inc (Walt Disney) Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY-TV Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 13 WNJS Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV Mercer, Ocean 20 WTXF-TV Mercer, Ocean 21 WTY Mercer, Ocean 22 WTXF-TV Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS Mercer, Ocean 24 WTXF-TV Mercer, Ocean 25 WTE Independence Public Media Of Philadelphia, Inc. 48 WGTW-TV Mercer, Ocean 52 WNJT S2 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 52 WNJT S2 WNJT CBS Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean 61 WPYX Mercer, Ocean 61 WPYX Mercer, Ocean				
41 WXTV WXTV License Partnership, G.P. (Univision Communications Inc.) Mercer, Monmouth KYW-TV CBS Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean WPVI-TV Cmpanies, Inc (Walt Disney) Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY-TV WHYY, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY-TV WHYY, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY-TV WHYY, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 23 WNS New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV Fox Television Stations, Inc. (News Corp.) Mercer, Ocean 35 WYBE Independence Public Media Of Philadelphia, Inc. Mercer, Ocean S2 WNT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean S2 WNT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean S2 WNT New Jersey Public Broadcasting				
Image: space of the system				Mercer
Image: Constraint of the second se				
Image: Constraint of the second se			WXTV License Partnership, G.P.	
Image: Second	10		(Univision Communications Inc.)	Mercer, Monmouth
CBS Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean 6 WPVI-TV American Broadcasting Companies, Inc (Walt Disney) Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY-TV Mercer, Ocean WHYY, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 17 WPHL-TV Mercer, Ocean 23 WNYS Mercer, Ocean 23 WNS New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV Mercer, Ocean SWYBE Independence Public Media Of Independence Public Media Of Philadelphia, Inc. 48 WGTW-TV Mercer, Ocean 52 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 35 WYBE Independence Public Media Of Philadelphia, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 52 WNJT Mercer, Ocean S2 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 52 WSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. CBS Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean 61 WPX Paxson Communications License				
6 WPVI-TV American Broadcasting Companies, Inc (Walt Disney) Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY-TV Mercer, Ocean 12 WHYY-TV Mercer, Ocean 17 WPHL-TV Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV Mercer, Ocean 35 WYBE Independence Public Media Of 11 Idependence Public Media Of Mercer, Ocean 35 WYBE Independence Public Media Of 10 Mercer, Ocean S2 WNJT 52 WNJT Mercer, Ocean 52 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 52 WSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. 61 WPX Paxson Communications License				Mercer Ocean
Image: Companies, Inc (Walt Disney) Mercer, Ocean Image: Companies, Inc (Walt Disney) Mercer, Ocean Image: Company WHYY, Inc. Mercer, Ocean Image: Company Mercer, Ocean Ima				Wereer, Ocean
Companies, Inc (Walt Disney) Mercer, Ocean I 12 WHYY-TV Mercer, Ocean WHYY, Inc. Mercer, Ocean I 17 WPHL-TV Tribune Company Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS Mercer, Ocean New Jersey Public Broadcasting Mercer, Ocean Authority Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV Mercer, Ocean Fox Television Stations, Inc. News Corp.) Mercer, Ocean 35 WYBE Independence Public Media Of Mercer, Ocean Philadelphia, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 48 WGTW-TV Mercer, Ocean S2 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 52 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean S1 WPSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. G1 WPX Mercer, Ocean S1 WPX Paxson Communications License				
Image: Independence Public Mercer, Ocean Image:				
Image: matrix of the system WHYY, Inc. Mercer, Ocean Image: matrix of the system 17 WPHL-TV Tribune Company Mercer, Ocean Image: matrix of the system 23 WNJS New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean Image: matrix of the system 29 WTXF-TV Fox Television Stations, Inc. (News Corp.) Mercer, Ocean Image: matrix of the system 35 WYBE Independence Public Media Of Philadelphia, Inc. Mercer, Ocean Image: matrix of the system 48 WGTW-TV Trinity Broadcasting Network Mercer, Ocean Image: matrix of the system 52 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean Image: matrix of the system 52 WNJT Trinity Broadcasting Network Mercer, Ocean Image: matrix of the system 52 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean Image: matrix of the system 57 WPSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean Image: matrix of the system 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License Mercer, Ocean				Mercer, Ocean
Image: market state WHY, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 17 WPHL-TV Tribune Company Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS New Jersey Public Broadcasting Mercer, Ocean Authority Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV Mercer, Ocean Fox Television Stations, Inc. (News Corp.) (News Corp.) Mercer, Ocean 35 WYBE Independence Public Media Of Philadelphia, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 48 WGTW-TV Mercer, Ocean 52 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 57 WPSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License				
Image: matrix of the system Tribune Company Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV Fox Television Stations, Inc. (News Corp.) Mercer, Ocean 35 WYBE Independence Public Media Of Philadelphia, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 48 WGTW-TV Trinity Broadcasting Network Mercer, Ocean 52 WNJT S2 WNJT S2 WNJT S2 WNJT S2 WNJT Mercer, Ocean 57 WPSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License Mercer, Ocean				Mercer, Ocean
Image: Company Mercer, Ocean 23 WNJS New Jersey Public Broadcasting New Jersey Public Broadcasting Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV Fox Television Stations, Inc. (News Corp.) Mercer, Ocean 35 WYBE Independence Public Media Of Philadelphia, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 48 WGTW-TV Mercer, Ocean 52 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting New Jersey Public Broadcasting Mercer, Ocean 57 WPSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License				
23 WNJS New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV Fox Television Stations, Inc. (News Corp.) Mercer, Ocean 35 WYBE Independence Public Media Of Philadelphia, Inc. 48 WGTW-TV Trinity Broadcasting Network S2 WNJT S2 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority S7 WPSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License				Mercer, Ocean
Authority Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV Fox Television Stations, Inc. (News Corp.) Mercer, Ocean 35 WYBE Independence Public Media Of Philadelphia, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 48 WGTW-TV Mercer, Ocean 52 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 57 WPSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License Mercer, Ocean				
Authority Mercer, Ocean 29 WTXF-TV Fox Television Stations, Inc. (News Corp.) Mercer, Ocean 35 WYBE Independence Public Media Of Philadelphia, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 48 WGTW-TV Mercer, Ocean 52 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 57 WPSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License Mercer, Ocean			New Jersey Public Broadcasting	
29 WTXF-TV Fox Television Stations, Inc. (News Corp.) 35 WYBE Independence Public Media Of Philadelphia, Inc. 48 WGTW-TV Trinity Broadcasting Network 52 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority 57 WPSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License				Mercer, Ocean
Image: Second station s				
Image: constraint of the system (News Corp.) Mercer, Ocean 35 WYBE Independence Public Media Of Philadelphia, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 48 WGTW-TV Mercer, Ocean 7 Trinity Broadcasting Network Mercer, Ocean 52 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 57 WPSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License Paxson Communications License				
35 WYBE Independence Public Media Of Philadelphia, Inc. 48 WGTW-TV Trinity Broadcasting Network 52 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority 57 WPSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License				Martin Oraci
Independence Public Media Of Philadelphia, Inc. Mercer, Ocean Mercer, Ocean 48 WGTW-TV Trinity Broadcasting Network Mercer, Ocean S2 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean S7 WPSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License Faxon Communications License				iviercer, Ocean
Philadelphia, Inc. Mercer, Ocean 48 WGTW-TV 48 WGTW-TV Trinity Broadcasting Network Mercer, Ocean 52 WNJT 52 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 57 WPSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License				
48 WGTW-TV Trinity Broadcasting Network Mercer, Ocean 52 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 57 WPSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License Paxson Communications License				
Image: Constraint of the second se				Mercer, Ocean
Image: Constraint of the second se	-			
52 WNJT New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority 57 WPSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License				Mercer, Ocean
New Jersey Public Broadcasting Authority Mercer, Ocean 57 WPSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Authority Mercer, Ocean 57 WPSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License				
57 WPSG CBS Broadcasting Inc. 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License				Mercer Ocean
CBS Broadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License				Miller, Oceall
CBS Bloadcasting Inc. Mercer, Ocean 61 WPPX Paxson Communications License				
Paxson Communications License				Mercer, Ocean
	<u></u>	-		
Company, LLC Mercer, Ocean				
			Company, LLC	Mercer, Ocean

		65 WUVP-TV Univision Communications, Inc.	Mercer, Ocean
		25 WNYE-TV	
		New York City Dept. Of Info Technology &	
		Telecommunications	Monmouth
		31 WPXN-TV Paxson Communications License	
		Company, LLC	Monmouth
		47 WNJU	
		NBC Telemundo License Co.	
		(General Electric) 50 WNJN	Monmouth
		New Jersey Public Broadcasting	
		Authority	Monmouth
		68 WFUT-TV	Monmouth, Ocean
		Univision New York LLC 62 WWSI	(Spanish)
		Hispanic Broadcasters of	
::,5		Philadelphia, LLC	Ocean
	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		
	DURATION & FREQUENCY		
	OF OUTREACH	NAMES OF CABLE PROVIDER(S)	BROADCAST AREA
TARGETS P	ARTIAL HOUSING REGION	14	
10-12 S		Cablevision of Hamilton	Partial Mercer, Monmouth
	÷	Comcast of Central NJ,	Partial Mercer, Monmouth
		Patriot Media & Communications, CNJ	Partial Mercer
		Cablevision of Monmouth, Raritan Valley	Partial Monmouth
		Comcast of Mercer County, Southeast Pennsylvania	Partial Middlesex
•		Comcast of Monmouth County	Partial Monmouth, Ocean
	~	Comcast of Garden State, Long Beach Island, Ocean County, Toms River	Partial Ocean
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		BROADCAST AREA AND/OR
	DURATION & FREQUENCY OF OUTREACH	NAMES OF REGIONAL RADIO STATION(S)	RACIAL/ETHNIC IDENTIFICATION OF READERS/AUDIENCE
TADCETSE	NTIDE HOUSING BEGION	4	5 C
AM	NTIRE HOUSING REGION 4	•	
10.000			
		WWJZ 640	
		WOR 710	
		WABC 770	
		WCBS 880	
		WBBR 1130	
		WPST 94.5	
FM			
		WKXW-FM 101.5	
		WDDD 102 2	
		WPRB 103.3	

FARGETS PARTIAL HO AM	USING REGION 4	
	WFIL 560	Mercer, Monmouth
	WMCA 570	Monmouth, Ocean
Ö	WFAN 660	Mercer, Monmouth
	WNYC 820	Mercer, Monmouth
	WWBD 860	Mercer
	WPHY 920	Mercer
	WNTP 990	Mercer
	WCHR 1040	Mercer
	WOBM 1160	Monmouth, Ocean
	WWTR 1170	Mercer
	WPHT 1210	Mercer, Monmouth
	WBUD 1260	Mercer, Monmouth
	WIMG 1300	Mercer
	WADB 1310	Monmouth, Ocean
	WHTG 1410	Monmouth
	WCTC 1450	Mercer, Monmouth
	WBCB 1490	Mercer
	WTTM 1680	Mercer, Monmouth
M		
	WNJT-FM 88.1	Mercer
	WWFM 89.1	Mercer, Monmouth
	WRDR 89.7	Monmouth, Ocean
	WRT1 90.1	Mercer
	WBJB-FM 90.5	Monmouth
	WWNJ 91.1	Ocean
	WTSR 91.3	Mercer
	WBGD 91.9	Ocean
	WFNY-FM 92.3	Mercer, Monmouth
	WXTU 92.5	Mercer
	WOBM-FM 92.7	Ocean
	WPAT-FM 93.1	Mercer, Monmouth

	WMMR 93.3	Mercer
	WNYC-FM 93.9	Mercer, Monmouth
	WYSP 94.1	Mercer
	WJLK-FM 94.3	Monmouth, Ocean
	WFME 94.7	Mercer, Monmouth
	WZZO 95.1	Mercer
	WPLJ 95.5	Mercer, Monmouth
	WBEN-FM 95.7	Mercer
	WRAT 95.9	Monmouth, Ocean
	WCTO 96.1	Mercer
	WQXR-FM 96.3	Mercer, Monmouth
	WRDW-FM 96.5	Mercer
	WQHT 97.1	Mercer, Monmouth
	WSKQ-FM 97.9	Mercer, Monmouth
	WOGL 98.1	Mercer
	WMGQ 98.3	Mercer, Monmouth
	WRKS 98.7	Mercer, Monmouth
	WUSL 98.9	Mercer, Monmouth
	WAWZ 99.1	Mercer, Monmouth
	WBAI 99.5	Mercer, Monmouth
	WJRZ-FM 100.1	Ocean
	WHTZ 100.3	Mercer, Monmouth
	WCBS-FM 101.1	Mercer, Monmouth
	WQCD 101.9	Mercer, Monmouth
	WIOQ 102.1	Mercer
	WNEW 102.7	Mercer, Monmouth
	WMGK 102.9	Mercer
	WKTU 103.5	Mercer, Monmouth
	WAXQ 104.3	Mercer, Monmouth
Ď	WWPR-FM 105.1	Mercer, Monmouth
	WDAS-FM 105.3	Mercer, Monmouth
	WCHR-FM 105.7	Ocean

MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 101 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

WJJZ 106.1	Mercer, Monmouth
WHTG-FM 106.3	Monmouth, Ocean
WLTW 106.7	Mercer, Monmouth
WKDN 106.9	Mercer
WWZY 107.1	Monmouth, Ocean
WBLS 107.5	Mercer, Monmouth
WWPH 107.9	Mercer

3d. Other Publications (such as neighborhood newspapers, religious publications, and organizational newsletters) (Check all that applies)

		RACIAL/ETHNIC
NAME OF		IDENTIFICATION OF
PUBLICATIONS	OUTREACH AREA	READERS/AUDIENCE

TARGETS ENTIRE HOUSING REGION 4

Weekly

Х

Reporte Hispano	Central/South Jersey	Spanish-Language	
-----------------	----------------------	------------------	--

TARGETS PARTIAL HOUSING REGION 4

Weekly

	New Jersey Jewish News	Northern and Central New Jersey	Jewish
	El Hispano	Camden and Trenton areas	Spanish-Language
	Ukrainian Weekly	New Jersey	Ukrainian community

3e. Employer Outreach (names of employers throughout the housing region that can be contacted to post advertisements and distribute flyers regarding available affordable housing) See Appendix B of Howell Affirmative Marketing Plan 3f. Community Contacts (names of community groups/organizations throughout the housing region that can be contacted to post advertisements and distribute flyers regarding available affordable housing) See Appendix B of Howell Affirmative Marketing Plan Marketing Plan

IV. APPLICATIONS

Applications for affordable housing for the above units will be available at the following locations:

4a. County Administration Buildings and/or Libraries for all counties in the housing region (list county building, address, contact person) (Check all that applies) See Appendix C of Howell Affirmative Marketing Plan

4b. Municipality in which the units are located (list municipal building and municipal library, address, contact) See Appendix C of Howell Affirmative Marketing Plan

4c. Sales/Rental Office for units (if applicable)

V. CERTIFICATIONS AND ENDORSEMENTS

I hereby certify that the above information is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. I understand that knowingly falsifying the information contained herein may affect the (select one: Municipality's substantive certification or DCA Balanced Housing Program funding or HMFA UHORP/MONI/CHOICE funding).

Name (Type or Print)		
Administrative Agent for the Township of Howell	9/19/14	
Signature	Date	

Appendix A - Howell Township Affordable Housing Di	Distrubtion	List	
--	-------------	------	--

Bosiness Name	Address 1	Address 2	Gity State Zip	Email	0.	Type of Organization
wing Branch Library	61 Scotch Rd.		Ewing, NJ 0M528	- Page 1	Mercer Go.	Libraries
tamilian Touristyp Free Public Library	1 Justice Samuel A. Alite, Jr. Way		Hamiton, NJ 08619		Mercer Co.	Libraries
Sckory Corner Branch Library	138 Hitkory Corner Rd.		East Windsor, NJ 05520		Metcer Ce.	Libraries
ghitatown Memorial Library	114 Franklin St.		Highdstown, HJ 06520		Morcer Co.	Libraries
opewell Branch Library	245 Penzington Titusville Rd.		Pennington, NJ 08534		Mercer Go.	Libraries
opewell Fubbe Library	33 E. Broad St.		Hopmenil, NJ 06525		Mercer Co.	Ubraries
nwrence Headquarters Branch	2751 Brunswick Pike		Lawrenceville, NJ 08648-3099		Morcer Go.	Libraries
J State Library	P.O. Box 520		Trutiton, NJ 05650		Mercer Co.	Likraries
conington Free Public Library	30 N. Main St.		Pennington, NJ 05534		Mercer Ga.	Libraries
incetus Politic Ubrary	65 Witherspoon St.		Princeture, NJ 08542		Mercer Go.	Libraries
incelan University Firestone Library	Public Administration Collection	Forstone A-17-J-1	Princeton, NJ 08544		Mercei Go.	Libracies
der University	Franklin F. Moore Library	2033 Lawrenceville Rd	Lawtenceville, NJ 08648-3099		Mercer Co.	Libraries
sobinaville Branch Library	42 Allerdown- Robbinsville Rd.		Robbinsville, NJ 05991		Mercer Co.	Libraries
iscoe L. West Library	College of New Jersey	2000 Pennington Rd.	Ewing, NJ 06518-1499		Mercer Go.	Libraries
enton Free Public Library	120 Academy St.	A TO AN A CHINA CONTRACTOR	Trenton, NJ 05608		Mercer Go.	Libracias
Mr. Rivers Branch Library	276 Abbington Dr.		East Windsor, NJ 08520		Mercer Go.	Libraries
hury Park Free Public Library	500 1st Avenue		Ashury Park, NJ 07712		Monmosth Co.	Libraties
lantic Highlands Public Library	100 First Ave.		Atlantic Highlands, MJ 07716		Monmaulh Ce.	Litracies
Imar Public Library	517 Tenth Ave.		Belmar, NJ 07719	_	Manmouth Co.	
adjoy Beach Public Library	511 Fourth Ave.		Bradley Beach, MJ 07720		Monmauth Co.	Libraries
elle Public Library	610 South St.		Brinfle, NJ 08730			Libraries
toritown Public Library	33 Broad St.		Eatoolown, NJ 07724		Morrnouth Co.	Libraries
ir Haven Public Library	748 River Rd.		Fait Hoven, NJ 07704		Monmouth Co.	Libtaries
rehold Public Library	28 1-2 E. Main St.		Freehold, NJ 07728		Manmouth Co.	Libraties
the Silver Public Library	484 Prospect Ave.		Little Silver, NJ 07726		Monmouth Co.	Libraries
ng Branch Free Public Library	J28 Bradway				Monmouth Co.	Libraties
manguan Public Library	55 Broad St.		Long Branch, NJ 07240		Molymouth Co.	Librarias
fawan-Aberdeen Public Library	165 Main St.		Manasquan, NJ 05735		Manmouth Co.	Libraries
Idletown Township Fublic Library	55 New Monmouth Rd.		Matewan, 143 07747		Monmouth Co.	Libearies
omouth Beach Public Library	18 Willow Ave.		Middletown, MJ 07748		Mohmouth Co.	Libraries
nmouth Co, Hall of Records	Hall of Records		Morimouth Beach, MJ 07750		Monmisuth Ca.	Libraries
nmouth Co. Library			Freehold, NJ_07728		Manmuuth Co.	Libraries
nmouth Ca. Library - Allentown	125 Symmes Dr.		Manalopan, NJ 07726		Monmosith Co.	Libraries
	19 5. Main St.		Allentown, NJ 08501		Manmuuth Co.	Ubranes
nmouth Co. Library - Eastern Branch	1001 Route 35		Shrewshoey, NJ 07702		Monmouth Co.	Libraries
nmouth Co., Library-Hazist	253 Middle Rd.		Hazlet, NJ 07730		Monmouth Co.	Libra/ies
rimouth Ca. Library-Holindel	101 Crawfords Corner Rd.	Suite 2110	Holmdel, NJ 07733		Monmouth Co.	Libraries
rimouth Go. Library- Howell	318 Old Tavern Rd.		Howell, NJ 07731		Mohmauth Co.	Libraries
rimauth Co. Library- Mariboro	1 Library Ct & Wyncrest Dr.		Marboro, NJ 07746		Manmouth Co.	Libraries
nmouth Co. Library-Ocean	701 Deal Rd		Ocean, NJ 07712		Monmouth Co.	Libraties.
inmouth Co., Library- Wall	2700 Allaire Rd		Wall, NJ 07719		Manmouth Co.	Libraries
plune Township Public Library	25 Neptune Bird.		Neptune, NJ 07753		Manmauth Co.	Libraties.
earlic Free Library	109 Ave. Of Two Rivers		Rumson, NJ 07760		Monmouth Co.	Libraries
d Bank Public Library	84 W. Front St.		Red Bank, NJ 07701		Morrmouth Co.	Libraries
a Englit Library	92 Hathaway St.		Walkington, 113 07057		Monmouth Co.	Libraries
a Get Library	321 Baltimote Blvd.		Sea Girt, NJ 08750		Monmouth Co.	Libratics
ring Lake Public Library	1501 Third Ave.		Spring Lake, NJ 07762		Monmouth Ca.	Libraries
ton Falls Public Library	664 Tinton Ave.		Tinton Falls, #J 07724		Monmouth Co.	Libraries
nn Beach Menorial Lütery	#10 Union Ave.		Union Beach, NJ 07735		Monmouth Co.	Libraries
at Long Branch Public Library	95 Poplar Ave.		West Long Branch, NJ 07764		Monmouth Co:	Ubraries
ean Co. Administration Building	101 Hooper Ave.		Toma Ricer, 08754		Ocean Co.	Libraries
can Co. Library - Barnegat Branch	112 Butr St.		Bainegat, NJ 08005		Ocean Co.	Libraries
can Co. Library - Bay Head Reading Center	136 Meadow Ave		Bay Head, NJ 08742		Ocean Co.	Libraries
ean Co. Library - Beachwood Branch	126 Beachwood Bled		Beachwood, NJ 08722		Ocean Co.	Libraries
can Co, Library - Berkeley Branch	30 Station Rd		Bayville, IIJ 09721		Ocean Co.	Libraties
ean Co. Library - Brick Branch	301 Chambers Bridge Rd		Brick, NJ 09723		Ocean Co.	Libraries
rais Co. Library - Island Heights Branch	P.O 804 1127	121 Central Ave	Island Heights, NJ 08732		Ocean Co.	Libraries
can Co. Library - Jackson Branch	2 Jackson Dr.	al an	Jackson, NJ 08527	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
can Co. Library - Lacey Branch	10 East Lacey Rd		Forked River, NJ 06521		Ocean Co.	Librance
ran Co. Library - Lakewood Branch	301 Lexington Ave.		Lakrwood, NJ 08701		Ocean Co.	Libraries
ran Co. Library - Little Egg Harbor Branch	290 Mathistown Rd		Little Egg Harbor, NJ 08087		Ocean Co.	Librarios
ran Co. Library - Long Beach Mand Branch	217 S. Central Ave		Surf Cey, NJ 08008		Octan Co.	Cribraries.
an Co, Library - Manchester Branch	21 Colonial Dr		Marchester, NJ 08759		Ocean Co.	Libraries
an Co, Ubrary - Phimted Branch	119 Evergreen Rd				Ocean Có.	Libraries
an Co. Library - Point Pleasant Branch	834 Beaver Dam Rd		New Egypt, NJ 08533		Ocean Co.	Libraries
an Co. Library - Ft. Pleasant Beach Branch	710 McLean Ave		Pt. Pleasant, NJ 08742		Ocean Co.	Libraries
an Co. Library - Stafford Branch	129 N. Main St.		PL Pleasant Beach, HJ 08742		Ocean Co.	Libraries.
an Co, Likrary - Toms River Branch	101 Washington St		Manahawkin, NJ 00050		Ocean Co.	Libraries
an Co, Library - Tuckerton Branch			Toms River, NJ 05753		Ocean Co.	Libraties
an Co. Change Thread Change Barrels	380 Bay Ave		Tuckerton, NJ 05057		Ocean Co.	Libearies
an Co. Library + Upper Shores Branch	112 Jersoy City Ave		Lavalistic, NJ 08735		Ocean Co.	Libraries
an Co, Library - Waretown Branch	112 Main St		Waretown, NJ 08758		Ocean Cô,	Libraries
an Co. Library - Whiting Branch	400 Lacey Rd.		Whiting, NJ 08759		Ocean Co.	Litraries
tot-Meens Squibb	100 Nassad Park Blvd #300		Princeton, NJ 08540		Mescer	Major Employer
ance	210 Carnegie Center Drive		Princeton, NJ 08540		Morcor	Major Employee
cational Testing Service	660 Rosedate Road		Princeton, NJ 08541		Motcor	Major Employer
nill Lynch Bank of America	7 Roszel Read	Floor 04	Princeton, NJ 05540		Metter	Major Employer
ceton Theological Seminary	P.O. Box 621	64 Marcar Street	Princeton, NJ 08542-0803		Morcer	Major Employer
ideton University	Office of Human Resources		Princeton, NJ 08544			

MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 103 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

Business Name	Address1	Address 2	Gity State Zip	Email	Co	Type of Organization
Vestninster Choir College of Rider University	2083 Lawsenceville Road		Lawrenceville, NJ 06548	in the second se	Marger	Major Employer
T&T Holmdel	2103 State Route 35		Holmdel, NJ 07733		Manusbuth	Major Employer
cean Medical Center	425 Jack Martin Boulevard		Brick, NJ 08724		Monmouth	Major Employer
ker Shoprile	10 Centerville Road		Helendel, NJ 07733		Monmauth	Major Employer Major Employer
me-Sav-On	425 Route 9 5		Little Egg Harbor Twp, NJ 08087		Ocean	Major Employer
ackman Mildele School	600 Bainegat Bird N		Barnegat, NJ 08005		Ocean	Major Employer
wenney Ford Trucke	PD Boc 547		Manahawkin, NJ 08050		Ocean	Major Employer
cil S Collins School	570 Bamegat Bled N		Barnegat, NJ 08005	D	Ocean	Major Employer
impass Heablicare bic	1140 Route 72 W		Manahawkin, NJ 08050		Ocean	Major Employer
nham School Sarvice	1540 Route 539		Little Egg Harbor Twp, NJ 08087		Ocean	Major Employer
ederic PnW School	139 Wells Mill Rd		Waretown, NJ 08758		Ocean	Major Employer
ag Pond Elementary School	307 Frog Pand Rd		Little Egg Harbor Twp, NJ 08057		Ocean	Major Employer
nesis Healthcare	1351 Route 72 W		Manahav/kin, HJ 08050		Ocean	Major Employer
orge J Mitchell Elementary School-Little Egg Harbor Tow	950 N Green St		Little Egg Harbor Twp, NJ 08987		Ocean	Major Employer
orgian Court University	900 Lakewood Ave		Lakawood, NJ 08701		Ocean	Major Employer
Iday Inn-Long Beach Island	151 Route 72 W		Manahawkin, NJ 08050		Ocean	Major Employer
Ich Bar & Restaurant	PO Box 303		Ship Botten, NJ 08008		Ocean	Major Employer
le Egg Harbor Township-Public Schopls-Supervitendent	107 Frog Pond Rd		Little Egg Harbor Twp, NJ 08087		Ocean	Majar Employer
ng Beach Township Beach Paleol	7910 Long Beach Bivit		Long Beach Township, NJ 08008		Ocean	Major Employer
nshavkin Hursing & Renabilitation Center	1211 Route 72 W		Manahashin, NJ 08050		Ocean	Major Employer
aCare Retrabilitation	1001 Center St		Little Egg Hatbur Twp, 141 08087		Ocean	Major Employer
an Acres Elementary School	469 Naufilus Dr		Manahawkin, NJ 08050		Ocean	Major Employer
erest Village	1001 Center St		Little Egg Harbor Tvip, NJ 08087		Ocean	Major Employer
h Home Care & Support Services	1140 Route 72 W		Manahawkin, NJ 08050		Ocean	Major Errelayer
them Ocean Center	1361 Route 72 W		Manahawkin, NJ 08050		Ocean	Major Employer
them Ocean County Dialysm LLC	279 Mathiatown Rd		Little Egg Harbor Tvp, NJ 08087		Ocean.	Major Employer
them Regional High School	600 N Main 61		Manahawkin, HJ 08050		Occon	Major Employer
tancia Community Center	4700 Long Beach Bled		Beach Haven, NJ 06008		Ocean	Major Employer
ford Intermediate School	1000 McKinley Ave		Manahawkin, NJ 08050		Ocean	Major Employer
flatif Tewnship School System	489 Nautès Dr		Manahawkin, NJ 09050		Ocean	Major Employer
Mix	601 Weshington Ave Ste L		Manshawin, NJ 08050		Ocean	Major Employer
kerton Historical Society	P.O. 8ct 43		Tatkerton, N.J. 08087		Öcean	Major Employer
vg VAlage Inc	PO Bae 458		flamegat Light, NJ 08005		Ocean	Major Employer
mart	525 Route 72 W		Manehawkin, NJ 05050		Ocean	Major Employer
Intermodal	750 College Road East		Princeton, 11J 03540		Mercer	Major Employers
tal Health Systems - Fuld Campus	750 Brunswick Ave.		Trendon, IIJ 05638		Mercer Co.	Major Employers
cait	90 Lake Dr.		East Windsor, NJ 09520		Mercer Co.	Major Employers
air	150 Millord Rd.	1	East Windoor, NJ 08520		Mercer Co.	Major Employers
ogoloum	3500 Quakethridge Rd.		Mercerville, NJ		Mercer Co.	Major Employers
a Communications	2 E, Bread St.		Hupewell HJ		Mercer Co.	Major Employers
Wendsor Regional School District	25A Leshin Lane		Hightstown, NJ 08520		Marcer Co.	Major Employers
ns East	104 Windsor Center Dr.		East Windsor, NJ 08520		Mercer Co.	Major Employers
ng Township Schools	2019 Penninglon Road		Ewing, NJ 08618-1499		Marcar Co.	Major Employers
in, Inc.	1080 US Highway 130		Rohhinsville, NJ 08691		Mercer Co.	Major Employers
sition Township Schools	90 Park Ave.		Hamilton Square, 113 08650		Mercor Co.	Major Employers
hasole	932 Lower Ferry Rd.		Trenton, NJ 06618		Marcer Co.	Major Employers
ewell Valley Regional Schools	425 South Main St.		Pennington, NJ 08534		Marcar Co.	Major Employers
ione	40 Lake Dr.		East Windsor, NJ 08520		Mercer Co.	Major Employers
sen Pharmaceutical	1125 Trenton hatbourton Rd.		Titusville, NJ		Mercer Co.	Major Employers
sen & Johnson	One Johnson & Johnson Pieza		New Brunswick, NJ 08933		Mercer Co.	Major Employers
oz Phanna Corp	69 Princeton Hightstown Rd		East Windsor, NJ 08520		Mercer Co.	Major Employers
ence Township Schools	2565 Princeton Pike		Laurenceville, NJ 06648-3631		Mercer Co.	Major Employers
raw Hid	120 Windsor Center Dr.		East Windsor, NJ 08520			Major Employers
er Co. Board of Education	1075 Old Trenton Rd.		Trenton, NJ 06518		Motcer Co.	Major Employees
er Co. Special Services School District	1029 Old Tracton Rd.		Hemilton, NJ 06690-1230		Morcer Co.	Major Employers
er Co. Vocational School District	1085 Old Trenion Ed.		Trenton, NJ 08590-1229		Mercer Ca.	Major Employers
Elynch & Co.	1300 Memil Lynch Drice		Pannington, NJ 08534		Morcer Co.	Major Employees
lanufactures Insurance	P.O. Box 1428	301 Sullivan Way	West Trenton, NJ 08534		Motcer Co.	Major Employees
fin School	201 5 Main Street	and some for the party of the p	Hightstown, NJ 08520		Meicer Co.	Major Employers
eton Regional School District	25 Valley Rd.		Princeton, NJ 08540		Mercer Co.	Major Employers
insville Toynship Schools	155 Robbinsville-Edinburg Rd.		Robbinsville, 113 08691		Mercer Co.	Major Employers
rt Wood Johnson University	1 Hamilton Health Plaza				Mercer Co.	Major Employers
ido America	366 Princeton-Highfatown Rid.		Trenton, NJ 05518		Mercer Co.	Major Employers
ancis Medical Center	601 Hamilton Ave.		Hightstown, NJ. 08520		Mercer Go.	Major Employers
notence Rehabilitation Center	2381 Laverence ville Rd.		Trenton, NJ 05629		Mercer Co.	Major Employers
College of Nevy Jersey	2000 Pennington Rd.		Lawtenceville, NJ 05543		Mercer Co.	Major Employers
Imes of Trenton	413 River View Plaza		Ewing, NJ 06628 Trenton, NJ 08611		Mercer Co.	Major Employers
on Schools	108 North Christin Ave.				Marcar Co.	Major Employers
Windson-Plainstone Regional Schools	505 Vilage Rd, West	0.0 Ber 606	Trentan, NJ 08609	4	Mercer Co.	Major Engloyets
Adale Community College	765 Meyerian Sating Rd	P.O. Box 505	Princeton Junction, NJ 08550		Mercel Co;	Major Employers
a State Healthcare Systema	765 Newman Springs Rd.	Ann: Pabicia Scosl	Lineralt, NJ 07738		Monthough Co.	Major Employees
Monmouth - Hall Of Records	West Main St. 1 East Main St.	Attn. Jacquie Piccolni	Freehold NJ 07728		Manmouth Co.	Major Employers
		Attn: Fredrica Brown	Freehold, HJ 07728		Manmaisti Ca.	Major Employers
Town Circus Supermarkets	835 Highway 35, P.O. Box 278	Attn: Nancyanne Fama	Middletown, NJ 07748		Manmaulti Ca.	Major Employees
arama Supermarketa	10 Centerville Road		Holmdel, HJ 07733		Manmouth Co.	Major Engloyers
on Dive Cross Dive Shield	1427 Wycaff Rd.	Atts: Janathan Pearson	Faimingdale, NJ 07727		Manmouth Co.	Major Employers
utorial Flavors and Fragrances L/First Energy	State Highway 36	Attn: Silvia Amorosica	Union Beach, NJ 07735		Monmouth Co.	Major Employers
ALP HAT EDRIGY	1345 Old Bridge-Englishtown Rid		Oft Bridge, NJ 05857		Monmouth Co.	Major Employers

Business Name	Address	Address 2	City State Zip	Email	Co.	The state
endian Health Systems	1350 Campus Parkway Ste 110	induces a	Wall Township, NJ 07753	Email		Type of Organization
rensulti Medical Center	300 Second Ave.	Atte: Bruce Patdo	Long Branch, NJ 07740		Monmouth Co.	Major Employers
nmouth University	400 Cedar Avenus	Har Bruck Parks			Monmouth Co.	Major Employees
Resources Corporation	1415 Wycelf Rd.	All Ball All States	West Long Branch, NJ 07764	-	Monusculh Co.	Major Employers
hus Enterprises	505 Richmond Ave.	Attn. Betty Moerschel	Wall, NJ 07719		Manmouth Co.	Major Employees
		Attn. Louise Harenitz	Point Pleasant, NJ 08742		Morvnouth Co.	Major Employees
nage	23 Main 51		Holmdal, NJ 07733		Monmouth Ca.	Major Employees
ck Township Board of Education	101 Handrickson Ave.		Brick, NJ 08724		Ocean Co.	Major Employers
ck Township Municipal Offices	401 Chambers Bridge Rd.		Brick, NJ 08723		Ocean Co.	Major Employers
T Lakennod	1200 Paco V/ay		Lekewood, NJ 03701		Ocean Co.	Major Employers
alth South Rehabilitation Hospital	14 Hospital Dr.		Toms River, NJ. 06755		Ocean Co.	Major Employers
tkson Township Beard of Education	101 Don Contor Blvd.		Jackson, NJ G8527		Ocean Co.	Major Employers
skinsons	300 Ocean Ave.		Point Pleasant, Nj 08742		Ocean Co.	Major Employees
cey Texnship Board of Education	200 Western Blod.		Lenoka Harbor, NJ 08734		Ocean Co.	Major Employers
kewood Township Board of Education	855 Somerset Ave		Lakewood, NJ 08701		Ocean Co.	Major Employers
nchester Board of Education	121 Route 539	P.O. Boy 4100	Whiting, NJ 03759		Ocean Co.	Major Employers
ristian Health - Ocean Medical Center	415 Jack Martin Bleit.		Brick, NJ 68724		Ocean Co.	Major Employers
ean Co. College	College Dr.	P.O. Box 2001	Toms River, NJ 08754		Ocean Co.	Major Employers
inf Barnabas Health Care Systems	368 Lakeburst Rd., Suite 203	1.0.1405.0374	Torna River, NJ 08755		Ocean Co.	Interest Courters
Flags	Saute 537	P.O. Box 120	Jackson, NJ 08527			Major Employers
uthern Ocean Co, Hospital	1140 Route 72 West	Those treat they	Manahawkin, NJ 08050		Ocean Co.	Major Employers
uthern Regional School District	105 Cedus Bridge Rd.				Ocean Co.	Major Employees
ms Ricer Municipal Offices	122 Mashionton St		Manahavkin, NJ 08050		Ocean Co.	Major Employees
ns River Regional School Diatrict	33 Weshington St.		Toms River, NJ 08753		Ocean Co.	Major Employers
nceton Packet/Central Jensey.com	1144 Hooper Ave.		Toms River, NJ 06753		Ocean Co.	Major Employees
	195 Route 9 N	Suite 100	Manalapun, NJ 67726		Monimouth	Media
e Trentonian	600 Perry St.	samates	Trenton, NJ 98618		Mercer Ga.	Media
inton Times	413 River View Plaza		Trentor, NJ 08651-3427		Meteor Go.	Media
Adsor Heights Herald	100 Witherspoon St.	P.O. Box 350	Princeton, NJ 08544		Mercer Co.	Media
blevision of Monniouth	1501 16th Ave.		Wall, 813 07719		Monmouth Co.	Media
mcast Cable of Monmouth Co.	403 Seuth St.	A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR O	Estantown, NJ 07724		Monmosth Co.	Media
sater Media Newspapers	Alth: Tri-Tewn News-Tiews Transcript PO Box 950	196 Rt. 9 North, Suite 100	Manalepan, NJ 07726	-	Monmouth Co.	Média
M-Ledger	1 Star Ledger Plaza		Newark, 16J 07102	-	Monmouth Co.	Media
bury Park Press	3601 Highway 66	PO Box 1550	Neptune, NJ 07754			
micast Cable of Ocean Co.	751 Brick Bive.	PO 000 1500	Brick, NJ 08723		Ocean Co.	Madia
meast of Toms River	830 Route 37 West				Ocean Co.	Media
vt Plessari Beach Ocean Star			Toms River, NJ 08754		Ocean Co.	Modia
	13 Broad St.		Manasquan, NJ 08736		Ocean Co.	Media
at-Ledger	1 Star Ledger Plaza		Newark, NJ 07102		Ocean Co.	Media
doh Baptat Church	340 Reverand & Howard Woodson		Trenton, #3 06618		Mercar	Religious Buildings
Paul Parish	216 Hansau Storet		Princeton, NJ 08542-4604		Marcor	Religious Buildings
therspoon Street Presbyterian Church	112 Witherspoon Street		Princeton, 11/08542		Mercer	Religious Buildings
th El Synagogue	50 Maple Stream Rd.		East Windsor, NJ 08520		Mercer Co.	Religious Buildings
Plany Lutheran Church	1125 Packside Ave.		Trenton, NJ 08618		Marcer Co.	Religious Buildings
te Baptist Church	1934 Klockner Ave.		Trentan, IIJ 08619		Marcer Go.	Religinus Buildings
leary Assembly of God	120 Mechanic St		Highleleon, NJ 08520		Mercer Co.	Religious Buildings
Nary Missionary Baptist Church	735 E. State St.		Trenton, NJ 08609		Mercer Co.	Respons buildings
thele Campin Ministry	492 Entropylle Rd.		Trenton, NJ 09638		Stercer Co.	Religious Buildings
Ambers Methodist Church	1627 Liberty St.		Trentan, NJ 05629		Mercer Co.	Religious Buildings
estarfield Baptist Church	209 Croswicks Chesterfield Rd.				Mercer Co.	Religious Buildings
urch of God of Prophecy			Cheaterfield, 143 08515		Mercer Co.	Religious Buildings
Acts of used of Prophecy	917 5, Clinton Ave.		Trenton, NJ 05631		Metcer Co.	Religious Buildings
spregation Beth Chaim	329 Vilage Ril, E.		Princeton Junction, 113 08550		Marcer Co.	Religious Builtings
opregation Toras Ernes	639 Abbington Dr.		East Windsor, NJ 08520		Motcer Co.	Religious Buildings
inth Baptist Church	31 Hawthorne Ave.		Trenton, HJ 06638		Moteer Co.	Religious Buildings
vine Temple Church of God	202 Brinthin Ave.		Trentun, NJ 06615		Morcer Co.	Religious Builtings
nwzer Church of God	121 Wayne Ace.		Trenton, NJ 08618		Mercer Co.	Religious Buildings
manuel Pentecestal Temple	203 Hutchinson Rd.		Robbinaville, NJ 05591		Metcel Co.	Religious Buildings
I Assembly al God	07 Route 31 5.		Pennington, NJ 08534		Marcer Co.	Religious Buildings
1 Baptist Church	125 South Main St.		Hightstown, NJ 08520		Marcer Co.	Religious Builifings
t Baptist Church	128 Centre St.		Trenton, NJ 05611		Mercer Co.	Consistent Desidence
f Presbylenan Church	45 River Dr.		Teusville, NJ 08560			Religious Buildings
Presbyletian Church of Hightstein	320 North Main St.		Hightstown, NJ 08520		Metcer Co.	Religious Buildings
ce-St. Pauls Church	3715 E, State St, Ext.				Mercer Co.	Religious Buildings
miton Square Baptist Church			Mercerville, NJ 08619		Mercer Co.	Rehpious Buildings
Network Church of God	3752 Notlingham Way 1004 Old Yarke Rd.	-	Trenton, NJ 08690		Mercer Co.	Religious Buildings
			Easl Windsor, NJ 08520		Meteri Co.	Religious Buildings
hul Baptist Korean Ghoren	118 Bear Brook Rd.		Princelon, NJ 08540		Mercer Co.	Religious Buildings
tence Rd. Presbylettan Church	1039 Lavitence Rd.		Lawrenceville, NJ 08648		Mercer Co.	Religious Buildings
Lady of Good Counsel	137 W. Upper Ferry Rd.		West Trenton, 112 08528		Marcar Co.	Religioun Buildings
Lady of Serrovis	3816 E. State St. Evt.		Mercerville, NJ 08610		Mercer Co.	Religious Buildings
ce of Feace Lutheran Church	177 Princeton Highlatown Rd.		Princeton Junction, NJ 08550		Metcer Co.	Religiaus Buildings
binsvitie Baptist Church	22 Main St.		Robbinsville, NJ 08691		Mercer Co.	Religious Buildings
t David the King Church	1 New Village Rd.		Princeton Junction, NJ 08550		Morcer Co.	Contraction Buildings
enth Day Adventist Church of Hightstown	110 Broad St.		Hightstown, NJ 09520		Inforcer Co.	Religious Buildings
Ann's Roman Catholic Church	1253 Lavaenceville Rd.		rightidown, NJ 08520	1.0-	Mercer Co.	Religious Buildings
Anthony of Padua Roman Catholic Church	251 Franklin St.		Trenton, NJ 05548		Mester Co.	Religious Buildings
tames Ahican Methodist Episcopal Church			Hightstown, NJ 08520		Meiser Co.	Religious Buildings
	413 Summit St.		Highlatown, NJ 09520		Morcer Co.	Religious Buildings
James Church	115 E. Delaware Ave.		Pennington, NJ 08534		Morcer Co.	Religious Buildings
Paols Litheran Church	79 One Mile Rd, Extension		East Windsor, NJ 06520		Meiser Co.	Religious Buildings
Ancent's Catholic Church	555 Yardville Allentown Rd		Yardville, 113 08520	S	Moscer Co.	Religious Buildings
ena Bapfat Church	593 Adelphia Rd.		Freehold, NJ 07728		Monmouth Co.	Religious Buildings

Business Name	Address 1	Address 2	City State Zip	Emul	6.	Type of Organization
Bethany Baptist Church	15 West Farms Rd.		Farmingdale, NJ 07727	Linda	Monmouth Co.	
Bethesda United Methodist Church	Ardena Rd, & Route 524		Adebtus, NJ 07710		Moninguti Lo.	Religious Buildings
Church of Master United Methodist Cluzzly	110 Salem Hill Rd.		Holand NJ 07731		Monmouth Co. Monmouth Co.	Religious Euslidungs
Church of St. William the Abbat	2740 Lakewood Allenwood Rd.		Hovell NJ 07731		Manmauth Co.	Religious Buildings
Church of the Nativey National Catholic	102 West 2nd St. & Route 9		HaneR, NJ 07731		Monmouth Co.	Religious Buildings Religious Buildings
Community Bible Fellowship	30/1 Lakewood Allenwood Rd.		Honell NJ 07731		Monmouth Co.	presignous thusings
Congregation Ahavat Achim	100 Windelar Rd.		Honell, NJ 07231			Rebgious Eulidings
Congregation Kol Am	59 Broad Street		Freehold, NJ 07728		Morunouth Co.	Religious Euddings
First Baptist Southard Church	31 Hilliop Ed,		Heart NJ 07731		Monmouth Co.	Religious Buildings
Hones Baptist Church	1554 Maxim Southard Rd.		Howell NJ 07731		Monmouth Co.	Beligious Builifings
Immanuel Baptist Church	1244 West Farms Rd.		Howell NJ 07731		Monmouth Co. Monmouth Co.	Religious Buildings
Jenseyville United Methodist Church	B Howell Rd.		Freehold, NJ 07728			Religious Buildings
Open Deer Bible Baptist Chuich	521 Lakewood Farmingdale Rd.		Howell NJ 07731		Monmouth Co.	Religious Buildings
Pierce Memorial Presbyterian	40 Main 51.		Farmingdale, NJ 07727		Monmouth Co.	Religious Buildings
Prince of Peace Lutheran Church	434 East Abhiah Rd.		Howell, NJ 07731		Monmouth Co,	Religious Buildings
Equankum United Methodist Church	45 Old Tavem Rd.		Hovell NJ 07731	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Monmouth Co.	Religious Buildings
St. Alexander Nevsky Russian Orthodex	200 Alexander Ave.				Monmouth Co.	Arligious Buildings
St. Catherines Roman Catholic Church	31 Asbury Rd		Howell NJ 07731		Manmauth Co.	Religious Buildings
St. Veronica's Roman Calholic Church	4215 US 9 Nuth		Farmingdale, NJ 07727		Manmouth Co.	Religious Buildings
Temple Beth Am		_	Howell NJ 67731		Monmouth Co.	Relgious Buildings
West Farms United Methodist Church	1235 Highway 70 153 Casino Dr.		Lakewood, NJ 03701		Monmouth Co.	Religious Buildings
Hoty Spint Lutheran Church	103 CININO UT.		Farmingdale, NJ 07727		Manmauth Co.	Religious Buildings
	353 North Main St.		Manahawkin, NJ 08050		Ocean Co.	Religious Buildings
King of Kings Community Church	1000 Route 9		Manahawkin, NJ 08050		Ocean Co.	Religious Buildings
Manahawkin Baptist Church	400 Beach Ave		Manahawkin, NJ 08050		Ocean Co.	Religious Buildings
Manahavikin United Methodiat	116 Stafford Ave.	_	Manahawkin, NJ 06050		Ocean Co.	Religious Buildings
Ocean Community Church	1492 Route 72 West		Manahawkin, NJ 08050		Ocean Co.	Religious Buildings
Estate the table					0	Social Service
Fair Share Housing Center	\$10 Park Blvd		Cherry Hill, NJ 08002		ALL	Offices Administration Buildings
	115 3 Poster		1			Sotial Service
New Jersey Housing Resource Center	637 South Clinton Ave	PO Box 18550	Trenton, NJ 08650		ALL	Offices/Administration Buildings
						Social Service
Agn in Agn	123 East Hanover Street		Trenton, NJ 08608		Mercer	Offices/Administration Buildings
		-				Social Service
Ann In Ann	61 Nassau Street		Princeton, NJ 08542		Mercer	Offices/Administration Buildings
						Social Service
Hightstewn Housing Authority	131 Rogers Avenue		Highdsteen, NJ 08520		Mercer	Offices/Administration Buildings
1 N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N						Social Service
Mercer County Department of Human Services	640 S. Broad Sireel	P. O. Bax 8065	Trenion, NJ 08650-0068		Mercer	Offices/Administration Buildings
		LATACONTR.	100000 0000		diverte et -	Social Service
Mercer County Dept of Housing & Community Development	640 S. Broad Street	P. O. Box 8068	Trenton, NJ 08650-0068		Mercer	Offices Administration Buildings
	- W. C.C. CR. 0800110		11011011 113 00050-0005		newic of	Social Service
Mercer County Office on Aging	640 S. Broad Street	P. O. Box 8068	Trenton, #J 08650-0068	-	1072007	
		1.1 8. 6 8. 6 8. 9	Theorem, the senses social		Mercer	Offices/Administration Buildings
NJ Department of Community Affairs	Division of Housing and Community Resources	101 South Broad Street, PO Box 805	Trentan, NJ 98525-0806			Social Service
	Contract of Housing and Community Resources	Tor sounders aner, PO Ber 805	100000,00000000		Mercer	Offices/Administration Buildings
Princeton Housing Authority	1 Redding Circle					Social Service
The state of the s	1 Reduing Cacle		Princelon, NJ 08540		Mercer	Offices Administration Buildings
Princeton Senior Resource Center	Die Oussens Dellarens Building	100 11 01 1	All a succession			Social Service
Finderal Script Resource Gener	The Suzanne Patterson Building	45 Stocklon Street	Princeton, NJ 08540		Mercer	Offices Administration Buildings
Princeton Sporpt Resource Center	170.0					Social Service
Princerial Denne Resource Gener	179 Spruce Circle		Princeton, NJ 08540		Mercer	Offices/Administration Buildings
The Salvation Army Trenton			10			Social Service
the parration Army remon	575 E State SL		Trenion, NJ 05601		Mercer	Offices/Administration Buildings
The second second second						Social Service
Trenton Housing Authority	875 New Willow Street		Trenion, NJ 08638		Mercer	Offices/Administration Buildings
and the second state of the base of the second s	AST ADDRESS		Contract of the statements			Social Service
Community Action Service Center	FO Box 88		Hightstown, RJ 08520		Mercer Co.	Offices/Administration Buildings
						Social Service
Concerned Cilizens of Ewing, Inc.	320 Hollowbrook Dr.		Ewing, NJ 08638		Mercer Co.	Offices/Administration Buildings
and a second						Social Service
East Windsor Senior Center	40 Lanning Blvd		East Windsor, NJ 06520		Mercer Co	Offices Administration Buildings
						Social Service
John D. Weson Hamilton Typ, Service Center	159 Willred Ave		Trenion, NJ 08610		Mercer Co.	Offices Administration Buildings
						Social Service
Lawrence Twp. Community Council Inc.	295 Eggerts Rd.		Lawrence, NJ 08648		Mercer Co.	Offices/Administration Buildings
						Social Service
Mercer Co. Board of Social Services	200 Woolverton SL	P.O. Box 1450	Trenion, NJ 08650		Mercer Co	Offices/Administration Buildings
					marcar ou	Social Service
United Way Greater Marcer	3150 Brunnwick Piler, Ste 230		Lawrenceville, NJ 08648		Mercer Co.	Offices Administration Buildings
			A		marcar Cu,	Social Service
/eteran Services	2280 Hamilton Ave.		Hamilton, NJ 08619		Mercer Co.	Offices/Administration Buildings
					mercer Co,	
DARChi	913 Sewall Ave		Astrony Park, NJ 07712		Manageria	Social Service
	The second first		CHARLES AND ATTER		Monmouth	Offices Administration Buildings
CARChi	12 Throckmonon Street		Freehold, NJ 07728	ା		Social Service
	A The second of officer		ricenaud, NJ 01128		Monmouth	Offices Administration Buildings
Monmouth County Community Development	Monmouth County Hall of Records	One East Main Street, P.O. Box 1255	5			Social Service
and the second and the second s	monitioun County nall of Kecords	Come cast Main Street, P.O. box 1255	Freehold, NJ 07728		Monmouth	Offices/Administration Buildings

MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 106 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

Business Name	Address1	Address 2	City State Zip	Email	Co.	Type of Organization
Monmouth County Department of Human Services	Monmouth County Hall of Records	Onv East Main Street, P.O. Box 1255	Freehold, NJ 07728		Manmouth	Social Service Offices/Administration Buildings
Monimouth County Office on Aging	1000 Kozloski Road	511 Call Han and C. F. C. Bal 1679	Freehold, NJ 07728		Manmouth	Social Service Offices Administration Buildings
Monmouth County Public Housing Agency	3000 Kozloski Road		Freehold, NJ 07728		Monmouth	Social Service Offices/Administration Buildings
The Asbury Park/Neptune Branch of the NAACP	PO Box 1143		Asbury Park 07712	2	Manimaoth	Social Service Offices/Administration Buildings
The Latins Action Network	PO Box 943		Freehold, NJ 07728		Manmouth	Social Service Offices Administration Buildings
The MAACP of Greater Long Branch	231 Willior Ray Avenue		Long Branch, NJ 07740		Monmouth	Social Service Offices/Administration Buildings
Freebald Benier Glizens Center	116 Jackson Mills Rd		Freehold NJ 07728		Monmouth Co.	Social Service Offices/Administration Buildings
Howell Seniur Olizens Center	251 Preventarium Rd.	P.O. Box 580	Howell NJ 07731		Monmouth Co.	Social Service Offices/Administration Buildings
Manmouth Co. Division of Social Bervices	P.O. Box 3000	Kosłowski Rd	Freehold NJ 07728		Monmouth Co.	Social Berrice Offices/Administration Buildings
Monimouth Co, Human Services	3000 Koslowski Rd.		Freehold NJ 07728		Monmouth Co.	Social Service Offices/Administration Buildings
Monmouth Co. Human Services	2405 Route 86		Ocean NJ 07712		Monmouth Co.	Social Bervice Offices Administration Buildings
Monmouth Housing Alliance	2535 State Route 65 Ste 4		Neplune, NJ 07753		Monmouth Co	Social Service Offices Administration Buildings
United Way Monmouth Co.	1415 Wycoff Rd		Farmingdale, NJ 07727		Monmouth Co.	Social Service Offices (Administration Buildings
NAACP Ocean County Lakewood Branch	PO 8ox 836		Lakewood NJ 08701		Ocean	Social Service Offices Administration Buildings
MAACP Tonis River Bunch	PQ 804 5144		Toms River, NJ 08754		Ocean	Social Service Offices/Administration Buildings
IIJ Department of Community Alfairs Homeless Provention	1510 Hooper Ave		Toms River, NJ 08753		Ocean	Social Service Offices/Administration Buildings
Dcean City Housing Authority	204 4th Street		Ocean City, NJ 08226		Ocean	Offices/Administration Buildings
Dcean County Board of Chosen Freeholders	P.O, Box 2191		Toms River_N.J. 08754-2191		Ocean	Secial Service Offices/Administration Buildings
Ocean County Community Development	129 Hoopet Ave.	PO Box 2191	Toms River, NJ 08754-2191		Ocean	Social Service Offices/Administration Buildings
Ocean County Department of Human Services	101 Hooper Avenue		Toms River, NJ 05753		Otean	Social Service Offices/Administration Buildings
Ocean County Office on Aging	1027 Hooper Avenue	Building 2, 1st Floor	Toma River, NJ 06754		Ocean	Offices/Administration Buildings
DCEAN_INC	52 Hyers Street	P.Q. Box 1029	Toms River, NJ 08754		Ocean	Social Service Offices Administration Buildings
Salni Francis Community Center	4700 Long Beach Blvd		Long Beach Termship, NJ 08008		Ocean	Social Service Offices/Administration Buildings
The New Jersey State Conference of the NAACP	14 Clifton Ave South		Lakewood, NJ 08701		Ocean	Social Service Offices/Administration Buildings
Dream Co. Boant of Social Services	1027 Hooper Ave	P.O. Box 547	Toms River, NJ 08754		Ocean Cu.	Social Service Offices Administration Sulldings
Ocean Co. Board of Social Services	North Ocean Co. Resource Center	225 Fourth St.	Lakewood NJ 08701		Ocean Co.	Social Service Offices Administration Buildings
Ocean County Administrative Offices	PQ 8ex 2191		Tamis River, NJ 08754-2191		Ocean Go.	Social Service Offices/Administration Buildings
STEPS	14 Clifton Ave South		Lakewood, NJ 08701		Ocean Go:	Social Service Offices/Administration Buildings
The ARC of Ocean County	515 Cedar Bridge Avenue		Lekewood NJ 08701		Ocean Co.	Secial Service Offices/Administration Buildings
Julied Way Ocean Co.	253 ChesInul Street		Toms River, NJ 08753		Otean Co.	Social Service Offices/Administration Buildings
Reyshore NAACP	PO Box 865		Malawan, NJ 07747		Ocean Co,	Social Service Offices/Administration Buildings
Sreater Freehold NAAGP	PO Box 246		Martbore Annex, NJ 07745			Social Service
Deater Red Bank MAACP	PO Box 2147		Red Bank, NJ 07701-2147			Offices/Administration Buildings Social Service
Supportive Housing Association	185 Valley Street		and the second second			Offices/Administration Buildings Social Service
The New January State Conference of the NAACP	4326 Harbor Beach Blvd, #775		South Grange, NJ 07076			Offices Administration Buildings Social Service
			Briganiloe, NJ 08203			Offices/Administration Buildings Social Service
Trenton NAACP Mercer County Association of REALTORS	1428 Brunswick Avenue		renion, NJ 08618 Trenton N.J. 06638		10.10.22	Offices/Administration Buildings
Menmouth Ocean Regional Realtors	One Hoychild Plaza	4000 Route 65	Tirdon Falls, NJ 07753		Meizer Monmouth/Ocean	
Ocean County Board of Realtons	271 Lakehurst Road		Toms River, NJ 08755		Ocean	

MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 107 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

Appendix B - Howell Township Pre-Application Distribution List

Business Name	Address1	Address 2	City State Zip
Monmouth Co. Office on Aging	21 Main and Court Center	PO Box 1255	Freehold, NJ 07728
Ocean Co. Office of Senior Services	1027 Hooper Avenue		Toms River, NJ 08754-2191
Mercer Co. Office on Aging	Mercer Co. Administration Bldg.	PO Box 8068	Trenton, NJ 08650-0068
Monmouth Co. Public Housing Agency	Monmouth Co. Division of Social Services	PO Box 3000	Freehold, NJ 07728
Mercer Co. Library Headquarters	2751 Brunswick Pike		Lawrenceville, NJ 08648
Monmouth Co. Headquarters Library	125 Symmes Drive	2	Manalapan, NJ 07726
Ocean Co. Library	101 Washington Street		Toms River, NJ 08753
Howell Township	4567 Route 9 North	PO Box 580	Howell, NJ 07731
Monmouth Co. Library – Howell Branch	318 Old Tavern Road		Howell, NJ 07731

Appendix F: Operating Plan

Township of Howell

Affordability Assistance Program

Polices & Procedures Manual



569 Abbington Drive East Windsor, NJ 08520 800/619-9979 www.cgph.net

Revised: 06/08/12

1

Table of Contents

Introduction
Types of Affordability Assistance2
Annual Budget
Eligibility3
Maximum Amount
Repayment Terms & Repayment Agreement3
Security Instruments
ADMINISTRATION
APPENDICES
Appendix A: Summary of Howell Township Affordability Assistance Program Terms 6
Appendix B: Affordability Assistance Application0
Appendix C: Resolution Authorizing Assistance - LOAN
Appendix D: Resolution Authorizing Assistance - GRANT
Appendix E: Affordability Assistance Program Repayment Agreement
Appendix F: Mortgage Securing Payment Of Affordability Assistance Program Note17
Appendix G: Recapture Mortgage Note for Affordability Assistance Program22
Appendix H: Reporting Form

Polices & Procedures Manual

Introduction

The purpose of this Manual is to describe the policies and procedures of the Affordability Assistance Program. This Manual describes the basic content and operation of the various affordable assistance programs. It has been prepared with a flexible format allowing for periodic updates of its sections, when required, due to revisions in regulations and/or procedures.

Where it is found that a new procedure may be more effective or can eliminate a recurring problem, that procedure may be incorporated into the program operation by amending this Operating Manual. In addition, this manual may be periodically revised to reflect changes in local, state, and federal policies and regulations relative to implementation of the affordable housing Programs described herein.

Types of Affordability Assistance

The three types of affordability assistance are listed below. The specifics of each type is summarized in Appendix A. No ongoing or monthly assistance is available through the affordability assistance program.

- Down Payment and or Closing Cost Assistance Affordability Assistance funds for downpayment and/or closing costs will help low- and moderate-income households achieve the goal of homeownership. The goal of the program is to provide financial assistance to income-qualified homebuyers moving into affordable housing in Howell.
- 2. *First Month's Rent* When applicants of affordable rental housing move into an affordable rental unit, they experience financial hardship resulting from paying the security deposit and first month's rent at the same time. To address this hardship, Howell will pay for the first month's rent for renters moving into deed restricted affordable units. This assistance is a grant and does not need to be paid back. The Township has elected to pay for the first month's rent rather than the security deposit so the tenant will have an incentive to maintain the unit in order to receive the security deposit back when they move out.
- 3. *Other* Howell will identify other mechanisms to make units more affordable in the Township. If assistance is directly provided to an existing tenant or owner of affordable housing, the applicant will be income certified at the time of the application.

Annual Budget

The annual budget for the program and percentage spent on each type of assistance is summarized in Appendix A.

Eligibility

Applications submitted for affordability assistance will be provided on a first come-first-served basis according to the following criteria:

- 1. There are affordability assistance funds remaining in the budget for the year.
- 2. The applicant owns or rents a deed restricted affordable unit in Howell Township that they maintain as their primary residence.
- 3. The applicant has not received an affordability assistance grant in the past. (Only one award per household is permitted. This requirement can be waived with justification.)
- 4. The applicant is income certified. Applicants applying for down payment assistance and first month's rent assistance will have already been income certified. Applicants applying for all other types of assistance will require income certification at the time of application.
- 5. The applicant does not have sufficient resources to pay for the requested assistance themselves.
- 6. The applicant has demonstrated that they can pay housing expenses in the future .

Maximum Amount

The maximum amount of assistance that may be provided is in Appendix A.

Repayment Terms & Repayment Agreement

Deed restrictions will be required for certain types of assistance. The assistance requiring deed restrictions is indicated in Appendix A. When required, the following is the term of the deed restriction:

The loan principal is forgiven at 10% per year for a period of 10 years and is secured by a second mortgage and note.

Security Instruments

When required, loans for properties participating in the Affordability Assistance Program shall be secured through a Mortgage and Mortgage Note in favor of the municipality executed by the property owner. The administrative agent will record said documents with the County Clerk's office upon the completion of the closing of title. The Mortgage and Mortgage Note will be executed at closing. The terms of the mortgage are in the Mortgage Note, which is not recorded. The original mortgage note shall be retained by the Program Administrator and kept in the unit file.

ADMINISTRATION

The Administrative agent will be responsible for administering the program. Questions about the Program should be directed the Administrative Agent. All forms are included in the appendices and the process for disbursing funds is outlined in Appendix H.

CGP&H LLC 569 Abbington Drive East Windsor, NJ 08520

800/619-9979 ph 609/371-1776 fax <u>homes@cgph.net</u> www.cgph.net MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 114 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

5 Affordability Assistance Program

APPENDICES

Appendix A: Summary of Howell Township Affordability Assistance Program Terms

	Uwnersnp Down Payment and/or Closing Cost Assistance	Kental First Month's Rent
Purpose	Help low and moderate income households achieve home-	Assist renters of affordable units by paying the first
Maximum Amount	Maximum of \$10,000 per award	Up to 1 month's rent
Deed Restriction And Terms	The loan principal is forgiven at 10% per year for a period of 10	The assistance is a grant and does not need to be
	years and is secured by a second mortgage and note.	returned
Additional Criteria	 First time homebuyer not required Must apply for county program. Not eligible if receive County 	Priority to very low-income households
	 Priority to very low income candidates 	
Assistance Paid To:	Closing Costs/Down payment assistance on HUD 1	Landlord
Advertising	Notify applicants when submit pre-application to purchase unit	Landlord & Administrative Agent
Budget	2012: 130,000 (approx 13 awards)	2012: \$20,000 (approx 25 awards)
	2013: \$96,000 (approximately 10 awards)	2013: \$28,000 (approx 35 awards)
	2014: \$100,000 (approximately 10 awards)	2014: \$10,000 (approximately 12 awards)
	2015: \$100,000 (approximately 10 awards)	2015: \$10,000 (approximately 12 awards)
	2016: \$100,000 (approximately 11 awards)	2016: \$10,000 (approximately 12 awards)
	2017: \$10,000 (approximately 1 award)	2017: \$12,060 (approximately 15 awards)
	2018: \$10,000 (approximately 1 award)	2018: \$12,060 (approximately 15 awards)
	TOTAL: \$25,000	TOTAL: 120,000
Eligibility Criteria	 There are affordability assistance funds remaining in the budget for the year. The applicant owns or rents a deed restricted affordable unit in Howell Township that they maintain as their 	in the budget for the year. Iable unit in Howell Township that they maintain as their
	primary residence. 3. The applicant has not received an affordability assistance grant in the past. (Only one award per household is	grant in the past. (Only one award per household is
	4. The applicant is income certified. Applicants applying for down payment assistance and first month's rent	cation.) ing for down payment assistance and first month's rent
	require income certification at the time of application	
	5. In eapplicant does not have sufficient resources to pay to 6. The applicant has demonstrated that they can now housing	pay for the requested assistance themselves.
	O. The applicant has demonstrated that they can pay housing expenses in future (mortgage/association, repairs, and utility assistance only).	g expenses in ruture (mortgage/association, repairs,

Summary of Howell Township Affordability Assistance Program Terms

MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 117 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

Appendix B: Affordability Assistance Application

APPLICATION FOR AFFORDABILITY ASSISTANCE IN HOWELL TOWNSHIP

This application must be fully completed so that it can be accepted and processed. This application is not transferable. If you require assistance, please call CGP&H at **609-371-2181**. If your application is complete and you are approved to receive affordability assistance, you will be certified by CGP&H and notified by mail. **IT IS YOUR RESPONSIBILITY TO MAKE CERTAIN YOUR APPLICATION IS COMPLETE AND THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IS TRUE AND ACCURATE.**

The information in this application and any other information that is required to complete this application are kept confidential. NO PART OF THIS APPLICATION OR YOUR APPLICATION FILE WILL BE GIVEN TO ANY PERSON, ENTITY OR BUSINESS NOT RELATED TO THE TOWNSHIP OF HOWELL, CGP&H, OR THEIR AGENTS WITHOUT YOUR WRITTEN REQUEST OR CONSENT.

"Family" includes all persons living in a single unit whether they are related by blood, marriage or otherwise. The information requested includes information about all persons intending to reside in the Affordable Rental Unit.

Applications submitted for affordability assistance will be provided on a first come-first-served basis according to the following criteria:

- 1. There are affordability assistance funds remaining in the budget for the year.
- 2. The applicant owns or rents a deed restricted affordable unit in Howell Township that they maintain as their primary residence.
- 3. The applicant has not received an affordability assistance grant in the past. (Only one award per household is permitted.)
- 4. The applicant is income certified. Applicants applying for down payment assistance and first month's rent assistance will have already been income certified. Applicants applying for all other types of assistance will require income certification at the time of application and must complete Part II of this application.
- 5. The applicant does not have sufficient resources to pay for the requested assistance themselves.
- 6. The applicant has demonstrated that they can pay housing expenses in the future.

Part I. All Applicants must complete this section

Name: _____

Date:_____

1. Please indicate what type of assistance you are applying for (Choose one):

Down Payment	 Up to \$10,000 0% interest loan, forgiven at 10% per year for a period of 10 years and is secured by a
Assistance	second mortgage and note.
First	Up to one month's rent
Month's Rent	• Grant (does not have to be repaid)
Other	Other types of assistance may be available under special circumstances such as a
Assistance	special assessment by the homeowner's association.

- 2. \$ Amount of Request (Please see above for maximum amounts): _____
- 3. Please explain the reason why you need assistance (attach additional paper if needed):

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that all information concerning my family size, actual gross income as well as all other information contained herein is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I further understand that CGP&H and Howell Township are relying upon this information in order to determine whether I qualify for affordability assistance. I further certify that the copies of the documents attached to this application are true and accurate copies of the originals of such documents. I further certify that I intend to personally occupy the unit as my primary residence except for reasonable periods of vacations and illnesses. I understand that I cannot sublet or re-rent the unit.

I authorize CGP&H, Howell Township or their agents to check for accuracy on any and all statements and representations made in this application. This may include calls to employers to verify income, contact with banks, etc.

Applicant _____

Co-Applicant _____

Date _____ Date _____

Part II: Only complete this section if you are applying for assistance other than down payment/closing costs or first month's rent.

Please list your estimated monthly expenses:

	Monthly Expense
Auto	
Loan	
Insurance	
Maintenance/Repairs	
Housing	
Rent/Mortgage	
Home owners association	
Property Tax	
Insurance	
Medical	
Health Insurance	
Co-pays	
Other (medications, glasses, etc.)	
Utilities	
Internet/phone/cable	
Electricity/heating	
Water Sewer	
Trash	
Cell Phone	
Other	
Childcare/day care	
Child Support/Alimony	
Credit card debt	
Education	
Food	
Gas/tolls/parking	
Public Transportation	
Student Ioan	
Tuition	
Other: (please specify)	
TOTAL Expenses	

If your total monthly expenses, exceed your monthly income, how will you pay your household expenses in the future:_____

MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 122 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

Affordability Assistance Program 4

HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION

Name of Household Member filli	ng out this form	Sex: M/F
Date of Birth	SS#	_
Name of Second Household Mer	nber	Sex: M/F
Date of Birth	SS#	_
Home Phone ()	Work Phone ()	
Current Street Address	<i>A</i>	Apt #
Town	StateZip Code	
County		
Mailing Address if different from	above:	

Please list all other household members, <u>excluding the person filling out this form</u>, who will live in the unit.

NAME	RELATIONSHIP	GENDER	BIRTH DATE	SOCIAL SECURITY
				#

HOUSING REQUIREMENTS

How may persons presently live in your home?

How many are less than 18 years of age?

EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION

Please fill out the information below for every household member who receives income from employment and is 18 years of age or over. (Also include any part-time employment)

1.	Household Member Name		
	Employer Name		
	Employer Address		County
	Years at Job	Job Title	
	Phone #	_ Immediate Supervisor	
2.	Household Member Name		
	Employer Name		
	Years at Job	Job Title	
	Phone #	_ Immediate Supervisor	
3.	Household Member Name		
	Employer Name		
	Employer Address		County
	Years at Job	Job Title	
	Phone #	_ Immediate Supervisor	
4.	Household Member Name		
	Employer Name		
	Employer Address		County
	Years at Job	Job Title	
	Phone #	_ Immediate Supervisor	

INCOME DOCUMENTATION

Please use a separate income information section for every household member who is 18 years of age or over and receives income of any kind.

ATTACH THE FOLLOWING REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR EACH APPLICANT:

- 1) Copies of federal and state tax returns for the previous 3 consecutive years.
- 2) Copies of 4 consecutive/current pay stubs: including overtime, bonuses or tips.
- 3) Copies of 6 months current bank statements for all accounts.
- 4) Copies of child support court documents and custody verification, if applicable, is required.

INCOME CALCULATION

Please state the amount of your current annual projected gross income from each applicable source. Use additional pages if necessary if there are more than two incomes.

	ADULT #1	ADULT #2
Gross Salary or Wages	\$	\$
Pension	\$	\$
Social Security	\$	\$
Unemployment Compensation	\$	\$
Child Support received	\$	\$
(Added to income)		
Child Support paid	\$	\$
(Subtracted from income)		
Disability Payment	\$	\$
Welfare	\$	\$
Tips/Commissions	\$	\$
Alimony	\$	\$
Other	\$	\$
Total	\$	\$
TOTAL OF GROSS INCOMES	Total \$	

INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME

Please list all checking and savings accounts, CD's, Money Market Funds, Mutual Funds and any other assets held by financial institutions below, whether or not you gain interest from them for all members.

	Current	%	Projected
Account Number	Balance/value	interest	Annual Interest Income
		Account Balance/value	Account Balance/value interest

Total Projected Interest Income a year \$_____

Name and address			Projected
Financial Institution	Number of Shares	Current Value	Annual Income
Other Income	Total Projected Inco	me from dividends	\$

No

Please list all stocks, bonds and other income producing assets.

Do you own a business or income producing real estate? Yes

Do you receive income/rents from these assets?	Yes No			
If Yes: Value the yearly net income less valid busin	ness expenses on this property or busines	is?		
Total projected \$				
Do you have any other sources of income?	Yes No			
If yes: please describe	Gross yearly income \$	-		
TOTAL HOUSEHOLD GROSS ANNUAL INCOME FROM ALL SOURCES:				
(Combination of sections 4 & 5 of this application)				

General

Do you own a home or other real estate:

Appendix C: Resolution Authorizing Assistance - LOAN

_____, ____

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AFFORDABLILITY ASSISTANCE LOAN REPAYMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE OWNER OF AN AFFORDABLE HOUSING UNIT LOCATED _____

WHEREAS, ________ is **purchasing/owns** property located at ______, Block No. ______, Lot No. ______, which property is governed by the statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations restricting ownership and use of the property as an Affordable Housing unit which, among other restrictions, restricts the property owner in financing the property or otherwise encumbering the property by way of mortgage, home equity loan, or other form of financing; and

WHEREAS, the property owner has requested an Affordability Assistance Program loan from the Affordable Housing Trust Fund; and

WHEREAS, the Township is willing to extend a loan to the property owner in the amount of ______.

WHEREAS, it is appropriate for the Township to enter into an Agreement with the property owner setting forth the terms of the agreement at this time;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED on this _____ day of _____, ___, by the Township Committee of Howell, County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, that:

- 1. The Mayor, Administrator, Clerk and attorney are hereby authorized to execute an Affordability Assistance Program Agreement with the owner of an Affordable Housing unit located at ______, Block No. _____, Lot No. _____, Lot
- 2. A copy of the fully executed Agreement shall be kept on file with the Clerk. The original shall be kept in the unit file by the Administrative Agent.

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution passed by the ______at a meeting duly held on the _____ day of

Clerk

Appendix D: Resolution Authorizing Assistance - GRANT

_____, _____.

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AFFORDABLILITY ASSISTANCE GRANT WITH THE OWNER OF AN AFFORDABLE HOUSING UNIT LOCATED

WHEREAS, _______ is owns/rents property located at ______, Block No. _____, Lot No. _____, which property is governed by the statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations restricting ownership and use of the property as an Affordable Housing unit; and

WHEREAS, the **property owner/tenant** has requested an Affordability Assistance Program grant from the Affordable Housing Trust Fund; and

WHEREAS, the Township is willing to extend a grant to the property owner/tenant in the amount of ______.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED on this _____ day of _____,

_____, by the Township Committee of Howell, County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, that:

1. The Mayor, Administrator, Clerk and attorney are hereby authorized to execute an Affordability Assistance Program grant with the owner/renter of an Affordable Housing unit located at ______, Block No. _____, Lot No._____.

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution passed by the ______at a meeting duly held on the _____ day of

Clerk

Appendix E: Affordability Assistance Program Repayment Agreement

HOWELL TOWNSHIP

AFFORDABILITY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM REPAYMENT AGREEMENT

 THIS AGREEMENT made on the _____ day of _____, ___ is between ______

 ______(hereafter "Owner") whose address is ______ and _Howell

 Township, with offices at 2261 Van Horne Road, Belle Mead, NJ 08502 (hereafter "Township")

 :

WHEREAS, Owner is purchasing/owns property located at ______, described more specifically as Block No. _____ Lot No. _____, located in the _____ development (hereafter "Property"); and

WHEREAS, the Property is governed by the statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations restricting ownership and use of the Property as an Affordable Housing unit which, among other restrictions, restricts the Owner in financing the Property or otherwise encumbering the Property by way of mortgage, home equity loan, or other forms of financing; and

WHEREAS, the Township is willing to extend a loan to Owner in the amount of ______; and

WHEREAS, the Owner will sign a mortgage note and record a mortgage on the Property in the principal amount of \$_____; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to memorialize the agreement between them by way of this Affordable Housing Loan Repayment Agreement (hereinafter "Agreement");

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED on this _____ day of _____, ____, by and between the parties as follows:

- 1. Owner acknowledges that s/he is aware, and herein reaffirms her understanding, that the Property is and will continue to be governed by the Affordable Housing rules, regulations and restrictions because it is an Affordable Housing unit under the control of the Township.
- 2. Owner understands at the time of purchase that the restrictions on the Property, which state that s/he cannot make application for any second money mortgages

or refinance any first money mortgages as it may apply to the Affordable Housing unit in excess of the maximum restricted mortgage amount and not until prior written approval has been obtained from the Administrative Agent.

- 3. Owner acknowledges that the Deed to be signed by the Owner at closing contains the recorded restrictions that govern the Property, which provide that "Upon the occurrence of a breach of any Covenants by the Grantee, or any successor in interest or other owner of the Property, the Administrative Agent shall have all remedies provided at law or equity including but not limited to forfeiture, foreclosure, acceleration of all sums due under any mortgage, recouping of any funds from a sale in violation of the Covenants, diverting of rent proceeds from illegal rentals, injunctive relief to prevent further violation of said Covenants, entry on the premises, those provided under Title 5, Chapter 80, Subchapter 26 of the New Jersey Administrative Code and specific performance.."
- 4. Owner acknowledges that there will be a tertiary loan placed on the unit recorded after this Affordability Assistance mortgage, which applies the affordability control deed restriction pursuant to the Uniform Housing Affordability Controls (N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.1 *et seq.*).
- 5. Owner acknowledges that the Township, pursuant to its Affordable Housing regulations, has the right to foreclose on the Property as a result of any violation of the deed restrictions pertaining to the Property by the Owner and, if successful, the Township can retain all equity in the Property.
- 6. The Township agrees to extend a loan of \$_____ to the Owner for the exclusive use ______.
- 7. The loan principal is forgiven at a rate of 10% per year for a period of 10 years and is secured by a second mortgage and note.
- 8. In the event that Owner fails to make any and all necessary payments required by the within Agreement or otherwise breaches the terms of this Agreement, the Township shall have the right to immediately file a lawsuit, or pursue any other rights that it may have, to remedy the breach and otherwise enforce the Affordable Housing statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations.
- 9. In the event that Owner fails to make any and all payments when due, the Township shall be entitled to accelerate the repayment obligation to make the full amount immediately due (plus interest, if applicable).

- 10. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New Jersey.
- 11. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties. No amendments or modifications to this Agreement shall have any force or effect unless in writing and executed by both parties.
- 12. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holdings shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.
- 13. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties, their legal representatives, heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have signed and executed this agreement as of the date indicated above.

Municipality

Attest:

Attest:

MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 134 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

Affordability Assistance Program 16

STATE OF NEW JERSEY:

SS

COUNTY OF

I CERTIFY that on _____, 2012, _____ personally came before

me and acknowledged under oath, to my satisfaction, that he/she:

:

was the maker of the attached instrument; and, (a)

(b) executed this instrument as his or her own act.

Signed and sworn to before me

On _____, _____

STATE OF NEW JERSEY:

SS

COUNTY OF _____:

I CERTIFY that on ______, _____ personally came before me and acknowledged under oath, to my satisfaction, that:

s/he is the Township Clerk of ______, the municipal (a) corporation named in this document;

s/he is the attesting witness to the signing of this document by (b) _____, ___(title)______ of ____(municipality)_____;

this document was signed and delivered by _____(municipality)_____as (c) its voluntary act duly authorized by a proper resolution of the Township Committee

s/he knows the proper seal of the ______ which was affixed to (d) this document: and

(e) s/he signed this proof to attest to the truth of these facts.

Signed and sworn to before me

On_____, 2012

MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 135 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

17 Affordability Assistance Program

Appendix F: Mortgage Securing Payment Of Affordability Assistance Program Note

HOWELL TOWNSHIP

MORTGAGE SECURING PAYMENT OF AFFORDABILITYASSISTANCE PROGRAM NOTE

THIS MORTGAGE, made on this the ____ day of ____, ___ by and between____, (the "OWNER") and Howell Township (the "Municipality"), in connection with the property described herein (the "PROPERTY");

Article 1. REPAYMENT MORTGAGE NOTE

In consideration of value received, the Owner has signed an Affordability Assistance Program Mortgage Note (the "Note") dated ______. The Owner promises to pay to the Municipality amounts due under the Affordability Assistance Program Mortgage Note, and to abide by all obligations contained therein.

Article 2. MORTGAGE AS SECURITY FOR AMOUNT DUE

This Mortgage is given to the Municipality as security for the payment required to be paid as described in the Mortgage Note, the sum of <mark>\$[insert amount].</mark>

Article 3. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

All of the land and improvements thereon located in the municipality of Howell in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey (hereinafter the "Property"), described more specifically as Block No. ______ Lot No. _____, and known by the street address:

Article 4. RIGHTS GIVEN TO MUNICIPALITY

The Owner gives the Municipality those rights stated in this Mortgage, and all the rights the law gives to the Municipality under Uniform Housing Affordability Controls, which are found in New Jersey Administrative Code at Title 5, chapter 80, subchapter 26 (N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.1, *et seq*). The rights given to the Municipality are covenants running with the land. Upon performance of the promises contained in Note and Mortgage, the Municipality will prepare and deliver to the then current owner of record a quitclaim deed or other document of release.

Article 5. DEFAULT

The Municipality may declare the Owner in default on this Mortgage and on the Note if:

- 1. The Owner attempts to convey an interest in the Property without giving prior written notice to the Municipality;
- 2. The ownership of the Property is changed for any reason other than in the course of an exempt sale;
- 3. The Owner fails to make any payment required by the Note;
- 4. The holder of any lien on the Property starts foreclosure proceedings; or
- 5. Bankruptcy, insolvency or receivership proceedings are commenced by or against the Owner.

Article 6. MUNICIPALITY'S RIGHTS UPON DEFAULT

If the Municipality declares that the Note and this Mortgage are in default, the Municipality shall have all of the rights given by law or set forth in this Mortgage.

Article 7. NOTICES

ALL NOTICES MUST BE IN WRITING AND PERSONALLY DELIVERED OR SENT BT CERTIFIED MAIL, RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED, TO THE ADDRESSES GIVEN IN THIS MORTGAGE. ADDRESS CHANGES MAY BE MADE UPON WRITTEN NOTICE, MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THIS ARTICLE 7.

Article 8. NO WAIVER BY MUNICIPALITY

The Municipality may exercise any right under this Mortgage or under any law, even if the Municipality has delayed in exercising that authority, or has agreed in an earlier instance not to exercise that right. The Municipality does not waive its right to declare the Owner is in default by making payments or incurring expenses on behalf of the Owner.

Article 9. EACH PERSON LIABLE

The Mortgage is legally binding upon each Owner individually and all their heirs, assigns, agents and designees who succeed to their responsibilities. The Municipality may enforce any of the provisions of the Note and of this Mortgage against any one or more liable individual.

Article 10. SUBORDINATION

This Mortgage will not be subordinate, and will not be subordinated by the Municipality, to any mortgage, refinancing, equity loan, secured letter of credit, or any other obligation secured by the Property, except with respect to (a) any such obligation which was duly recorded prior to the recording hereof, and (b) any such obligation which, when added to all other such obligations recorded against the Property, shall result in total debt secured by the Property being an amount

less than the maximum resale price that would be applicable were the Control Period still in effect.

Article 11. AMENDMENTS

No amendment or change to the Note and this Mortgage may be made, except in a written document signed by both parties and approved by the administrative agent appointed pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.1 et seq.

Article 13. SIGNATURES

By executing this Mortgage on page 3, hereof, the Owner agrees to all of its terms and conditions.

Article 14. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Owner acknowledges receipt of a true copy of this Mortgage, at no charge to the State.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Owner(s) has executed this Mortgage for the purposes stated herein.

ATTEST:

Signature of (Owner)

Signature (Co-Owner)

STATE OF NEW JERSEY)

) ss:

COUNTY OF _____)

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this the _____ day of _____, 20___ the subscriber ______ appeared personally before me (*If more than one person signed the foregoing mortgage and appeared before me, the words "the*

subscriber" *and "the Owner*" *shall include all such persons*) and who, being duly sworn by me, deposed and made proof to my satisfaction (i) that he/she is the Owner named in the foregoing mortgage and (ii) and that he/she has executed said mortgage with respect to the Property and for the purposes described and set forth therein.

Sworn to and subscribed before me, ______ on the date set forth above.

NOTARY PUBLIC

Appendix G: Recapture Mortgage Note for Affordability Assistance Program

HOWELL TOWNSHIP

RECAPTURE MORTGAGE NOTE FOR AFFORDABILITY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

THIS NOTE is dated as of ______, ____. For value received _______ (referred to "Owner") promises to pay to Howell Township, which has its principal offices at 2261 Van Horne Road, Belle Mead, NJ 08502 (the "Municipality"), the amounts specified in this Note and promises to abide by the terms contained below.

Article 1. REPAYMENT MORTGAGE

As security for the payment of amounts due under this Note and the performance of all promises contained in this Note, the Owner is giving the Municipality a "Mortgage To Secure Payment of "MORTGAGE"), Program Note" (the Affordability Assistance dated _, of the property described below (the "PROPERTY"). The Mortgage covers real estate owned by the Owner. The Mortgage will not be subordinate, and will not be subordinated by the Municipality, to any mortgage, refinancing, equity loan, secured letter of credit, or any other obligation secured by the Property, except with respect to (a) any such obligation which was duly recorded prior to the recording hereof, and (b) any such obligation which, when added to all other such obligations recorded against the Property, shall result in total debt secured by the Property being an amount less than the maximum resale price (MRP) that would be applicable were the Control Period still in effect, as those terms are defined in Article 2 of the Mortgage.

Article 2. OWNERS PROMISE TO PAY AND OTHER TERMS

This is no interest deferred loan in the amount of **\$XXXXXX** will be for ten (10) years. The loan principal is forgiven at 10% per year for a period of 10 years. After ten (10) years, the loan is fully forgiven at the next resale. If sold before ten (10) years, the prorated loan amount shall be repaid by the applicant to the Howell Township Affordable Housing Trust Fund.

Article 3. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

 All of the land and improvements thereon located in the municipality of ______ in the County of ______, State of New Jersey, described more specifically as Block No. ______ Lot No. _____, and known by the street address:

Article 4. WAIVER OF FORMAL ACTS

The Owner waives its right to require the Municipality to do any of the following before enforcing its rights under this Note:

- 1. To demand payment of amount due (known as Presentment).
- 2. To give notice that amounts due have not been paid (known as Notice of Dishonor).
- 3. To obtain an official certificate of non-payment (known as Protest).

Article 5. RESPONSIBILITY UNDER NOTE

All Owners signing this Note are jointly and individually obligated to pay the amounts due and to abide by the terms under this Note. The Municipality may enforce this Note against any one or more of the Owners or against all Owners together.

The Owner agrees to the terms of this Note by signing below.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Owner acknowledges receipt of a true copy of the Mortgage and this Note at no charge.

Dated:

ATTEST:

By:

Signature (Owner)

Signature (Co-Owner)

MON-L-000291-25 06/23/2025 4:52:47 PM Pg 143 of 145 Trans ID: LCV20251831146

25 Affordability Assistance Program

STATE OF NEW JERSEY)	
)	ss.:
COUNTY OF)	

On this the day of , 20___ before me came _____, who acknowledges and makes proof to my satisfaction that she is the Owner named within this Note, and that she has executed said Note for the purposes set forth therein, sworn to and subscribed by her in my presence on this date.

Sworn to and subscribed before me this the _____ day of _____, 20___.

A Notary Public/Attorney of the State of New Jersey

Appendix H: Reporting Form

						1	I																		
24	23	22	21	20	19	18	17	16	5	14	13	12	11	10	9	8	7	6	б	4	з	2	4		
																								Date	Affordabi
																								Type of Assistance	Affordability Assistance Reporting
																								Project/ Development	rting
																							•	Description	
																								block lot	
																								lot	
																								Address	
																								Loan or Grant	
																								Amount	
																								MYL/ML	
																								Other Comments	